
 
Page | 1 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

 
Regular Meeting of the 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
Policy Board Meeting 

 

LOCATION 
Madera County Transportation Commission 

Board Room 
2001 Howard Road, Suite 201 

Madera, California 93637 
 

SPECIAL NOTICE: Precautions to address COVID-19 (a.k.a. the “Coronavirus”) will apply 
to this meeting.  See below Special Notice for additional details. 
 

DATE 
March 18, 2020 

 

TIME 
3:00 pm 

 

Policy Board Members 
 

Commissioner Max Rodriguez, Chair Madera County Supervisor 
Commissioner Jose Rodriguez, Vice Chair Council Member, City of Madera 
Commissioner Waseem Ahmed Council Member, City of Chowchilla 
Commissioner Brett Frazier Madera County Supervisor 
Commissioner Andy Medellin Mayor, City of Madera 
Commissioner Tom Wheeler Chair, Madera County Supervisor 

 
Representatives or individuals with disabilities should contact MCTC at (559) 675-0721 at least three (3) 
business days in advance of the meeting to request auxiliary aids or other accommodations necessary to 

participate in the public meeting. 

1 of 115



 
 

 
Page | 2 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

In compliance with Government Code §54952.3, compensation for legislative body members attending the 
following simultaneous meeting is $100. Compensation rate is set pursuant to the rules of the Madera 
County Transportation Commission. 

SPECIAL NOTICE 
 
The Governor has declared a State of Emergency to exist in California as a result of the threat of COVID-
19 (aka the “Coronavirus”).  The Governor also issued Executive Order N-25-20, which directs Californians 
to follow public health directives including canceling large gatherings.  “The Executive Order also allows 
local legislative bodies to hold meetings via conference calls while still meeting state transparency 
requirements”.  
 
The Public’s health and well-being are the top priority for the Madera County Transportation 
Commission, and you are urged to take all appropriate health safety precautions.  To facilitate this 
process, the meeting will also be available by: 
 

• Teleconference:  The meeting will be conducted live over the phone.  Members of the public can 
join the meeting by using the following Call in Number:  

Call in Number 800-325-1307 
Conference Code 322 238 

• Email:  You can email comments to MCTC@maderactc.org by no later than 2:30 p.m. before the 
meeting.  Please identify the Agenda item you wish to address in your comments.  Your 
comments will be provided to the MCTC Policy Board. 

 
Any members of the public that still wish to physically attend will have the right to observe and offer 
public comment at the meeting and must adhere to social distancing requirements.  
 

AGENDA 
 

At least 72 hours prior to each regular MCTC Board meeting, a complete agenda packet is available for 
review on the MCTC website or at the MCTC office, 2001 Howard Road, Suite 201, Madera, California 
93637. All public records relating to an open session item and copies of staff reports or other written 
documentation relating to items of business referred to on the agenda are on file at MCTC. Persons with 
questions concerning agenda items may call MCTC at (559) 675-0721 to make an inquiry regarding the 
nature of items described in the agenda. 
 

 
 
 
 

2 of 115

mailto:MCTC@maderactc.org
http://www.maderactc.org/meeting-agendas/


 
 

 
Page | 3 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

INTERPRETING SERVICES 
 

Interpreting services are not provided at MCTC’s public meeting unless requested at least three (3) business 
days in advance. Please contact MCTC at (559) 675-0721 during regular business hours to request 
interpreting services. 
 
Servicios de interprete no son ofrecidos en las juntas públicas de MCTC al menos de que se soliciten con 
tres (3) días de anticipación. Para solicitar estos servicios por favor contacte a Evelyn Espinosa at (559) 675-
0721 x 15 durante horas de oficina. 
 

MEETING CONDUCT 
 

If this meeting is willfully interrupted or disrupted by one or more persons rendering orderly conduct of 
the meeting unfeasible, the Chair may order the removal of individuals who are willfully disrupting the 
meeting. Such individuals may be arrested. If order cannot be restored by such removal, the members of 
the Board may direct that the meeting room be cleared (except for representatives of the press or other 
news media not participating in the disturbance), and the session may continue. 
 

RECORD OF THE MEETING 
 

Board meetings are recorded. Copies of recordings are available upon request, or recordings may be 
listened to at the MCTC offices by appointment. 
 

3 of 115



 
 

 
Page | 4 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

Agenda 
 CALL TO ORDER 
  

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
This time is made available for comments from the public on matters within the Board’s 
jurisdiction that are not on the agenda.  Each speaker will be limited to three (3) minutes.  
Attention is called to the fact that the Board is prohibited by law from taking any substantive 
action on matters discussed that are not on the agenda, and no adverse conclusions should 
be drawn if the Board does not respond to the public comment at this time.  It is requested 
that no comments be made during this period on items that are on today’s agenda.  
Members of the public may comment on any item that is on today’s agenda when the item 
is called and should notify the Chairman of their desire to address the Board when that 
agenda item is called. 

    
MCTC SITTING AS THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE 

    
3. TRANSPORTATION CONSENT ITEMS   
    
 All items on the consent agenda are considered routine and non-controversial by MCTC staff 

and will be approved by one motion if no member of the Committee or public wishes to 
comment or ask questions.  If comment or discussion is desired by anyone, the item will be 
removed from the consent agenda and will be considered in the listed sequence with an 
opportunity for any member of the public to address the Committee concerning the item 
before action is taken. 

    
3-A Active Transportation Program Cycle 5 No Info/Disc 
3-B 2020-21 Unmet Transit Needs Public Hearing Update Yes Info/Disc 
3-C Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program Award of 

Projects 
Yes Approve 

3-D Low Carbon Transit Operation Program (LCTOP) List of 
Projects – Resolution 20-01 

Yes Approve 

3-E Regional Surface Transportation Program Exchange 
Agreement – Resolution 20-02 

Yes Approve 

    
    

4 of 115



 
 

 
Page | 5 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

4. TRANSPORTATION ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS   
4-A Valley Voice – Sacramento March 11, 2020 No Info/Disc 

    
MCTC SITTING AS THE MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 

5. REAFFIRM ALL ACTIONS TAKEN WHILE SITTING AS THE 
TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE 

  

    
6. ADMINISTRATIVE CONSENT ITEMS   
    
 All items on the consent agenda are considered routine and non-controversial by MCTC staff 

and will be approved by one motion if no member of the Committee or public wishes to 
comment or ask questions.  If comment or discussion is desired by anyone, the item will be 
removed from the consent agenda and will be considered in the listed sequence with an 
opportunity for any member of the public to address the Committee concerning the item 
before action is taken. 

  
6-A Executive Minutes – February 19, 2020 Yes Approve 
6-B Transportation Development Act MCTC Guidebook, 2020 

Update 
Yes Approve 

6-C Transportation Development Act (LTF, STA) – Allocation, LTF 
Resolution 19-10 Amendment No. 2, STA Resolution 19-11 
Amendment No. 2 

Yes Approve 

6-D Appointments to the MCTC Social Service Transportation 
Advisory Council (SSTAC) 

Yes Approve 

    
7. ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS   
    
 None   

    
MCTC SITTING AS THE MADERA COUNTY 2006 TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 

8. AUTHORITY – ADMINISTRATIVE CONSENT ITEMS    
    

5 of 115



 
 

 
Page | 6 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

 All items on the consent agenda are considered routine and non-controversial by MCTC staff 
and will be approved by one motion if no member of the Committee or public wishes to 
comment or ask questions.  If comment or discussion is desired by anyone, the item will be 
removed from the consent agenda and will be considered in the listed sequence with an 
opportunity for any member of the public to address the Committee concerning the item 
before action is taken. 

  
8-A FY 2020-21 Measure T Estimate Yes Info/Disc 

    
9. AUTHORITY – ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS   
    
9-A Discussion of Measure T  No Info/Disc/ 

Direction 
    

OTHER ITEMS 
    

10. Miscellaneous   
      

10-A Items from Caltrans   
10-B Items from Staff    
10-C Items from Commissioners   

    
11. Adjournment   
    

 
*Items listed above as information still leave the option for guidance/direction actions by the Board. 

6 of 115



 
 

 
Page | 7 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

Annotated Agenda 
Madera County Transportation Commission March 18, 2020 Meeting 

  
1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
  

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
MCTC SITTING AS THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE 
 

3. TRANSPORTATION CONSENT ITEMS 
  

3-A. Active Transportation Program Cycle 5 
  
 Summary:  On September 26, 2013, Governor Brown signed legislation creating the Active 

Transportation Program (ATP) in the Department of Transportation (Senate Bill 99, 
Chapter 359 and Assembly Bill 101, Chapter 354). The ATP consolidates existing federal 
and state transportation programs, including the Transportation Alternatives Program 
(TAP), Bicycle Transportation Account (BTA), and State Safe Routes to School (SRTS), into a 
single program with a focus to make California a national leader in active transportation. 
The ATP is administered by the Division of Local Assistance, Office of State Programs. 
 
The purpose of ATP is to encourage increased use of active modes of transportation by 
achieving the following goals: 

• Increase the proportion of trips accomplished by biking and walking 
• Increase safety and mobility for non-motorized users 
• Advance the active transportation efforts of regional agencies to achieve 

Greenhouse Gas (GHG) reduction goals, pursuant to SB 375 (of 2008) and SB 341 
(of 2009) 

• Enhance public health 
• Ensure that disadvantaged communities fully share in the benefits of the program 
• Provide a broad spectrum of projects to benefit many types of active 

transportation users 
 
Cycle 5 is expected to include about $440M in ATP funding made up of Federal funding, 
State SB1, and State Highway Account (SHA) funding. The funding/programming years are 
expected to include 21/22, 22/23, 23/24 and 24/25 fiscal years. 

7 of 115



 
 

 
Page | 8 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

The Call for Projects is scheduled for March 25, 2020. The application postmark date is 
June 15, 2020. 
 
Potential applicants are encouraged to check the Caltrans website for future updates. 
(Ebersole) 
 
Action: Information and discussion 

  

3-B. 2020-21 Unmet Transit Needs Public Hearing Update 
  
 Summary: The Transportation Development Act (TDA) requires that the MCTC Policy Board 

determine that public transportation needs within Madera County will be reasonably met 
in FY 2020-21 prior to approving claims of Local Transportation Funds (LTF) for streets and 
roads.  The MCTC’s Social Service Transportation Advisory Council (SSTAC) is responsible for 
evaluating unmet transit needs.  Each year the SSTAC begins the process of soliciting 
comments from the public by sending letters to agencies and individuals interested in 
providing feedback on their public transportation needs within Madera County.  The request 
for comments letters was mailed late February 2020.   
 
MCTC’s Unmet Transit Needs public hearing is scheduled as follows: 
 
PUBLIC HEARING –Wednesday, April 22, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. 
                                  Location:  Madera County Transportation Commission Board Room 
                                 2001 Howard Road, Suite 201, Madera, CA 
 
MCTC’s Unmet Transit Needs workshops are scheduled as follows: 
 
WORKSHOP – Thursday, March 26, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. 
                          Location: Chowchilla Library 
                          300 W Kings Ave, Chowchilla, CA 93610 
 
WORKSHOP – Tuesday, April 7, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. 
                          Location: Frank Bergon Senior Center 
                          238 S D St, Madera, CA 93638 
 
WORKSHOP – Tuesday, April 7, 2020 at 2:00 p.m. 
                          Location: Sierra Senior Center 
                          49111 Cinder ln, Oakhurst, CA 93644 

8 of 115

https://dot.ca.gov/programs/local-assistance/fed-and-state-programs/active-transportation-program/cycle5


 
 

 
Page | 9 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

The Madera Area Express will provide fixed-route rides, at no cost, to the stop on Howard 
near Schnoor (Route 2) for the Unmet Transit Needs hearing. If passengers are unable to 
ride the fixed route because of disability, free Dial-A-Ride (DAR) service to the hearing will 
be provided. It is highly encouraged that passenger schedule a minimum of 48 hours in 
advance and understand that space/availability may be limited for DAR service. 
 
A Spanish language interpreter will also be available for those who wish to testify in Spanish.  
A public notice will be printed in the local newspapers and fliers will be distributed 
throughout the community publicizing the hearing. (Davies) 
 
Action: Information and discussion 

  
3-C. Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Program Award of Projects 

  
 Summary: The primary purpose of the CMAQ Program is to fund transportation programs 

and projects in air quality non-attainment and maintenance areas which reduce 
transportation related emissions.  Apportionment estimates for the MCTC 2019-20 CMAQ 
Cycle (FY 19/20 – FY 21/22) for the Madera Region is approximately $5.9 million.   
 
MCTC received applications in the amount of $10,549,678 in eligible CMAQ funds for the 
MCTC 2019-20 CMAQ Lifeline/Grant Program. MCTC is requesting all applications submitted 
receive approval and may be programmed for funding when/if additional CMAQ funding 
becomes available. Upon acceptance of the MCTC 2019-20 CMAQ Lifeline/Grant Award List, 
the awarded projects will be prioritized with the other current CMAQ projects in the 2019 
(and 2021, if applicable) Federal Transportation Improvement Program (FTIP).  (Findley) 
 
Action: Approve MCTC 2019-20 CMAQ Lifeline/Grant Award List 

  
3-D. Low Carbon Transit Operation Program (LCTOP) List of Projects – Resolution 20-01 

  
 Summary: The Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) is one of several programs 

that are part of the Transit, Affordable Housing, and Sustainable Communities Program 
established by the California Legislature in 2014 by Senate Bill 862. The LCTOP was created 
as a statewide program to provide operating and capital assistance for transit agencies to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions and improve mobility, with a priority on serving 
disadvantaged communities. This program is funded by auction proceeds from the California 
Air Resource Board’s Cap-and-Trade Program established by Assembly Bill 32 with proceeds 
deposited into the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund. 

9 of 115



 
 

 
Page | 10 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

The Madera County Transportation Commission is a designated recipient of Low Carbon 
Transit Operations Program funds for the Madera region. Funds allocated for the FY 2019/20 
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program total $298,667. Allocation of these funds is based 
on the State Controller's distribution formula for State Transit Assistance (STA) funds, per 
Sections 99313 and 99314 of the California Public Utilities Code. Matching funds are not 
required for this program. The following projects will be submitted: 
 
City of Chowchilla 
City of Chowchilla Transit Bus Stop 
$26,922 
 
City of Madera 
Transit Enhancements Farebox Modernizations 
$124,327 
 
County of Madera 
MCC Bus Stop Shelters and Amenities 
147,418 
(Ebersole) 
 
Action: Approve LCTOP List of Projects – Resolution 20-01 

  
3-E. Regional Surface Transportation Program Exchange Agreement – Resolution 20-02 

  
 Summary: The Madera County Transportation Commission receives an annual federal 

apportionment of Regional Surface Transportation Program/Regional Surface 
Transportation Block Grant Program (RSTP/RSTBGP) funds to allocate to local agencies for 
the implementation of road projects. MCTC can exchange this federal apportionment for 
nonfederal State Highway Account funds paid directly from the State to MCTC. A resolution 
authorizing the Executive Director to sign the exchange agreement is required to be 
submitted to Caltrans. (McNeil) 
 
Action: Approve Resolution 20-02 authorizing Executive Director to sign the RSTP/RSTBGP 
exchange agreement 

  
4. TRANSPORTATION ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 
  
  
  

10 of 115



 
 

 
Page | 11 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

4-A. Valley Voice – Sacramento Report 
  
 Summary:  The annual San Joaquin Valley Regional Planning Agencies Valley Voice trip to 

Sacramento was held on March 11, 2020.  Executive Director Patricia Taylor and Supervisor 
Robert Poythress attended the trip on behalf of the Commission.  Elected officials and MPO 
staff from the eight San Joaquin Valley counties met with representatives from the 
Assembly, Senate, and statewide agencies to advocate for the priority issues identified in 
the Valley Legislative Platform.  (Taylor) 
 
Action: Information and Discussion 

  
MCTC SITTING AS THE MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
 

5. REAFFIRM ALL ACTIONS TAKEN WHILE SITTING AS THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY 
COMMITTEE 

  
6. ADMINISTRATIVE CONSENT ITEMS 

 
6-A. Executive Minutes – February 19, 2020 

  
 Summary: Included in your packet is a copy of the February 19, 2020 Executive Minutes of 

the Policy Board. 
 
Action: Approve Executive Minutes of February 19, 2020 

  
6-B. Transportation Development Act MCTC Guidebook, 2020 Update 

  
 Summary: The written Transportation Development Act (TDA) Guidebook was developed to 

provide clarity as to the linkage between MCTC policies directing TDA, the TDA 
administrative activities that are conducted by MCTC, and the funding allocations to the 
local jurisdictions for eligible programs such as bike and pedestrian projects, public transit, 
and street and road projects and was first adopted in March 2017. This 2020 update to that 
version includes language regarding new statutes and regulations for 2020 and Social 
Service Transportation Advisory Council (SSTAC) rules that govern the actions of the SSTAC.  
 
The Guidebook was submitted to the local jurisdictions for review and no comments were 
received. (McNeil) 
 

11 of 115



 
 

 
Page | 12 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

Action: Approve Transportation Development Act MCTC Guidebook, 2020 Update 
 

6-C. Transportation Development Act (LTF, STA) – Allocation, LTF Resolution 19-10 
Amendment No. 2, STA Resolution 19-11 Amendment No. 2 
 

 Summary:  The County of Madera has requested to carryover funds from FY 2017-18 and 
revise its allocations. (McNeil) 
  
Action:  Approve LTF Resolution 19-10 Amendment No. 2, STA Resolution 19-11 
Amendment No. 2 
 

6-D. Appointments to the MCTC Social Service Transportation Advisory Council (SSTAC) 
  
 Summary: The SSTAC was formed by the Madera County Transportation Commission 

(MCTC) Policy Board to: respond to State legislation and to coordinate social service 
transportation; assist the MCTC Board in identifying transit needs throughout the Madera 
Region; review and recommend action for the MCTC to address at its unmet transit needs 
hearing; and advise the MCTC on any other major transit issues. The MCTC Board appoints 
SSTAC members for a term of three years.  
 
SSTAC member appointments to the Council are: 
 

Pamela Mashack – Potential Transit User 60 Years or Older 
Rosalind Esqueda – Representative of the Local Social Service Provider for Seniors 
Ellen Moy – Representative of the Local Social Service Provider for Seniors 
Annie Self – Representative of the Local Social Service Provider for Disabled 
Sophia Aguilar – Representative for Persons of Limited Means 
 

Article III, Section 99238 of the Transportation Development Act requires a minimum 
number of SSTAC members in specific categories. There is no maximum number of members 
specified in the TDA and in the interest of diversity, staff is seeking additional nominations. 
Specifically, staff is seeking members who represent minority groups, social service provider 
for seniors, and potential transit users. A complete list of SSTAC members are included in 
the agenda package. (Davies) 
 
Action: Approve the appointments of five members to SSTAC 

  
  

12 of 115



 
 

 
Page | 13 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

  
7. ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
 None 
  
MCTC SITTING AS THE MADERA COUNTY 2006 TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

 
8. AUTHORITY– CONSENT ITEMS 

 
8-A. FY 2020-21 Measure T Estimate 

  
 Summary: The FY 2020-21 Measure “T” Allocation Estimate is included in your package.  

The estimate provides a not to exceed budget allocation for each Measure “T” program 
for each agency.   
 
Staff has requested that each agency prepare their Annual Expenditure Plan (AEP) 
identifying how each agency anticipates spending the funds in FY 2020-21 for each 
category, including the subcategories.  The AEPs will then be incorporated into the Annual 
Work Program which will be presented as a draft document at the June Board meeting. 
(McNeil) 
 
Action: Information and discussion 

  
9. AUTHORITY – ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
9-A. Discussion of Measure T 

  
 Summary: Staff will present a verbal report on the status of Measure T and will discuss 

potential next steps. Two flyers have been attached highlighting some of the projects that 
have been or will be completed soon. (Taylor) 
 
Action: Information and discussion. Direction may be provided 

  
OTHER ITEMS 

  
10. Miscellaneous 

 
10-A. Items from Caltrans 

13 of 115



 
 

 
Page | 14 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
March 18, 2020 

 

10-B. Items from Staff   
10-C. Items from Commissioners  

  
11. Adjournment 

  
 

14 of 115



      
          

          
          

    
  

 
 
  

   

    
  

  
 

 
    

 
  

    
  

        
        

         
      

        
   

    
     

    
   

    
  

 

  

 
     

     
 

   
  

IN PARTNERSHIP WITH THE FOLLOWING 
PUBLIC TRANSIT AGENCIES: 

MADERA METRO 
MADERA COUNTY CONNECTION 
CHOWCHILLA AREA TRANSIT EXPRESS 

Do you or someone you know have a public transit need

that is not being met? 

2 0 2 0 U N M E T T R A N S I T N E E D S A S S E S S M E N T
P U B L I C C O M M E N T P R O C E S S

T h e M a d e r a C o u n t y T r a n s p o r t a t i o n C o m m i s s i o n ' s S o c i a l S e r v i c e s 
T r a n s p o r t a t i o n A d v i s o r y C o u n c i l w o u l d l i k e t o h e a r f r o m y o u ! I f y o u 
w o u l d l i k e t o p r o v i d e c o m m e n t s o n p u b l i c t r a n s i t n e e d s i n M a d e r a 

C o u n t y , p l e a s e a t t e n d o n e o f t h e p u b l i c m e e t i n g s o r s u b m i t w r i t t e n 
c o m m e n t s . 

U n m e t T r a n s i t N e e d s U n m e t T r a n s i t N e e d s 
W o r k s h o p P u b l i c H e a r i n g 

T h u r s d a y , M a r c h 2 6 , 2 0 2 0 - W e d n e s d a y , A p r i l 2 2 , 2 0 2 0 -
3 : 0 0 p m - 5 : 0 0 p m 3 : 0 0 p m 
C h o w c h i l l a L i b r a r y M C T C B o a r d R o o m 
3 0 0 W K i n g s A v e 2 0 0 1 H o w a r d R o a d , S u i t e 2 0 1 
C h o w c h i l l a , C A 9 3 6 1 0 M a d e r a , C A 9 3 6 3 7 

T r a n s p o r t a t i o n i s b e i n g p r o v i d e d t o a n d f r o m t h e p u b l i c 
h e a r i n g o n t h e M a d e r a M e t r o f i x e d - r o u t e R o u t e 2 . I f 
p a s s e n g e r s a r e u n a b l e t o r i d e t h e f i x e d - r o u t e b e c a u s e o f a 
d i s a b i l i t y , f r e e D i a l - A - R i d e ( D A R ) s e r v i c e w i t h i n t h e 
s e r v i c e b o u n d a r i e s t o t h e h e a r i n g w i l l b e p r o v i d e d . C a l l 
M a d e r a M e t r o / D A R a t 5 5 9 - 6 6 1 - 7 4 3 3 . 

S C A N
A t t e n d a n c e i s n o t m a n d a t o r y f o r 
p a r t i c i p a t i o n . I f y o u a r e u n a b l e t o C O N S I D E Ra t t e n d t h e h e a r i n g i n p e r s o n , 
p l e a s e s e n d y o u r w r i t t e n T A K I N G O U R
c o m m e n t s t o M C T C ' s a d d r e s s o r S U R V E Y !
e m a i l t h e m t o : 
a m e l i a @ m a d e r a c t c . o r g 

H E R E

Return to Agenda

15 of 115



         
        

         
           

      

    
   

 
 
  

   

    
 

   

  
  

  

 
    

 
  

    
  

       
          

           
      

           
        

    
    

     
   

     
    

 

  
  
 

 
    

    
 

   
  

EN ASOCIACIÓN CON LAS SIGUIENTES 
AGENCIAS DE TRANSPORTE PÚBLICO: 

MADERA METRO 
MADERA COUNTY CONNECTION 
CHOWCHILLA AREA TRANSIT EXPRESS 

¿Usted o alguien que conoce tiene una necesidad de

transporte público que no se está cumpliendo? 

2 0 2 0 N E C E S I D A D E S D E T R A N S P O R T E P Ú B L I C O 
N O S A T I S F E C H A S -

P R O C E S O D E C O M E N T A R I O P Ú B L I C O 
¡ E l C o n s e j o A s e s o r d e T r a n s p o r t e d e S e r v i c i o s S o c i a l e s d e l a 

C o m i s i ó n d e T r a n s p o r t e d e l C o n d a d o d e M a d e r a d e s e a e s c u c h a r l o 
a u s t e d ! S i d e s e a h a c e r c o m e n t a r i o s s o b r e l a s n e c e s i d a d e s d e 

l a s n e c e s i d a d e s d e 
d e t r a n s p o r t e p ú b l i c o 

t r a n s p o r t e p ú b l i c o n o 
n o s a t i s f e c h a s 

s a t i s f e c h a s 

J u e v e s , M a r z o 2 6 , 2 0 2 0 -
M i é r c o l e s , A b r i l 2 2 , 2 0 2 0 -3 : 0 0 p m - 5 : 0 0 p m 
3 : 0 0 p m C h o w c h i l l a L i b r a r y 
M C T C B o a r d R o o m 3 0 0 W K i n g s A v e 
2 0 0 1 H o w a r d R o a d , S u i t e 2 0 1 C h o w c h i l l a , C A 9 3 6 1 0 
M a d e r a , C A 9 3 6 3 7 

S e p r o p o r c i o n a r á t r a n s p o r t e g r a t u i t o h a c i a y d e s d e l a 
a u d i e n c i a p ú b l i c a e n l a r u t a f i j a , R u t a 2 , d e M a d e r a M e t r o . 
S i l o s p a s a j e r o s n o p u e d e n v i a j a r e n l a r u t a f i j a d e b i d o a 
u n a d i s c a p a c i d a d , e l s e r v i c i o D i a l - A - R i d e ( D A R ) s e r á 
g r a t u i t o d e n t r o d e l o s l í m i t e s d e s e r v i c i o d e l a u t o b u s a l a 
a u d i e n c i a . L l a m e a M a d e r a M e t r o / D A R a l 5 5 9 - 6 6 1 - 7 4 3 3 . 

P r e s e n t a r s e e n p e r s o n a n o e s 
o b l i g a t o r i o p a r a p a r t i c i p a r . S i n o ¡ C O N S I D E R E 
p u e d e a s i s t i r a l a a u d i e n c i a e n 
p e r s o n a , e n v í e s u s c o m e n t a r i o s T O M A R 
p o r e s c r i t o a l a d i r e c c i ó n d e N U E S T R A 
M C T C o e n v í e l o s p o r c o r r e o E N C U E S T A ! e l e c t r ó n i c o a : 
a m e l i a @ m a d e r a c t c . o r g A Q U Í 

t r a n s p o r t e p ú b l i c o e n e l C o n d a d o d e M a d e r a , a s i s t a a u n a d e l a s 
r e u n i o n e s p ú b l i c a s o e n v í e c o m e n t a r i o s p o r e s c r i t o . 

A u d i e n c i a P ú b l i c a p a r a 
T a l l e r d e n e c e s i d a d e s 

E S C A N E E 

16 of 115



      
          

          
          

    
  

 
 
  

   

    
  

  
 

 
    

 
  

    
  

        
        

         
      

        
   

    
     

    
   

    
  

 

  

 
     

  
   

   
  

MADERACTC 
Madera County Transportation Commission 

IN PARTNERSHIP WITH THE FOLLOWING 
PUBLIC TRANSIT AGENCIES: 

MADERA METRO 
MADERA COUNTY CONNECTION 
CHOWCHILLA AREA TRANSIT EXPRESS 

Do you or someone you know have a public transit need

that is not being met? 

2 0 2 0 U N M E T T R A N S I T N E E D S A S S E S S M E N T 
P U B L I C C O M M E N T P R O C E S S 

T h e M a d e r a C o u n t y T r a n s p o r t a t i o n C o m m i s s i o n ' s S o c i a l S e r v i c e s 
T r a n s p o r t a t i o n A d v i s o r y C o u n c i l w o u l d l i k e t o h e a r f r o m y o u ! I f y o u 
w o u l d l i k e t o p r o v i d e c o m m e n t s o n p u b l i c t r a n s i t n e e d s i n M a d e r a 

C o u n t y , p l e a s e a t t e n d o n e o f t h e p u b l i c m e e t i n g s o r s u b m i t w r i t t e n 
c o m m e n t s . 

U n m e t T r a n s i t N e e d s 
W o r k s h o p 

T u e s d a y , A p r i l 7 , 2 0 2 0 -
9 : 0 0 a m 
F r a n k B e r g o n S e n i o r C e n t e r 
2 3 8 S D S t r e e t 
M a d e r a , C A 9 3 6 3 8 

U n m e t T r a n s i t N e e d s 
P u b l i c H e a r i n g 

W e d n e s d a y , A p r i l 2 2 , 2 0 2 0 -
3 : 0 0 p m 
M C T C B o a r d R o o m 
2 0 0 1 H o w a r d R o a d , S u i t e 2 0 1 
M a d e r a , C A 9 3 6 3 7 

T r a n s p o r t a t i o n i s b e i n g p r o v i d e d t o a n d f r o m t h e p u b l i c 
h e a r i n g o n t h e M a d e r a M e t r o f i x e d - r o u t e R o u t e 2 . I f 
p a s s e n g e r s a r e u n a b l e t o r i d e t h e f i x e d - r o u t e b e c a u s e o f a 
d i s a b i l i t y , f r e e D i a l - A - R i d e ( D A R ) s e r v i c e w i t h i n t h e 
s e r v i c e b o u n d a r i e s t o t h e h e a r i n g w i l l b e p r o v i d e d . C a l l 
M a d e r a M e t r o / D A R a t 5 5 9 - 6 6 1 - 7 4 3 3 . 

S C A N 
A t t e n d a n c e i s n o t m a n d a t o r y f o r 
p a r t i c i p a t i o n . I f y o u a r e u n a b l e t o C O N S I D E R a t t e n d t h e h e a r i n g i n p e r s o n , 
p l e a s e s e n d y o u r w r i t t e n T A K I N G O U R 
c o m m e n t s t o M C T C ' s a d d r e s s o r S U R V E Y ! 
e m a i l t h e m t o : 
a m e l i a @ m a d e r a c t c . o r g 

H E R E 17 of 115



         
        

         
           

      

    
   

 
 
  

   

    
 

   

  
  

  

 
    

 
  

    
  

       
          

           
      

           
        

    
    

     
   

     
    

 

  
  
 

 
     

  
   

   
  

MADERACTC 
Madera County Transportation Commission 

EN ASOCIACIÓN CON LAS SIGUIENTES 
AGENCIAS DE TRANSPORTE PÚBLICO: 

MADERA METRO 
MADERA COUNTY CONNECTION 
CHOWCHILLA AREA TRANSIT EXPRESS 

¿Usted o alguien que conoce tiene una necesidad de

transporte público que no se está cumpliendo? 

2 0 2 0 N E C E S I D A D E S D E T R A N S P O R T E P Ú B L I C O 
N O S A T I S F E C H A S -

P R O C E S O D E C O M E N T A R I O P Ú B L I C O 
¡ E l C o n s e j o A s e s o r d e T r a n s p o r t e d e S e r v i c i o s S o c i a l e s d e l a 

C o m i s i ó n d e T r a n s p o r t e d e l C o n d a d o d e M a d e r a d e s e a e s c u c h a r l o 
a u s t e d ! S i d e s e a h a c e r c o m e n t a r i o s s o b r e l a s n e c e s i d a d e s d e 

l a s n e c e s i d a d e s d e 
d e t r a n s p o r t e p ú b l i c o 

t r a n s p o r t e p ú b l i c o n o 
n o s a t i s f e c h a s 

s a t i s f e c h a s 

M a r t e s , A b r i l 7 , 2 0 2 0 -
M i é r c o l e s , A b r i l 2 2 , 2 0 2 0 -9 : 0 0 a m 
3 : 0 0 p m F r a n k B e r g o n S e n i o r C e n t e r 
M C T C B o a r d R o o m 2 3 8 S D S t r e e t 
2 0 0 1 H o w a r d R o a d , S u i t e 2 0 1 M a d e r a , C A 9 3 6 3 8 
M a d e r a , C A 9 3 6 3 7 

S e p r o p o r c i o n a r á t r a n s p o r t e g r a t u i t o h a c i a y d e s d e l a 
a u d i e n c i a p ú b l i c a e n l a r u t a f i j a , R u t a 2 , d e M a d e r a M e t r o . 
S i l o s p a s a j e r o s n o p u e d e n v i a j a r e n l a r u t a f i j a d e b i d o a 
u n a d i s c a p a c i d a d , e l s e r v i c i o D i a l - A - R i d e ( D A R ) s e r á 
g r a t u i t o d e n t r o d e l o s l í m i t e s d e s e r v i c i o d e l a u t o b u s a l a 
a u d i e n c i a . L l a m e a M a d e r a M e t r o / D A R a l 5 5 9 - 6 6 1 - 7 4 3 3 

P r e s e n t a r s e e n p e r s o n a n o e s 
o b l i g a t o r i o p a r a p a r t i c i p a r . S i n o ¡ C O N S I D E R E 
p u e d e a s i s t i r a l a a u d i e n c i a e n 
p e r s o n a , e n v í e s u s c o m e n t a r i o s T O M A R 
p o r e s c r i t o a l a d i r e c c i ó n d e N U E S T R A 
M C T C o e n v í e l o s p o r c o r r e o E N C U E S T A ! e l e c t r ó n i c o a : 
a m e l i a @ m a d e r a c t c . o r g A Q U Í 

t r a n s p o r t e p ú b l i c o e n e l C o n d a d o d e M a d e r a , a s i s t a a u n a d e l a s 
r e u n i o n e s p ú b l i c a s o e n v í e c o m e n t a r i o s p o r e s c r i t o . 

A u d i e n c i a P ú b l i c a p a r a 
T a l l e r d e n e c e s i d a d e s 

E S C A N E E 

18 of 115



      
          

          
          

    
  

 
 
  

   

    
  

  
 

 
    

 
  

    
  

        
        

         
      

        
   

    
     

    
   

    
  

 

  

 
     

     
  

  
  

IN PARTNERSHIP WITH THE FOLLOWING 
PUBLIC TRANSIT AGENCIES: 

MADERA METRO 
MADERA COUNTY CONNECTION 
CHOWCHILLA AREA TRANSIT EXPRESS 

Do you or someone you know have a public transit need

that is not being met? 

2 0 2 0 U N M E T T R A N S I T N E E D S A S S E S S M E N T 
P U B L I C C O M M E N T P R O C E S S 

T h e M a d e r a C o u n t y T r a n s p o r t a t i o n C o m m i s s i o n ' s S o c i a l S e r v i c e s 
T r a n s p o r t a t i o n A d v i s o r y C o u n c i l w o u l d l i k e t o h e a r f r o m y o u ! I f y o u 
w o u l d l i k e t o p r o v i d e c o m m e n t s o n p u b l i c t r a n s i t n e e d s i n M a d e r a 

C o u n t y , p l e a s e a t t e n d o n e o f t h e p u b l i c m e e t i n g s o r s u b m i t w r i t t e n 
c o m m e n t s . 

U n m e t T r a n s i t N e e d s 
W o r k s h o p 

T u e s d a y , A p r i l 7 , 2 0 2 0 -
2 : 0 0 p m - 4 : 0 0 p m 
S i e r r a S e n i o r C e n t e r 
4 9 1 1 1 C i n d e r L n 
O a k h u r s t , C A 9 3 6 4 4 

U n m e t T r a n s i t N e e d s 
P u b l i c H e a r i n g 

W e d n e s d a y , A p r i l 2 2 , 2 0 2 0 -
3 : 0 0 p m 
M C T C B o a r d R o o m 
2 0 0 1 H o w a r d R o a d , S u i t e 2 0 1 
M a d e r a , C A 9 3 6 3 7 

T r a n s p o r t a t i o n i s b e i n g p r o v i d e d t o a n d f r o m t h e p u b l i c 
h e a r i n g o n t h e M a d e r a M e t r o f i x e d - r o u t e R o u t e 2 . I f 
p a s s e n g e r s a r e u n a b l e t o r i d e t h e f i x e d - r o u t e b e c a u s e o f a 
d i s a b i l i t y , f r e e D i a l - A - R i d e ( D A R ) s e r v i c e w i t h i n t h e 
s e r v i c e b o u n d a r i e s t o t h e h e a r i n g w i l l b e p r o v i d e d . C a l l 
M a d e r a M e t r o / D A R a t 5 5 9 - 6 6 1 - 7 4 3 3 . 

S C A N 
A t t e n d a n c e i s n o t m a n d a t o r y f o r 
p a r t i c i p a t i o n . I f y o u a r e u n a b l e t o C O N S I D E R a t t e n d t h e h e a r i n g i n p e r s o n , 
p l e a s e s e n d y o u r w r i t t e n T A K I N G O U R 
c o m m e n t s t o M C T C ' s a d d r e s s o r S U R V E Y ! 
e m a i l t h e m t o : 
a m e l i a @ m a d e r a c t c . o r g 

H E R E 19 of 115



         
        

         
           

      

    
   

 
 
  

   

    
 

   

  
  

  

 
    

 
  

    
  

       
          

           
      

           
        

    
    

     
   

     
    

 

  
  
 

 
 

    
    

  
  

  

EN ASOCIACIÓN CON LAS SIGUIENTES 
AGENCIAS DE TRANSPORTE PÚBLICO: 

MADERA METRO 
MADERA COUNTY CONNECTION 
CHOWCHILLA AREA TRANSIT EXPRESS 

t r a n s p o r t e p ú b l i c o e n e l C o n d a d o d e M a d e r a , a s i s t a a u n a d e l a s 
r e u n i o n e s p ú b l i c a s o e n v í e c o m e n t a r i o s p o r e s c r i t o . 

A u d i e n c i a P ú b l i c a p a r a T a l l e r d e n e c e s i d a d e s 

¿Usted o alguien que conoce tiene una necesidad de

transporte público que no se está cumpliendo? 

2 0 2 0 N E C E S I D A D E S D E T R A N S P O R T E P Ú B L I C O 
N O S A T I S F E C H A S -

P R O C E S O D E C O M E N T A R I O P Ú B L I C O 
¡ E l C o n s e j o A s e s o r d e T r a n s p o r t e d e S e r v i c i o s S o c i a l e s d e l a 

C o m i s i ó n d e T r a n s p o r t e d e l C o n d a d o d e M a d e r a d e s e a e s c u c h a r l o 
a u s t e d ! S i d e s e a h a c e r c o m e n t a r i o s s o b r e l a s n e c e s i d a d e s d e 

d e t r a n s p o r t e p ú b l i c o l a s n e c e s i d a d e s d e 

n o s a t i s f e c h a s t r a n s p o r t e p ú b l i c o n o 
s a t i s f e c h a s 

M a r t e s , A b r i l 7 , 2 0 2 0 - M i é r c o l e s , A b r i l 2 2 , 2 0 2 0 -
2 : 0 0 p m - 4 : 0 0 p m 3 : 0 0 p m 
S i e r r a S e n i o r C e n t e r M C T C B o a r d R o o m 
4 9 1 1 1 C i n d e r L n 2 0 0 1 H o w a r d R o a d , S u i t e 2 0 1 
O a k h u r s t , C A 9 3 6 4 4 M a d e r a , C A 9 3 6 3 7 

S e p r o p o r c i o n a r á t r a n s p o r t e g r a t u i t o h a c i a y d e s d e l a 
a u d i e n c i a p ú b l i c a e n l a r u t a f i j a , R u t a 2 , d e M a d e r a M e t r o . 
S i l o s p a s a j e r o s n o p u e d e n v i a j a r e n l a r u t a f i j a d e b i d o a 
u n a d i s c a p a c i d a d , e l s e r v i c i o D i a l - A - R i d e ( D A R ) s e r á 
g r a t u i t o d e n t r o d e l o s l í m i t e s d e s e r v i c i o d e l a u t o b u s a l a 
a u d i e n c i a . L l a m e a M a d e r a M e t r o / D A R a l 5 5 9 - 6 6 1 - 7 4 3 3 

P r e s e n t a r s e e n p e r s o n a n o e s E S C A N E E 
o b l i g a t o r i o p a r a p a r t i c i p a r . S i n o ¡ C O N S I D E R E 
p u e d e a s i s t i r a l a a u d i e n c i a e n 
p e r s o n a , e n v í e s u s c o m e n t a r i o s T O M A R 
p o r e s c r i t o a l a d i r e c c i ó n d e N U E S T R A 
M C T C o e n v í e l o s p o r c o r r e o E N C U E S T A ! e l e c t r ó n i c o a : 
a m e l i a @ m a d e r a c t c . o r g A Q U Í 20 of 115



 

  

2019-20 CMAQ Lifeline and Grant Award List 

Application Type Applicant Project Description Project Cost 
CMAQ $ Local Match $ Total Project 

Cost 

Lifeline City of Chowchilla Robertson/Kings & Robertson/Trinity Alley Paving Project (currently unpaved) - Lifeline portion $60,783 $6,972 $67,755 

Lifeline Madera County Shoulder paving of 4 feet on each side of the roadway on Road 16 from SR 152 to Avenue 24 for a distance of .95 
miles $173,848 $22,524 $196,372 

Lifeline City of Madera Pedestrian facilities around Washington School $325,086 $42,914 $368,000 

Grant City of Chowchilla Robertson/Kings & Robertson/Trinity Alley Paving Project (currently unpaved) $637,438 $83,490 $720,928 

Grant City of Madera Alley Paving (currently unpaved) 10-15 locations throughout the City of Madera $610,000 $80,000 $690,000 

Grant Madera County Shoulder paving of 4 feet on each side of the roadway on Avenue 9 from Road 38 to Children's Boulevard SR 145 
for a distance of 2.84 miles $502,140 $65,058 $567,198 

Grant Madera County Shoulder paving of 4 feet on each side of the roadway on Avenue 7 from Road 30 1/2 to SR 145 for a distance of 3.5 
miles $640,494 $82,983 $723,477 

Grant Madera County Shoulder paving of 4 feet on each side of the roadway on Avenue 12 from Road 23 to Road 19 for a distance of 4 
miles $731,993 $94,837 $826,830 

Grant Madera County Shoulder paving of 4 feet on each side of the roadway on Avenue 18 1/2 from Golden State Boulevard to 5 miles 
west for a distance of 5 miles $884,049 $114,538 $998,587 

Grant Madera County Shoulder paving of 4 feet on each side of the roadway on Robertson Boulevard from SR 152 to Avenue 18 1/2 for a 
distance of 5.4 miles $997,340 $129,216 $1,126,556 

Grant City of Madera Pedestrian Bridge on Granada Avenue over the Fresno River $2,213,000 $287,000 $2,500,000 

Grant City of Chowchilla Riverside Avenue, 8th Street, & Kings Avenue Pedestrian Improvements Project $1,458,722 $188,993 $1,647,715 

Grant City of Madera One Zero Emission Transit Vehicle and 2 Electric Charging Stations at City Transit Center - Vehicle Replacement $518,785 $67,215 $586,000 

Grant City of Madera Traffic Signal on D Street and South Street $398,000 $52,000 $450,000 

Grant City of Madera Traffic Signal on Cleveland Avenue and Granada Drive $398,000 $52,000 $450,000 

Total: $10,549,678 $1,369,740 $11,919,418 

Return to Agenda

21 of 115



BEFORE 
THE COMMISSIONERS OF THE MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 

COMMISSION 
COUNTY OF MADERA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the matter of 

AUTHORIZATION FOR THE EXECUTION 
OF THE CERTIFICATIONS AND 
ASSURANCES AND AUTHORIZED 
AGENT FORMS FOR THE LOW CARBON 
TRANSIT OPERATIONS PROGRAM 
(LCTOP) FOR THE FOLLOWING 
PROJECTS 

Resolution No.: 20-01 

WHEREAS, the Madera County Transportation Commission is an eligible project 
sponsor and may receive state funding from the Low Carbon Transit Operations 
Program (LCTOP) for transit projects; and 

WHEREAS, the statutes related to state-funded transit projects require a local or 
regional implementing agency to abide by various regulations; and 

WHEREAS, Senate Bill 862 (2014) named the Department of Transportation 
(Department) as the administrative agency for the LCTOP; and 

WHEREAS, the Department has developed guidelines for the purpose of 
administering and distributing LCTOP funds to eligible project sponsors (local 
agencies); and 

WHEREAS, the Madera County Transportation Commission wishes to delegate 
authorization to execute these documents and any amendments thereto to Patricia 
Taylor, Executive Director. 

WHEREAS, the Madera County Transportation Commission wishes to 
implement the following LCTOP projects: 

CITY OF CHOWCHILLA 

Project Name: City of Chowchilla Transit Bus Stop 
Amount of LCTOP funds requested: $26,922 
Short description of project: The City of Chowchilla proposes to purchase and install 
bus stop enhancements 
Benefit to Priority Populations: There currently are no shelters or amenities at this 
location. This project will benefit low-income residents by providing accessible, 

Return to Agenda

22 of 115



Resolution 20-01 

attractive, safe bus stops with new amenities at bus stops where no improvements 
currently exist. 
 
CITY OF MADERA 
 
Project Name: Transit Enhancements Farebox Modernizations 
Amount of LCTOP funds requested: $124,327 
Short description of project: Farebox Modernization to Increase Ridership 
Benefit to Priority Populations: The proposed new transit vehicle enhancements on 
fixed route services in disadvantaged communities will increase convenience, reliability, 
and headway on Madera Area Express transit service. 
 
COUNTY OF MADERA 
 
Project Name: MCC Bus Stop Shelters & Amenities 
Amount of LCTOP funds requested: $147,418 
Short description of project: Purchase and install bus stop shelters and related  
amenities, including bus pads, lighting, signage, and safe turnouts. 
Benefit to priority populations: Project improves transit stations or stops within a 
disadvantages or low-income community to increase safety and comfort (e.g. lights, 
shelters, benches). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Madera 
County Transportation Commission that the fund recipient agrees to comply with all 
conditions and requirements set forth in the Certification and Assurances and the 
Authorized Agent documents and applicable statutes, regulations and guidelines for all 
LCTOP funded transit projects. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE FURTHER RESOLVED, that Patricia Taylor, 
Executive Director be authorized to execute all required documents of the LCTOP 
program and any Amendments thereto with the California Department of Transportation. 
 
  

23 of 115



Resolution 20-01 

 NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Madera County Transportation Commission that it hereby authorizes the submittal of 
the following project nominations(s) and allocation request(s) to the Department in 
FY19-2020 LCTOP funds. 
 
The foregoing resolution was adopted this 18th day of March 2020 by the following vote: 
 
 
Commissioner Andrew Medellin _____ 
Commissioner Max Rodriguez _____ 
Commissioner Waseem Ahmed _____ 
Commissioner Jose Rodriguez _____ 
Commissioner Tom Wheeler _____ 
Commissioner Brett Frazier _____ 

 
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Chairman, Madera County Transportation Commission 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Executive Director, Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

24 of 115



FEDERAL APPORTIONMENT EXCHANGE PROGRAM 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AGENCY 

District: 06 
Agency: Madera County Transportation Commission -RTPA 

Agreement No. X20-6138(049) 
AMS Aov ID:0620000100 

THIS AGREEMENT is made on ______, by Madera County Transportation Commission 
-RTPA, a Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) designated under Section 29532 of 
the California Government Code, and the State of California, acting by and through the 
Department of Transportation (STATE). 

WHEREAS, RTPA desires t0. assign RTPA's portion of federal apportionments made available to 
STATE for allocation to transportation projects in accordance with Section 182.6 of the Streets 
and Highways Code (Regional Surface Transportation Program/Regional Surface Transportation 
Block Grant Program [RSTP/RSTBGP] funds) in exchange for nonfederal State Highway Account 
funds: 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. As authorized by Section 182.6(g) of the Streets and Highways Code, RTPA agrees to assign 
to STATE the following portion of its estimated annual RSTP/RSTBGP apportionment: 

$1,783,912.00 for Fiscal Year 2019/2020 

The above referenced portion of RTPA's estimated annual RSTP/RSTBGP apportionment is equal 
to the estimated total RSTP/RSTBGP apportionment less (a) the estimated minimum annual 
RSTP/RSTBGP apportionment set for the County under Section 182.6(d)(2) of the Streets and 
Highways Code, (b) any Federal apportionments already obligated for projects not chargeable to 
said County's annual RSTP/RSTBGP minimum apportionment, and (c) those RSTP/RSTBGP 
apportionments RTPA has chosen to retain for future obligation. 

2. RTPA agrees the exchange for County's estimated annual RSTP/RSTBGP minimum 
apportionment under Section 182.6(d)(2) of the Streets and Highways Code will be paid by 
STATE directly to Madera County. 

For Caltrans Use Only 

I hereby Certify upon my own personal knowledge that budgeted funds are available for this 
encumbrance 

Accounting Officer I Date ,;I s-1-io I$ I 1 78-.; ~ '112 .(JO 

Page 1 of 4 RTPA (Rev. 04/10/2018) 
25 of 115

https://1,783,912.00


 

3. Subject to the availability of STATE funds following the receipt of an RTPA invoice evidencing 
RTPA's assignment of those estimated RSTP/RSTBGP funds under Section 1 to STATE, STATE 
agrees to pay to RTPA an amount not to exceed $1,783,912.00 of non-federal exchange funds 
("Funds") that equals the sum of the estimated RSTP/RSTBGP apportionment assigned to State in 
Section 1 above. 

4. RTPA agrees to allocate all of these Funds only for those projects implemented by cities, 
counties, and other public transportation agencies as are authorized under Article XIX of the 
California State Constitution, in accordance with the requirements of Section 182.6(d)(1) of the 
Streets and Highways Code. 

5. RTPA agrees to provide to STATE annually by each August 1 a list of all local project sponsors 
allocated Funds in the preceding fiscal year and the amounts allocated to each sponsor. 

6. RTPA agrees to require project sponsors receiving those Funds provided under this 
AGREEMENT to establish a special account for the purpose of depositing therein all payments 
received from RTPA pursuant to this Agreement: (a) for cities within their Special Gas Tax Street 
Improvement Fund, (b) for counties, within their County Road Fund, and (c) for all other sponsors, 
a separate account. 

7. RTPA agrees, in the event a project sponsor fails to use Funds received hereunder in 
accordance with the terms of this AGREEMENT, to require that project sponsor to return those 
exchange Funds to RTPA for credit to the account established under Section 6 above. In the 
event of any such requirement by STATE, RTPA shall provide written verification to STATE that 
the requested corrective action has been taken. 

8. STATE reserves the right to reduce the STATE Funds payment required hereunder to offset 
such additional obligations by the RTPA or any of its sponsoring agencies against any 
RSTP/RSTBGP federal apportionments as are chargeable to, but not included in, the assignment 
made under Section 1 above. 

9. COST PRINCIPLES 
A) RTPA agrees to comply with, and require all project sponsors to comply with Office of 
Management and Budget Supercircular 2 CFR 200, Cost Principles for State and Local 
Government and the Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative 
Agreements to State and Local Governments. 

B) RTPA will assure that its fund recipients will be obligated to agree that (A) Contract Cost 
Principles and Procedures, 48 CFR, Federal Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31, 
Et Seq., shall be used to determine the allowability of individual project cost items and (B) Those 
parties shall comply with Federal Administrative Procedures in accordance with 2 CFR 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements To State And Local 
Governments. Every sub-recipient receiving funds as a contractor or sub-contractor under this 
agreement shall comply with Federal administrative procedures in accordance with 2 CFR 200, 
Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State and Local 
Governments. 

Page 2  of 4 RTPA (Rev. 04/10/2018) 26 of 115

https://1,783,912.00


C) Any fund expenditures for costs for which RTPA has received payment or credit that are 
determined by subsequent audit to be unallowable under Office of Management and Budget 
Supercircular 2 CFR 200 are subject to repayment by RTPA to STATE. Should RTPA fail to 
reimburse fund moneys due STATE within 30 days of demand, or within such other period as may 
be agreed In writing between the parties, hereto, STATE is authorized to intercept and withhold 
future payments due RTPA and STATE or any third-party source, including but not limited to, the 
State Treasurer, The State Controller and the CTC. The implementation of the Supercircular will 
cancel 49 Cfr Part 18. 

10. THIRD PARTY CONTRACTING 
A) RTPA shall not award a construction contract over $10,000 or other contracts over $25,000 
[excluding professional service contracts of the type which are required to be procured in 
accordance with Government Code Sections 4525 (d), (e) and (f)] on the basis of a 
noncompetitive negotiation for work to be performed using Funds without the prior written approval 
of STATE. 

B) Any subcontract or agreement entered into by RTPA as a result of disbursing Funds received 
pursuant to this AGREEMENT shall contain all of the fiscal provisions of this Agreement; and shall 
mandate that travel and per diem reimbursements and third-party contract reimbursements to 
subcontractors will be allowable as project costs only after those costs are incurred and paid for by 
the subcontractors. 

C) In addition to the above, the preaward requirements of third party contractor/consultants with 
RTPA should be consistent with Local Program Procedures as published by STATE. 

11. ACCOUNTING SYSTEM 
RTPA, its contractors and subcontractors shall establish and maintain an accounting system and 
records that properly accumulate and segregate Fund expenditures by line item. The accounting 
system of RTPA, its contractors and all subcontractors shall conform to Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP), enable the determination of incurred costs at interim points of 
completion, and provide support for reimbursement payment vouchers or invoices. 

12. RIGHT TO AUDIT 
For the purpose of determining compliance with this AGREEMENT and other matters connected 
with the performance of RTPA's contracts with third parties, RTPA, RTPA's contractors and 
subcontractors and STATE shall each maintain and make available for inspection all books, 
documents, papers, accounting records, and other evidence pertaining to the performance of such 
contracts, including, but not limited to, the costs of administering those various contracts. All of 
the above referenced parties shall make such materials available at their respective offices at all 
reasonable times for three years from the date of final payment of Funds to RTPA. STATE, the 
California State Auditor, or any duly authorized representative of STATE or the United States 
Department of Transportation, shall each have access to any books, records, and documents that 
are pertinent for audits, examinations, excerpts, and transactions, and RTPA shall furnish copies 
thereof if requested. 

Page 3  of 4 RTPA (Rev. 04/10/2018) 27 of 115



13. TRAVEL AND SUBSISTENCE 
Payments to only RTPA for travel and subsistence expenses of RTPA forces and its 
subcontractors claimed for reimbursement or applied as local match credit shall not exceed rates 
authorized to be paid exempt non-represented State employees under current State Department 
of Personnel Administration (DPA) rules. 
If the rates invoiced are in excess of those authorized DPA rates, then RTPA is responsible for the 
cost difference and any overpayments shall be reimbursed to STATE on demand. 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
Department of Transportation Madera County Transportation Commission -RTPA 

By: ________________________ By: ___________________________ 
Office of Project Implementation 
Division of Local Assistance Title: _________________________ 

Date: ______________________ Date: _________________________ 

Page 4  of 4 RTPA (Rev. 04/10/2018) 28 of 115



BEFORE 
THE COMMISSIONERS OF THE  

MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
COUNTY OF MADERA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the matter of 
REGIONAL SURFACE TRANSPORTATION BLOCK 
GRANT PROGRAM – 2019-20 RTPA EXCHANGE 
AGREEMENT FOR PROJECT X20-6138(049) 

Resolution No.: 20-02 

WHEREAS, the Madera County Transportation Commission is the Regional Transportation Planning 
Agency for Madera County pursuant to state law; and 

WHEREAS, the Madera County Transportation Commission receives a federal apportionment for the 
Regional Surface Transportation Program/Regional Surface Transportation Block Grant Program 
(RSTP/RSTBGP) that is be allocated to projects implemented by cities, counties, and other public 
transportation agencies as are authorized under Article XIX of the California State Constitution, in 
accordance with the requirements of Section 182.6(d)(1) of the Streets and Highway Code;  

WHEREAS, pursuant to State authorization under Section 182.6(d)(2) of the Streets and Highway Code, 
the Madera County Transportation Commission can exchange the federal apportionment for nonfederal 
State Highway Account funds paid directly by State to the Madera County Transportation Commission; 

WHEREAS, it is required that the Madera County Transportation Commission enter into a Funds Transfer 
Agreement with the State of California to release the Madera County Transportation Commission its 
estimated annual RSTP/RSTBGP apportionment: 

$1,783,912.00 for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Madera County Transportation Commission Executive 
Director is authorized to execute the Regional Surface Transportation Fund 2019-2020 Exchange 
Agreement. 

The foregoing resolution was adopted this 18th day of March 2020 by the following vote: 

Commissioner Max Rodriguez _____ 
Commissioner Jose Rodriguez _____ 
Commissioner Waseem Ahmed _____ 
Commissioner Andy Medellin _____ 
Commissioner Tom Wheeler _____ 
Commissioner Brett Frazier _____ 

Return to Agenda

29 of 115



Resolution 20-02 

 
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Chairman, Madera County Transportation Commission 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________ 
Executive Director, Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

30 of 115



 

 

 
 

 
 

   
 
 

   

   

   

    

 
    

 

    

       

         

        

    

  

 

    
 

Return to Agenda 

STAFF REPORT AGENDA ITEM 4.A 

DATE: March 18, 2020 

TO: MCTC Policy Board 

FROM: Patricia Taylor, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Valley Voice Sacramento Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Information and discussion 

SUMMARY: The annual San Joaquin Valley Regional Planning Agencies Valley Voice trip to 

Sacramento was held on March 11, 2020. Executive Director Patricia Taylor and Supervisor 

Robert Poythress attended the trip on behalf of the Commission.  Elected officials and MPO 

staff from the eight San Joaquin Valley counties met with representatives from the Assembly, 

Senate, and statewide agencies to advocate for the priority issues identified in the Valley 

Legislative Platform. 

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no impact to MCTC’s 2019-20 Fiscal Year Budget. 

31 of 115



  
 

  
 

 
 
   
    
    
  
     
    
   
   
  

   
   
   
  

      
  
    
    
   
    
     
     
   
    
  
 

    
 

    
 

  
 

  
 

 

     
   

  
 

    
 

   
    

MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

EXECUTIVE MINUTES 

Date: February 19, 2020 
Time: 3:04 pm 
Place: MCTC Conference Room 

Members Present: Chairman, Max Rodriguez, Supervisor, Madera County 
Vice Chairman, Jose Rodriguez, Councilmember, City of Madera 
Tom Wheeler, Supervisor, Madera County 
Alt. Robert Poythress, Supervisor, Madera County 

Members Absent: Waseem Ahmed, Councilmember, City of Chowchilla 
Brett Frazier, Supervisor, Madera County 
Andrew Medellin, Mayor, City of Madera 

Policy Advisory Committee: Above Members, Michael Navarro, Caltrans District 06, Senior Transportation Planner 

MCTC Staff: Patricia Taylor, Executive Director 
Troy McNeil, Deputy Director/Fiscal Supervisor 
Dylan Stone, Principal Regional Planner 
Jeff Findley, Principal Regional Planner 
Amelia Davies, Associate Regional Planner 
Evelyn Espinosa, Associate Regional Planner 
Sandy Ebersole, Administrative Analyst 
Sheila Kingsley, Office Assistant 

MCTC sitting as the Transportation Policy Committee 

1. Call to Order

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Comment

None

Chairman Rodriguez changed the order of the Agenda. Items 8 & 9 Authority – Administrative Consent items were 
moved to the top of the Agenda.  See page 10 for details. 

4. Transportation Consent Items

A. 2020 San Joaquin Blueprint Awards Call for Nominations

A Call for Nominations for the 2020 San Joaquin Valley Blueprint Awards has been announced.
Candidate projects and individuals in all jurisdictions within the San Joaquin Valley are eligible for

Page | 1 

Return to Agenda

32 of 115

http://www.fresnostate.edu/academics/oced/documents/NEW%20PACKET_2020%20Blueprint%20Awards_Call%20for%20Nominations%203.pdf


 
 

 

  
 

     
  

 
   

  
     

 
     

 
    

     
      

   
        

     
   

                 
              

  
    

    
         

   
  

 
    

  
  

 
 

 
   

 
     

   
   

 
        

  
  
       
  
   
   

Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2020 

nomination. The deadline for nominations is March 27, 2020 by noon. Awards will be presented at 
the 14th Annual San Joaquin Valley Policy Conference. 

Action: Information and Discussion. 

B. Initiate FY 2020-21 Unmet Transit Needs Public Hearing Process 

The Transportation Development Act (TDA) requires that the MCTC Policy Board determine that 
public transportation needs within Madera County will be reasonably met in FY 2020-21 prior to 
approving claims of Local Transportation Funds (LTF) for streets and roads.  The MCTC’s Social Service 
Transportation Advisory Council (SSTAC) is responsible for evaluating unmet transit needs.  Each year 
the SSTAC begins the process of soliciting comments from the public by sending letters to agencies 
and individuals interested in providing feedback on their public transportation needs within Madera 
County. The request for comments letters will be mailed late February 2020. 

MCTC’s Unmet Transit Needs public hearing is scheduled as follows: 
PUBLIC HEARING – Wednesday, April 22, 2020 at 3:00 p.m. 
Location: Madera County Transportation Commission Board Room 
2001 Howard Road, Suite 201, Madera, CA 

The Madera Area Express will provide fixed-route rides, at no cost, to the stop on Howard near 
Schnoor (Route 2) for the Unmet Transit Needs hearing. If passengers are unable to ride the fixed 
route because of disability, free Dial-A-Ride (DAR) service to the hearing will be provided. It is highly 
encouraged that passenger schedule a minimum of 48 hours in advance and understand that 
space/availability may be limited for DAR service. 

A Spanish language interpreter will be available for those who wish to testify in Spanish.  A public 
notice will be printed in the local newspapers and fliers will be distributed throughout the 
community publicizing the hearing. 

Action: Information and Discussion. 

C. Safety Performance Measure Target (PM-1) Acceptance 

The Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) and the Fixing America’s Surface 
Transportation Act (FAST Act) require metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs) to set targets for a 
series of transportation-related performance measures. Last year, the 2018 safety targets (PM1) 
were established and approved and included in the 2018 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). Since it 
is an annual target, MCTC’s 2019 safety performance targets need to be set by February 2019 for the 
following five performance measures: 

1. Number of fatalities 
2. Rate of fatalities per 100 million vehicle miles traveled (VMT) 
3. Number of serious injuries 
4. Rate of serious injuries per 100 million VMT 
5. Number of non-motorized fatalities and serious injuries 

2 | P  a g e  

33 of 115



 
 

 

  
 

 
    

      
      

        
     

 
 

    
 

  
      

 
  

     
 

 
     

    
   

 
     

   
       

  
 

   
 

       
 

     
    

 
 

     
    

   
 

     
     

      
 

 
   

 

Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2020 

MCTC Staff participated in the 2020 PM1 statewide coordination efforts. During the workshops and 
webinars, the consensus was to select use a target line of reaching zero fatalities by 2050. This 
scenario is similar to the goals adopted by several States in the nation of Toward Zero Deaths TZD by 
2050 (with 2016 numbers as the baseline numbers). The statewide target aims for a 3.03 percent 
annual reduction for fatalities and 1.5 percent annual reduction for serious injuries. Included is the 
analysis with MCTC’s targets. 

Action:  Staff recommends adopting the statewide targets for all five safety performance measures 
for 2020 

D. 2019 Federal Transportation Improvement Program (FTIP) Amendment No. 9-Administrative Modification 

Amendment No. 9 (Type 1 Administrative Modification) to the 2019 Federal Transportation 
Improvement Program. This amendment updates one (1) County of Madera Section 5311 project for 
Preventative Maintenance, per County of Madera request. 

Amendment No. 9 meets all applicable transportation planning requirements per 23 CFR Part 450 
and 40 CFR Part 93. These projects and/or project phases are consistent with the adopted 2018 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), as amended. 

The MCTC Public Participation Plan does not require a public review and comment period for Type 1 
Administrative Amendments. The MCTC Policy Board has delegated MPO approval of Type 1 
Administrative Amendments to its Executive Director. State approval has also been delegated to the 
MCTC Executive Director. 

Action: Ratify 2019 Federal Transportation Improvement Program Amendment No. 9. 

E. 2019 Federal Transportation Improvement Program (FTIP) Amendment No. 10-Administrative Modification 

Amendment No. 10 (Type 1 Administrative Modification) to the 2019 Federal Transportation 
Improvement Program. This amendment updates the City of Chowchilla Section 5311 project for 
Operating Assistance. 

Amendment No. 10 meets all applicable transportation planning requirements per 23 CFR Part 450 
and 40 CFR Part 93. These projects and/or project phases are consistent with the adopted 2018 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), as amended. 

The MCTC Public Participation Plan does not require a public review and comment period for Type 1 
Administrative Amendments. The MCTC Policy Board has delegated MPO approval of Type 1 
Administrative Amendments to its Executive Director. State approval has also been delegated to the 
MCTC Executive Director. 

Action: Ratify 2019 Federal Transportation Improvement Program Amendment No. 10 

3 | P  a g e  

34 of 115



 
 

 

  
 

     
       

  
  

  
  

    
 

 
 

     
    

 
 

    
   

       
    

 
 

   
   

     
  

 
   

   
  

  
   

 
      

 
  

  
  

  
 

    
   

 
  

    
      

Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2020 

Transportation Consent Calendar Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Wheeler, seconded by 
Commissioner Poythress to approve the Transportation Consent Calendar items (A - E).  A vote was called, and 
the motion carried. 

5. TRANSPORTATION ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEM 

A. San Joaquin Valley Joint Powers Authority Commuter Rail Update 

California High Speed Rail Authority 

On February 12, 2020, the California High Speed Rail Authority (CHSRA) released the draft 2020 
Business Plan. The Business Plan is updated biennially and submitted by the CHSRA to the California 
Legislature.  The Business Plan will have a two-month public review and comment period ending on 
April 12, 2020. 

A key highlight of the Draft 2020 Business Plan is continued promotion of completing the Merced to 
Bakersfield San Joaquin Valley expansion first highlighted by Governor Newsom in his 2019 State of 
the State Address.  The plan is for the 119-mile segment in the Central Valley to expand to 171 miles 
of electrified high-speed rail connecting Merced, Fresno and Bakersfield with additional stops to 
serve Madera and Kings/Tulare. 

After the release of the CHSRA 2019 Project Update Report, their Board of Directors requested that 
two additional studies be performed to provide additional due diligence for decisions related to 
adopting an expanded program baseline budget and schedule based on available funds. These 
studies included the: 

• Business Case Assessment Study: The Board’s Finance and Audit Committee requested the 
Authority’s financial advisor, KPMG, develop a Business Case Assessment Study for the proposed 
Merced to Bakersfield interim high-speed rail service. The study evaluated a range of issues 
including funding and affordability, ridership and revenue forecasts, business model, commercial 
considerations, risk and mitigation strategy, and socio-economic and other benefits. 

• Side-by-Side Study, Quantitative Report: The Board of Directors requested that the early train 
operator (ETO) prepare an expanded analysis comparing the Merced to Bakersfield investment 
recommendation to other comparable early investment options in the San Francisco to Gilroy 
corridor and the Burbank to Anaheim corridor. The Side-by Side Study, Quantitative Report, 
evaluated a range of costs and benefits including capital and operating costs, ridership, GHG 
reductions and congestion relief. 

Together, these two studies along with their recommendations affirm the CHSRA proposal to invest 
the projected $4.8 billion in the Merced to Bakersfield line. 

KPMG’s Business Case Assessment study concluded that allocating the Authority’s remaining funding 
to Merced-Bakersfield allows the Authority to meet one of its key objectives—initiating high-speed 
rail service as soon as possible.  Additionally, the study alludes to the socio-economic benefit, 

4 | P  a g e  

35 of 115



 
 

 

  
 

     
 

   
 

   
  

   
   

 
    

   
   

 
 

     
   

   
   

 
    

 
 

 
 

   
  

   
    

   
 

 
  

    
   

  
   

   
 

  
      

  
   

     
    

Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2020 

enhanced mobility, utilization of the Authority’s assets and infrastructure, reduced state costs for 
commuter rail in the San Joaquin Valley, affordability, return on investments and the need for 
additional investments from systems currently serving the San Joaquin Valley. 

The ETO Side-by-Side Study, Quantitative Report compared the recommended high-speed rail 
investment between Bakersfield and Merced to other potential early investment options in the San 
Francisco to Gilroy corridor and the Burbank to Anaheim corridor. The ETO concluded that the high-
speed rail investment in the Central Valley corridor provides the highest benefits, requires the least 
additional system investment and reduces, rather than increases, the operating subsidy of the 
system, including regional rail operators.  The Northern California and Southern California corridors 
require considerable additional regional investments, whereas, the Merced to Bakersfield corridor 
requires only up to $500 million in additional regional funding to achieve significantly greater 
benefits. 

Also highlighted in the Draft 2020 Business Plan is the importance of and continued planning of the 
connection between the Silicon Valley and the San Joaquin Valley.  The plan estimates a cost of $33 
billion to achieve the system expanding 287-miles between Bakersfield and San Jose.  Addition 
funding must be secured to see the Valley to Valley connection come to fruition. 

The 2020 Draft Business Plan can be accessed via the flowing link: 
https://hsr.ca.gov/about/business_plans/2020/ 

San Joaquin Joint Powers Authority 

In 2012, local and regional agencies throughout most of the San Joaquin Corridor (Bakersfield-
Fresno-Modesto-Stockton-Sacramento-Oakland) sponsored and supported Assembly Bill 1779 (AB 
1779). This bill enabled regional government agencies to form the San Joaquin Joint Powers 
Authority (SJJPA) to take over the administration and management of the existing San Joaquin Rail 
Service from the state. 

The 2016 CHSRA Business Plan highlighted a future joint Amtrak and High-Speed Train station in 
Madera.  Upon the release of the Plan, MCTC collaborated with its member agencies, SJJPA, CHSRA 
and the California State Transportation Agency regarding the joint station inclusion.  The results of 
this collaboration are a new station location off Avenue 12 to support the potential for greater 
ridership, transit-oriented development, improve connectivity and accessibility for transit and 
automobiles. The new station would serve as the co-located with a planned HSR station and provide 
a direct connection between Amtrak San Joaquins and high-speed rail trains. 

On April 26, 2018 California State Transportation Agency announced that the SJJPA and San Joaquin 
Valley Rail Committee applied for and was successful in being awarded $500.5 million of Transit and 
Intercity Capital Program (TIRCP) funding to expand San Joaquins and ACE services. As part of this 
service, the Sacramento Subdivision will be upgraded between Sacramento and Stockton to allow for 
passenger rail service with up to six new stations along the corridor. Additionally, new layover 
facilities will be constructed in Natomas (in Sacramento) and Fresno, and two trainsets may be 

5 | P  a g e  

36 of 115

https://hsr.ca.gov/about/business_plans/2020/
https://hsr.ca.gov/about/business_plans/2020/


 
 

 

  
 

    
    

   
 

     
     

 
  

 
    

 
   

 
  

   
    

   
   

   
 

    
   

    
 
  

   
   

 
 

   
    

     
  

    
   

     
 

  
 

   
 

  
  

   
 

Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2020 

procured for the expanded service. Additional projects to be funded with these funds include 
additional parking, a new station in Oakley, and a relocated Madera Station. The application 
identifies $26.7 million of the TIRCP award for the Madera Station relocation. 

SJJPA Manger of Regional Initiatives, Dan Leavitt, provided an overview of the anticipated 2020 
activities pertaining to the Madera Amtrak Station environmental review process. 

Action: Information and Discussion 

B. SR 233 Corridor Study Existing Conditions Report 

The Madera County Transportation Commission (MCTC) commissioned a Corridor Planning 
Study/Downtown Master Plan of SR 233/Robertson Boulevard from SR 152 to Rd 19, with an 
emphasis area in Downtown Chowchilla. The project is divided into two (2) phases. Phase 1 of this 
project included a public participation and outreach plan development to ultimately result in the 
development of a Master Plan for SR 233 in Phase 2. As an initial component of the master plan 
development, an Existing Conditions Report was developed. The project has been carried out 
through a joint collaboration of stakeholders, including community groups, Caltrans District 6, City of 
Chowchilla, Consultant Services, and MCTC. 

This project is funded by the SB-1 Sustainable Communities Planning Grant administered by Caltrans. 
The objective of the SB-1 Sustainable Communities Planning Grant program is to encourage local and 
regional multimodal transportation and land use planning that furthers the region’s Regional 
Transportation Plan/Sustainable Community Strategy (RTP/SCS), contributes to the State’s 
greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction targets and other State goals, including but not limited to, the goals 
and best practices cited in the 2017 RTP Guidelines, addresses the needs of disadvantaged 
communities, and also assists in achieving the Caltrans Mission and Grant Program Overarching 
Objectives. 

MCTC and the City of Chowchilla collaborated closely on this project due to a parallel SB-1 
Sustainable Communities Planning Grant the City was awarded, the Truck Route Study. Included is 
the Existing Conditions Report, appendices can be provided upon request.  Next steps will be to 
continue community outreach and Stakeholder Advisory meetings for phase II development of this 
grant: SR 233/ Robertson Boulevard Planning Study- Downtown Core Master Plan. Presentations of 
the Existing Conditions Report will be done during Chowchilla’s Planning Commission on February 
19th and to Chowchilla’s City Council on February 25th. 

Action: Information and Discussion. 

C. State Route 41 Joint Fresno Madera Sustainable Corridor Study 

MCTC staff was contacted by Fresno Council of Governments regarding collaborating in a joint 
sustainable corridor study of the State Route (SR) 41 corridor between Southeast Madera County and 
the City of Fresno. 

6 | P  a g e  

37 of 115



 
 

 

  
 

   
  

   
    

   
   

  
 

 
   

    
   

     
 

      
     
 

 
       
      

       
   
   
      
     
        

 
      

 
      
       
 

 
  

 
     

 
     

 
 

   
 
 
 

Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2020 

The Fresno-Madera Sustainable Corridor Study will determine future transportation needs of the 
northern portion of State Route (SR) 41 that runs through the core of the City of Fresno and 
continues north into the future-developed area of Madera County. This study will also include the 
major connecting corridor that serves residents of both counties, Avenue 9, which links SR41 and 
SR99 in southern Madera County. The joint study will provide direction for both counties as both the 
residential population and the need for sustainable transportation improvements continues to 
increase along the corridor. 

The study would take a comprehensive look at Travel Demand Management (TDM) strategies along 
the corridor, including how to best integrate strategies such as HOV express lanes, dedicated transit 
lanes, and active transportation features into the corridor to promote efficiency and reduce our 
environmental impact as the region continues to grow. The study proposes to develop a bi-county 
traffic model to forecast traffic growth along the corridor. 

MCTC has been asked to contribute $50,000 towards a total project cost of $400,000.  Fresno COG 
staff would be the lead agency for the study with plans to retain a consultant for the study 
development. 

Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Wheeler, seconded by Commissioner Jose Rodriguez to 
approve participation in the SR 41 Joint Fresno Madera Sustainable Corridor Study with Fresno COG 

in the amount of $50,000 from the carryover funds currently programmed for the model update project 
provided by Kings County Association of Governments. It was also recommended that staff 
prepare a MOU or Agreement with Fresno COG outlining the purpose of the study and ensure that 
the model being developed for this effort will only be used for the purpose of the study and not for 
any litigation, including but not limited to, CEQA documents, other planning or engineering studies, 
general or other plan updates. A vote was called and the motion carried. 

6. REAFFIRM ALL ACTIONS TAKEN WHILE SITTING AS THE TRANSPORTATION POLICY COMMITTEE 

Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Poythress, seconded by Commissioner Wheeler to reaffirm all 
actions taken while sitting as the Transportation Policy Committee. A vote was called, and the motion 
carried. 

7. ADMINISTRATIVE CONSENT ITEMS 

A. Executive Minutes – January 22, 2020 

Included in the Commissioner’s packet was copy of the January 22, 2020 Executive Minutes of the 
Policy Board. 

Action: Approve Executive Minutes of January 22, 2020. 

7 | P  a g e  

38 of 115



 
 

 

  
 

      
   

 
      

     
        

       
    

  
 

     
  

  
      
 

 
     

       
  

     
 

    
 

 
  

 
         

 
 

    
 

 
    

 
   

 
       

   
     

 
 

   
 

Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2020 

B. Transportation Development Act (TDA): Local Transportation Fund (LTF), State Transit Assistance (STA). and 
State of Good Repair (SGR) 2020-21 Estimates 

Prior to February 1 of each year, the county auditor provides MCTC an estimate of monies to be 
available for apportionment and allocation during the ensuing fiscal year. The estimate for FY 2020-
21 is $4,720,998. The estimate includes monies anticipated to be deposited in the fund during the 
ensuing fiscal year. The county auditor makes an estimate from such data including those which may 
be furnished by the State Board of Equalization. The county auditor will furnish a revised or updated 
estimate of funds available when requested by MCTC staff. 

State Transit Assistance (STA): Pursuant to Public Utilities Code Section 99312.7, the State 
Controller is directed to send a preliminary estimate of STA Funds to each transportation planning 
agency.  For fiscal year 2020-21, there is $692,253,000 budgeted according to the most current 
information from the State Controller’s Office. The STA allocation estimate for Madera County is 
$1,415,521. 

State of Good Repair (SGR): Pursuant to Public Utilities Code Section 99312.1(c), the State Controller 
is directed to send an estimate of SGR Funds to each transportation planning agency. For fiscal year 
2020-21, there is $110,746,000 budgeted according to the most current information from the State 
Controller’s Office. The SGR allocation estimate for Madera County is $226,454. 

MCTC staff advised prospective claimants of the estimated area apportionments within Madera 
County. 

Action: Information and Discussion Only. 

C. Transportation Development Act (LTF, STA) – Allocation, LTF Resolution 19-10 Amendment No. 1, STA 
Resolution 19-11 Amendment No. 1 

The City of Madera requested to carryover funds from FY 2018-19 and reallocate their 
apportionments. 

Action: Approve LTF Resolution 19-10 Amendment No. 1, STA Resolution 19-11 Amendment No. 1 

D. Revising Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures Manual 

Some revisions have been made to the Accounting and Financial Policies and Procedures Manual. 
The revisions include an update to the meal per diem rates (based upon updated federal 
reimbursement rates), updates to position titles to be consistent with current job titles, and some 
minor grammatical corrections. 

Action: Approve Revised Accounting & Financial Policies and Procedures Manual 

8 | P  a g e  

39 of 115



 
 

 

  
 

      
        

  
 

   
 

    
  

     
   

    
    

  
 

  
 

 
   

    
 

  
        

 
 

   
 

   
 

   
    

  
 

  
 

 
   

    
   
   
    

 
   

    
 

  

Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2020 

Administrative Consent Calendar Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Poythress, seconded by 
Commissioner Wheeler to approve the Administrative Consent Calendar (Items A-D).  A vote was called and 
the motion carried. 

8. ADMINISTRATIVE ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Draft 2020-21 Overall Work Program and Budget 

Included on MCTC’s website is the DRAFT 2020-21 MCTC Overall Work Program (OWP) and Budget. 
This document is prepared annually pursuant to Caltrans guidelines and is required to be submitted 
to Caltrans, FHWA and FTA. The OWP discusses the MCTC, its organizational structure, regional 
planning issues, and presents work element descriptions and budgets.  Following review, the OWP 
will be brought before the Commission for adoption at its April 2020 meeting. 

The DRAFT 2020-21 MCTC Overall Work Program (OWP) is available for download at: 
https://www.maderactc.org/finance/page/overall-work-program 

The Annual Group Meeting, which includes the federal and state agency review group that meets 
with MCTC staff, was conducted on December 16, 2019 to help prepare for the FY 2020-21 OWP 

Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Poythress, seconded by Commissioner Wheeler to authorize 
circulation of Draft 2020-21 MCTC Overall Work Program for agency review. A vote was called and the 
motion carried. 

B. FY 2019-Overall Work Program and Budget Amendment No. 2 

Enclosed in the Board packet was a copy of the letter to Caltrans requesting an amendment to the 
Overall Work Program & Budget, a copy of the amended budget, an amended OWP spreadsheet, and 
the amended work elements.  The revised Budget is $1,994,439 (an increase of $41,000 from 
previously amended budget). The amendment reflects funds that have been added to purchase new 
Server hardware, software, and other affiliated costs, and adjustments for actual costs versus 
budgeted. 

The amendment is recognized in the following categories: 

Revenues – (Increase $41,000) 
• FHWA PL Carryover – increase $26,295 
• FTA 5303 Carryover – increase $2,636 
• TDA Carryover – increase $12,411 
• MCTA – decrease $342 

Indirect Costs – (Increase $41,000) 
• Technology Related Equipment & Repairs – increase $41,000 

Other Direct Costs – (No change) 
9 | P  a g e  

40 of 115

https://www.maderactc.org/finance/page/overall-work-program
https://www.maderactc.org/finance/page/overall-work-program


 
 

 

  
 

    
    

 
      

       
      

      
        

     
        

  
 

      
      

 
  

 
    

  
  
  

    
 

   
 

    
      

   
 

    
 

    
       

 
  

  
   

 
   

  
 

   
 

       
       

 

Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2020 

• MCTA Project Development Costs – decrease $2,000 
• Other MCTA Costs – increase $2,000 

The amendment is reflected in the following OWP Work Elements: 100 – Regional Transportation 
Plan; 101 – Performance Measures; 110 – Regional Planning Database; 111 – Traffic Monitoring 
Program; 112 – Traffic Modeling; 113 – Air Quality Transportation Planning; 120 – Goods Movement 
and Highway Planning; 122 – Project Coordination & Financial Programming; 130 – Public 
Transportation; 140 – Other Modal Elements; 150 – Public Participation Program; 151 – Alternative 
Transportation Activities; 200 – Transportation Program Development; 901 – Transportation Funds 
Administration; 902 – Overall Work Program and Budget; 907 – Board Cost & Other Expenses;  910 – 
MCTA Administration 

Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Wheeler, seconded by Commissioner Poythress to approve 
FY 2019-20 OWP Budget Amendment No. 2. A vote was called and the motion carried. 

MCTC Sitting as the Madera County 2006 Transportation Authority 

9. AUTHORITY – CONSENT ITEMS 

None 

10. AUTHORITY – ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. MCTA FY-19 Audit Report 

MCTA received the Measure “T” Audit Report for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2019 for the Madera 
County Transportation Authority. This report was completed in accordance with Section 99245 of 
the Public Utilities Code by Price, Paige, and Company. 

Staff was pleased to report that there are no adverse findings. 

Action: Upon motion by Commissioner Wheeler, seconded by Commissioner Poythress to accept FY 
18-19 MCTA Audit Report. A vote was called and the motion carried. 

11. Miscellaneous 

A. Items from Caltrans 

Michael Navarro, Caltrans District 06 Senior Transportation Planner, provided a brief update on the local 
projects in Madera County. 

B. Items from Staff 

Patricia Taylor, MCTC Executive Director updated the Board of the upcoming meeting in the MCTC Conference 
Room with Congressman Costa, scheduled for Thursday, February 20th at noon.  Secretary Kim, CalSTA, will 
also be in attendance. 

10 | P  a  g e  

41 of 115



 
 

 

 

  

  

  

 

 
 

 

Meeting Minutes 
February 19, 2020 

C. Items from Commissioners 

This time was reserved for Commissioner’s to inquire about specific projects. 

12. Adjournment 

Meeting adjourned at 5:01 pm 

Next meeting scheduled for Wednesday March 18, 2020. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Patricia S. Taylor 
Executive Director 
Madera County Transportation Commission 

11 | P  a  g e  

42 of 115



Version 03-2020 

Return to Agenda

43 of 115



Version 03-2020 

  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

VOLUME I – TDA OVERVIEW AND BACKGROUND 
 
 

CHAPTER 1 - INTRODUCTION .............................................................................................................. 1 

1.1  Guidebook Purpose ................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.2  TDA Overview ..................................................................................................................................... 1 

1.3  Governing Legislation and Source of Information ............................................................................... 3 

CHAPTER 2 - HOW TDA FUNDS ARE ALLOCATED .................................................................................. 4 

2.1 Who Can Use the Money? ................................................................................................................... 4 

2.2 Local Transportation Fund – Uses and Allocation Process .................................................................. 4 

2.3 State Transit Assistance Funds - Uses and Allocation Process ............................................................. 8 

CHAPTER 3 - TRANSIT CLAIMS ............................................................................................................... 10 

3.1 Eligible Transit Claims ......................................................................................................................... 10 

3.2 Claimant Eligibility Requirements ...................................................................................................... 13 

3.3 Amount of LTF and STA Funds That can be Claimed for Transit ........................................................ 19 

3.4 Reporting Requirements ................................................................................................................... 20 

CHAPTER 4 - BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN CLAIMS ................................................................................ 22 

4.1 Eligible Projects .................................................................................................................................. 22 

4.2 Eligibility Requirements ..................................................................................................................... 23 

4.3 Amount Available for Use .................................................................................................................. 23 

4.4 Reporting Requirements ................................................................................................................... 24 

CHAPTER 5 - OTHER CLAIMS AND THE UNMET TRANSIT NEEDS PROCESS ............................................ 25 

5.1 Eligible Projects .................................................................................................................................. 25 

5.2 Eligibility Requirements ..................................................................................................................... 25 

5.3 Amount Available for Use – Unmet Transit Needs ............................................................................ 25 

5.4 Reporting Requirements ................................................................................................................... 27 

44 of 115



VOLUME II – MCTC TDA CLAIMS PROCESS 
 

CHAPTER 6 - FILING A TDA APPLICATION/CLAIM ................................................................................. 1 

6.1 TDA Application instructions and Required Documentation ................................................................ 1 

6.2 Other Claim Policies ............................................................................................................................ 4 

CHAPTER 7 - MCTC TDA CLAIM SCHEDULE ........................................................................................... 5 

CHAPTER 8 - MANAGEMENT OF THE TDA PROGRAM ........................................................................... 6 

8.1 Appropriating and Allocating Funds .................................................................................................... 6 

8.2 Summary of Important Report Dates .................................................................................................. 7 

8.3 Required Audits and Reports .............................................................................................................. 7 

8.4 Guidelines for Audit of TDA Compliance ............................................................................................ 9 

CHAPTER 9 - PRODUCTIVITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM ...................................................................... 12 

9.1 What is a Productivity Improvement Program? ................................................................................. 12 

9.2 How are Recommendations Developed? ........................................................................................... 12 

9.3 What Happens if an Operator Does Not Follow up on Recommendations? ...................................... 13 

9.4 How is Progress Toward Meeting the Recommendations Tracked? ................................................. 13 
 
 

APPENDICES 
APPENDIX A - Application Forms  
APPENDIX B - Glossary of Terms 
APPENDIX C - Social Service Transportation Advisory Council Rules 

 

FIGURES 
Volume I 
Figure 2-1 Local Agencies that Can Use Local Transportation Funds ............................................................. 4 
Figure 2-2 Applicable Claimant Categories ......................................................................................................... 4 
Figure 2-3 LTF Allocation Purposes and Priorities for Madera County ........................................................... 6 
Figure 2-4 STA Funding Purposes Applicable in Madera County..................................................................... 8 
Figure 3-1(a)(b) Eligible TDA Statutes to File Transit Claims .......................................................................... 10 
Figure 3-2 LTF Transit Claim Decision Trees ..................................................................................................... 12 
Volume II 
Figure 6-1 Eligibility and Claim Requirements ................................................................................................... 3 
Figure 7-1 Responsibilties and Timeline for Apportionment, Allocation and Payment ............................... 5 

  

45 of 115



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT GUIDEBOOK 

 

VOLUME I 
 

TDA OVERVIEW AND BACKGROUND 

46 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

1 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

CHAPTER 1 - INTRODUCTION 
 

 

1.1 GUIDEBOOK PURPOSE 
 

 

 

The Madera County Transportation Commission (MCTC) Transportation Development Act (TDA) 
Guidebook was developed to provide a useful reference for claimants of TDA funds and MCTC staff 
to continue to provide a clear and understandable process for the filing and administration of TDA 
claims now and into the future. 

 
The intent of this guidebook is to help those managing the claim process to understand: 

• What the TDA is; 
• What the different categories of TDA funds are and their allowable uses; 
• What the TDA requirements are and the reasons for the requirements; 
• What MCTC’s responsibilities are in administering the TDA program and how those impact 

the TDA claim review, approval and schedule; 
• How to complete claims; and 
• How the process fits together in Madera County, the City of Madera and the City of Chowchilla. 

 
The objective of the guidebook is to increase program understanding and thereby expedite the 
administrative process. The guidebook has nine chapters and is organized in two Volumes, intended to 
make it easier for the reader to work through the different topics. Volume I is a reference document which 
provides detailed background information on the TDA and uses of its funds; while Volume II provides 
the TDA claimant with instructions and MCTC policies for filing a TDA claim. 

 
1.2   TDA OVERVIEW 

 
 

 

The Transportation Development Act (TDA) provides a State funding source for use by local jurisdictions 
at the county level to improve existing public transportation and encourage regional public 
transportation coordination. It also provides some funding for bicycle and pedestrian projects and when 
certain conditions are met, streets and roads. The main purpose and priority of TDA, however, is to 
provide funding for public transportation. 

 
The TDA provides two major sources of funding, the Local Transportation Fund (LTF) and the State Transit 
Assistance (STA) Fund. The following provides background on each of these two funding sources: 

 
The Local Transportation Fund (LTF) is a local fund into which the state deposits sales tax 
revenue to be used for transportation purposes defined by TDA. The State Department of Tax 
and Fee Administration, based on sales tax collected in each county, returns the general sales tax 
revenues to each county’s LTF. Madera County is the local jurisdiction responsible for holding the 
fund. 

47 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

2 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

Revenue for Madera County’s Local Transportation Fund comes from ¼ of one percent of the 
state general sales tax collected in Madera County (both incorporated and unincorporated areas). 
Given the fluctuation of sales tax revenues during varying economic environments, LTF revenues 
deposited in the County fund vary from year to year. 

 
The State Transit Assistance (STA) fund provides a second source of TDA funding for 
transportation planning, public transportation, and community transit purposes as specified by 
the Legislature. The STA program was created under Chapter 161 of the Statutes of 1971 (SB 
620). STA funds are generated from the statewide sales tax on diesel fuel, which is deposited 
in the Transportation Planning and Development Account in the State Transportation Fund. 
Unlike LTF, STA funds may not be allocated for fund administration, streets, roads, or 
pedestrian/bicycle facility purposes. 

 
The STA funds are appropriated by the Legislature to the State Controller’s Office (PUC Sec. 
99312). That Office then allocates the tax revenue, by formula, to each Regional Transportation 
Planning Agency (RTPA), for which MCTC is the RTPA. The formula allocates 50% of the funds 
based on Madera County’s population compared to the total state population. The other 50% 
is allocated based on the amount of passenger fares and local support revenues collected by 
the transit operator in Madera County compared to the amount collected by transit operators 
statewide. 

 
Public participation is a key component of the TDA. Public meetings are held to discuss transportation 
needs and hear concerns. Regional planning agencies, such as the Madera County Transportation 
Commission (MCTC), are required to establish a Social Service Transportation Advisory Council (SSTAC), 
comprised of the transit-dependent, including persons with disabilities, older adults, and low-income 
representatives. The SSTAC role is to participate and advise MCTC of transit needs and coordinate 
transit services with other specialized transportation services (private and social service agencies).  SSTAC 
members work with local agencies in developing unmet transit needs criteria, which are used in making 
project approval decisions. The SSTAC is governed by the adopted rules located in Appendix C. 

 
To ensure program compliance, fiscal and performance audits are conducted. Fiscal audits are conducted 
annually and include transit operator’s expense-to-revenue ratio, known as farebox recovery. 
Performance audits are conducted every three years and include performance measures that verify the 
efficiency and effectiveness of planning agencies and transit operators. Both fiscal and performance 
audits are conducted by an independent auditor designated by the transportation planning agency. 

 
The TDA funds are distributed in payments monthly to the County by the State and are held in trust in the 
County Treasury until disbursed to recipients. The County Auditor makes payments from the funds based 
on instructions received from MCTC. Claimants receive payments on a reimbursement basis. It is MCTC’s 
responsibility to ensure that payments are made and funds are used in compliance with the TDA statutes.   
Both the LTF and STA funds have stringent performance and fiscal audit requirements for approved 
expenditures. 
 

48 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

3 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

1.3   GOVERNING LEGISLATION AND SOURCE OF INFORMATION 
 

 

 

The legislature establishes overall policies, including determining funding sources and distribution, and 
spending priorities through state statutes such as Revenue and Taxation Code, Streets and Highways 
Code, and Government Code. The Legislature appropriates funds through the annual budget for 
transportation projects and has authority to designate transportation projects statutorily. 

 
The Transportation Development Act was signed by the Governor on November 4, 1971 and became 
effective July 1, 1972. The TDA is also known as SB 325 and the Mills-Alquist-Deddeh Act. Several bills 
have since amended the TDA.  The STA Fund is also sometimes referred to as SB 620. 

 
The TDA program is governed by the rules and statutes contained in the Public Utilities Code (PUC), the 
California Code of Regulations (CCR), and by non-TDA statutes contained in the California Vehicle Code 
(CVC).  These rules and statutes will be referenced throughout this Guidebook. 

 
The TDA statute is divided into sections called “articles”.  As a result, claims for TDA funds are often 
referenced by the Article of the statute under which they are filed. There are nine (9) TDA Articles. Each 
Article has different requirements and provisions. Chapters 3 through 5 detail these requirements and 
the claims process for each funding purpose. 

 
The full text of the TDA is available in a California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) publication 
entitled Transportation Development Act (TDA) Statutes and California Code of Regulations 
https://dot.ca.gov/-/media/dot-media/programs/rail-mass-transportation/documents/f0009844-tda-07-
2018-a11y.pdf  
 

The MCTC TDA Guidebook is authorized under Section 99261 of the California Public Utilities Code. 

49 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

4 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

CHAPTER 2 - HOW TDA FUNDS ARE ALLOCATED 
 

 
2.1  WHO CAN USE THE MONEY? 

 
 

 

Several different agencies can use Transportation Development Act (TDA) money for several different 
purposes. To do so, agencies must meet the eligibility requirements set forth in the TDA. Figure 2-1 
shows the agencies eligible in Madera County per the TDA. 

Figure 2-1 Local Agencies that Can Use Local Transportation Funds 
 

Eligible Agencies Per TDA Eligible Agencies in Madera County 
County Auditor Madera County Auditor-Controller 
Regional Transportation Planning Agency 
(RTPA) 

Madera County Transportation Commission 
(MCTC) 

Transit Operators City of Chowchilla 

Transit Districts There are no transit districts in Madera County 
Consolidated Transportation Service Agencies 
(CTSAs) 

There are no CTSAs in Madera County 

County Madera County 
Cities/Towns City of Madera 

 
2.2  LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND -- USES AND ALLOCATION PROCESS 

 
 

 

Local Transportation Funds (LTF) may be claimed by local agencies under Articles 3, 4, 4.5 and 8 of the 
TDA legislation. Claimants should apply for the funding programs that are most appropriate for their 
transit operations. The choice will depend on the type of claimant, purpose for which the money 
will be used, administrative and fiduciary responsibilities associated with the funding program, and 
the amount of money available. Figure 2-2 lists the claimant categories and associated articles. 

 
Figure 2-2 Applicable Claimant Categories 

 

Claimant Categories Articles 
Transit Operators  4 
Consolidated Transportation Services Agency (CTSAs) – Responsible for 
services to Social Service recipients 

4.5 

Transit Service Claimant – city and/or county filing for contract payments 8 (c) 
City and County 

- Streets & roads 
- Bicycle & pedestrian 
- Capital assistance (bus shelters, etc.) 

 
8 (a) 

3, 8(e) 
8(e) 

    
 

50 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

5 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

The TDA legislation establishes priorities among the programs that may be funded by the Local 
Transportation Fund (LTF). For some purposes, funds from the LTF may be allocated “off the top” 
that is, before apportionment. Figure 2-3 shows these purposes in priority order, as set forth in 
the TDA. 

  

51 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

6 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

Figure 2-3 LTF Allocation Purposes and Priorities for Madera County 
 

Priority Purpose Article/Section Eligible Claimants 
In Madera County 

Amount Allowed 
per TDA 

1 – Off 
the Top 

TDA Administration Article 3 
PUC 99233.1 

MCTC and County 
Auditor 

As necessary 
 

 
2 – Off  
the Top 
 

 
Pedestrian & Bicycle 
Facilities 

 
Article 3 
PUC 99233.3, 
99234 

 
Taken off the top for 
Cities and County 

 
Countywide, up to 
2% of remaining 
money 
 

3 – Off  
the Top 

Community Transit 
Services 

Article 4.5 (Section 
99275), PUC 
99233.7 

Not utilized in Madera 
County 

Countywide, up to 
5% of remaining 
money 

 
4 – Equal 
Priority 

 
Public Transportation 

 
Article 4 
PUC 99233.8 

 
Transit 
Operator/County 

 

  
Support of public 
transportation systems 

 
Article 4 
PUC 99260(a), 
99262 

 
Transit 
Operator/County 

 
Remaining Area 
Apportionment 
after Priorities 1-3 

  
Aid to research & 
development projects 

 
Article 4 
PUC 99260(b) 

 
Transit 
Operator/County 

 
Funded after 
priorities 1-3 are 
funded 

  
Peak hour service 
contract 

 
Article 4 
PUC 99260.2(a) 

 
Transit 
Operator/County 

 

  
Claims for separate 
service to elderly & 
handicapped 

 
Article 4 
PUC 99260.7 

 
Cities, County, Joint 
Powers Agency 

 

 
5 – Equal 
Priority 
 

 
Public transportation 
service contract 

 
Article 8 
PUC 99233.9, 
99400(c) 

 
Transit Operator 
Contract/County/Cities 

 
Remaining Area 
Apportionment 
after Priority 4 is 
Funded 

 Capital expenditures Article 8 
PUC 99400(e) 

Transit 
Operator/County/Cities 

 

  
Local streets & roads; 
pedestrian and bicycle 
projects 

 
Article 8 
PUC 99400(a), 
99402, 99407 

 
Cities & County 

 

  
Multimodal 
transportation terminal 

 
PUC 99400.5 

 
Cities and County 

 

 
  

52 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

7 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

Funding from the LTF can be described as a three-step process: (1) apportionment, (2) allocation, and 
(3) payment. The following is a description of the process for Madera County: 

 
1. Apportionment 
Apportionment is the required division of available funds by population to jurisdictions within each 
county. Once funds are apportioned to a given jurisdiction in Madera County, they are available only for 
reimbursement to claimants for that jurisdiction. Reimbursement is the discretionary action of MCTC 
designating funds for a specific claimant for a specific purpose.  

 
Per the TDA, MCTC divides the remaining amount anticipated, after taking “off the top” amounts (see 
Figure 2-3), to be deposited in the fund over the coming fiscal year to the County (PUC Sec. 99231). 

 
• Given the uncertainty of sales tax revenues (LTF fund source), each January, the County 

Auditor develops an estimate of what the coming year should bring. The estimate is based on 
economic forecast and past experience. The auditor prepares a conservative estimate which is 
due by February 1st. 

• Prior to March 1st, MCTC informs the Member Agencies of this amount, called the apportionment 
(21 CCR Sec. 6644). The amount apportioned to each jurisdiction for the coming fiscal year is 
called the “findings of apportionment.” The MCTC must adopt the findings of apportionment 
by March 1st of each year for the coming fiscal year (21 CCR Sec. 6644). 

 
The MCTC shall, from an analysis and evaluation of the total amount anticipated to be available in the 
LTF and for which the fund is intended, and consistent with the provisions of this chapter, annually 
determine the amount to be apportioned to each claimant by population. 

All operators and city or county governments with responsibility for providing services to a given area 
collectively may file claims for only those moneys that represent that area's apportionment. 
 
Once money is apportioned to a jurisdiction, the money can only be allocated to that jurisdiction 
unless an agreement is made so that a portion of a jurisdiction's apportionment goes to another 
jurisdiction.  
 
2. Allocation 
Allocation is the step where the jurisdiction decides what they want to do with their apportionments in 
the coming year. The jurisdiction files an “application” with MCTC requesting dollar amounts for different 
purposes. For example, the jurisdiction might claim all its LTF apportionment for transit, or they might claim 
the majority for transit, some for bicycle projects, and some for streets and roads. The total amount of 
the application cannot be more than the amount apportioned to a jurisdiction. 

 
Given the intent of the TDA is to fund public transportation, each jurisdiction claiming funds through the 
TDA must prove certain things to be able to use it for other purposes (refer to Chapter 5).  Before MCTC 
releases the money allocated to a jurisdiction, the claimant must meet several requirements. If these 

53 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

8 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

requirements are not met, MCTC can hold on to an apportionment (or part of it) and not allocate it until 
requirements are satisfied (21 CCR Sec. 6633.9). Please refer to Chapter 6 for the required documentation. 

 
3. Payment 
This is the step where the jurisdiction receives the money. Based on the amount claimed, MCTC provides 
instructions to the County Auditor for writing checks to the County and/or Cities throughout the year. 
MCTC must provide written instructions at least annually prior to the start of the fiscal year, although 
the instructions could be delayed if agreed to by the claimant (21 CCR Sec. 6659). 

 
Since the RTPA can set the “terms and conditions” for payment, MCTC currently authorizes payment on a 
reimbursement basis as money becomes available. 

 
2.3 STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE FUNDS - USES AND ALLOCATION PROCESS 

 
 

 

Money from the STA Fund is obtained similarly to LTF; through apportionment, allocation, and payment. 
This fund is allocated under PUC Sections 99313 and 99314. The entire amount received by the County 
from the State is available for distribution to the Cities and County, as no money is taken “off the top” 
of STA. Figure 2-4 summarizes the funding purposes for STA. There is no priority order within STA funds. 
STA funds are described under Article 6.5 of the TDA statute.  

 
Figure 2-4 STA Funding Purposes Applicable in Madera County 

 

Purpose PUC Section 
Transit operations and capital 99313.6 and 21 CCR 6730 (a) & (b) 
Contract payments for public transit services 99313.6 and 21 CCR 6731 (b) 
Administrative and planning cost of 
contracted public transportation 

99313.6 and 21 CCR 6731 (a) & (b) 

Capital requirements of contracted 
public transportation system 

99313.6 referencing Sec. 99400(e) 

Construction and maintenance of 
intermodal transportation facilities 

99313.6 and 21 CCR 6731 (a) 

 
The amount of STA funds received by Madera County each year depends on the following factors: 

1. The amount of STA funds designated by the State legislature each year. 
2. The relative size of the County’s population of the RTPA jurisdictions within the state.  Half (50%) 

of the STA funds are allocated by the State Controller to the transportation planning agencies, for 
Madera County it is MCTC, based on the relative size of their populations. 

  

54 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

9 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

The State Controller informs MCTC in January of the estimated amount of STA that it will receive for the 
coming fiscal year. In August, which is after the start of the fiscal year and after local jurisdictions have 
been allocated funds, the State Controller updates the estimate. The updated estimate is made after the 
legislature determines how much money is appropriated to the Transportation Planning and 
Development Account. Based on the adopted State Budget, the amount of STA funds originally 
estimated in January usually changes by August. Therefore, it is possible an approved application is greater 
than the amount of STA available. 

 
1. Apportionment 
The population formula apportionment funds received by Madera County are apportioned to each eligible 
jurisdiction within Madera County based on relative share of that jurisdiction’s population. The revenue 
apportioned funds received by Madera County are apportioned to those jurisdictions that file their TDA 
applications as “transit operators” or for contracted services. Presently, the County of Madera, the City of 
Madera and the City of Chowchilla are the only agencies eligible to apply in Madera County. MCTC informs 
the County and the Cities of the amount of STA that is estimated to be available in the coming fiscal year 
while it informs the County and Cities about the LTF findings of apportionment. 

2. Allocation 
Similar to LTF, the County and the Cities file an application with MCTC for its STA Funds. STA applications 
are a little more straight-forward, because the purposes for which STA can be used are narrower than LTF.  
As a result, there are fewer sections of the code to understand in order to file a STA application. 

 
3. Payment 
MCTC follows the same process to instruct the County to make payments from the STA fund to the 
jurisdictions as was described above for LTF. 

 

2.4 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR PROGRAM ALLOCATION PROCESS 
 

 
On April 28, 2017 Governor Brown signed Senate Bill (SB) 1 (Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017), known as the Road 
Repair and Accountability Act of 2017. SB 1 provides $50 billion in new transportation funding over the new 
decade to repair highways, bridges and local roads, to make strategic investments in congested commute 
and freight corridors, and to improve transit service. Approximately $105 million is distributed annually to 
transit operators in California for eligible transit maintenance, rehabilitation and capital projects. This 
investment in public transit is known as the State of Good Repair (SGR) Program. 
 
The SGR Program is funded from a portion of a new Transportation Improvement Fee on vehicle registrations 
due on or after January 1, 2018. In cooperation with the SCO, SGR funds are allocated under the TDA STA 
program beginning in fiscal year 2017-18. SGR money is distributed to state and local governments in 
urbanized areas for repairs and upgrading of rail and bus rapid transit systems that are at least seven years 
old. Allocations for the SGR program are calculated pursuant to the distribution formulas in PUC sections 
99313 and 99314. Prior to receiving an apportionment of SGR program funds in a fiscal year, local agencies 
must submit a list of projects proposed to be funded to MCTC by September 1st. MCTC reports to the State 

55 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

10 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

Controller the eligible agencies that will receive an allocation pursuant to sections 99313 and 99314. 

56 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

11 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

 

CHAPTER 3 - TRANSIT CLAIMS 
 
Eligible claimants for transit are the County of Madera, the City of Madera, and the City of Chowchilla. 
This chapter describes the eligibility requirements to apply for funds for planning, operating, capital, 
and/or administering public transportation services. 

 
Since the TDA statute is divided into sections, or “articles”, claims are referenced by the article of the 
statute under which they are filed. Unfortunately, the TDA does not group all claim types, such as 
transit, into one article; instead, transit claimants are eligible to receive funding under different 
articles for different purposes. The following will describe each article for which transit claims are filed. 

 
3.1 ELIGIBLE TRANSIT CLAIMS 

 
 

 
Both funding sources, LTF and STA, are available to fund associated costs for operating general public 
transit including operations and capital, administration and planning, and transit-related research and 
development projects. Figure 3-1a and 3-1b lists the different fund sources for which a jurisdiction may 
file transit claims and for what purposes. 

 
A jurisdiction will file its LTF transit claim under Article 4 or Article 8 depending on its applicability and 
eligibility. In some cases, a jurisdiction may qualify under both articles. Once a claimant is determined to 
be eligible for funding under either Article 4 or Article 8 of LTF, they are then eligible to file a claim for STA 
funds. 

 
Figure 3-1a Eligible TDA Statutes to File Transit Claims for Operating and Planning 
 

 

Article Section Purpose Eligible Claimants 

LTF 
Article 4 

PUC 99260 (a) 
or 99262 

All purposes necessary to operate 
the system including planning 

Jurisdiction 
operating transit 

 STA CCR 6730 (a) Operating cost of operator’s 
public transportation system 

Jurisdiction 
operating transit 

 LTF 
Article 4 

PUC 99260 (b) Public transportation research 
and demonstration projects 

Jurisdiction 
operating transit 

 LTF 
Article 8 

PUC 99400 (c) Contract payments for operations Jurisdiction contracting 
for transit operations 

LTF 
Article 8 

PUC 99400 (d) Administration and planning 
costs associated with operations 

 

Jurisdiction contracting 
for transit operations 

STA CCR 6731 (b) Operating, administrative and 
planning costs for Article 8 transit 

 

Jurisdiction contracting 
for transit operations 

 
 
 
 

57 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

12 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

Figure 3-1b Eligible TDA Statutes to File Transit Claims for Capital 
 
Article Section Purpose Eligible Claimants 

LTF 
Article 4 

PUC 99262 Capital for acquisition of real 
property, construction of facilities 
and buildings, purchase and 
replacement of vehicles, and 

    

Jurisdiction operating 
transit system 

STA CCR 6730 (a) Capital requirements of 
operator’s public 

  

Jurisdiction operating 
transit system 

LTF 
Article 8 

PUC 99400 (e) Capital for vehicles and equipment, 
bus shelters and benches, and 
communication equipment 

Jurisdiction contracting for 
transit operations 

LTF 
Article 8 

PUC 99400.5 Multi-modal Transportation Facilities City and County 

 
ARTICLE 4 VERSUS ARTICLE 8 TRANSIT CLAIMS 

The main difference in funding under Article 4 and Article 8 is the definition of eligible “transit 
operator”. For purposes of Article 4, the city or county acting as transit operator is responsible for the 
direct operation of the service. In contrast, Article 8 (PUC Section 99400 (c)) only applies to claimants 
that contract for operation of their transit services with outside vendors. Under Article 8, the jurisdiction 
can contract out its entire transit system – from planning and fare establishment to drivers and vehicles. 

 
LTF claimed under Article 4 can be used more broadly for transit. Claims made by transit operators for 
support of public transportation systems under Article 4 may include reimbursement for all purposes 
necessary and convenient to the development and operation of the transit service. Funds are available 
under this article for the support of public transportation systems that are operated in- house by a city 
or county, as well as public transportation research and demonstration programs, and the construction 
of grade separation projects (PUC Section 99262). Payments for Article 4 claims can be direct expenses 
or payment of principal and interest on equipment, other indebtedness or bonds. 

 
Under Article 8, claimants may seek funding for administration and planning costs, and capital 
investments in transit vehicles, bus shelters and benches, and communication equipment. Claimants may 
be paid for the administrative and planning expenses associated with contracting for transit services 
as described in PUC Section 99400 (c). 

 
The requirements to file under Article 4 and 8 differ slightly as well. Requirements under Article 8 are 
generally less stringent than under Article 4. Section 3.2 of this chapter discusses claimant eligibility 
requirements. 

 
Figure 3-2 illustrates the decision process to assist local jurisdictions in choosing what Article is more 
applicable to file a transit claim for LTF. 

58 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

13 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

 
 
 

59 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

14 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

ARTICLE 4.5 TRANSIT CLAIMS 

Article 4.5 claims may be filed for community transit services (trip origin and destination both located 
within community boundaries), including such services for those, such as persons with disabilities, who 
cannot use conventional transit services (PUC Section 99275). An eligible organization must be 
designated by the regional planning agency (MCTC) in order to claim funds under this Article. 

 
Pursuant to PUC Section 99233.7, MCTC may allocate up to 5% of the remaining LTF for Article 4.5 
purposes after apportionments for administrative purposes and for bicycle and pedestrian funds. There 
are no designated Article 4.5 claimants in Madera County, therefore, no funds are reserved for this use. 

 
STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE TRANSIT CLAIMS 

State Transit Assistance funds can only be used for transit purposes. The California Code of Regulations 
(CCR), which includes the rules and requirements of this program, outlines the types of transit 
expenditures applicable to the jurisdictions of Madera County that are allowable. These include transit 
operations, transit capital, and community transit services (CCR Section 6730). 

 
3.2 CLAIMANT ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 

 
 

 
The TDA stipulates various requirements, such as a specified level of productivity, each transit claimant 
must comply with in order to receive funding for transit operations and capital purposes. These 
requirements vary based on the source of funds (i.e., LTF Article 4, LTF Article 8, or STA). For simplicity 
purposes, this section is organized by first, the requirements for all TDA transit claims, and then second, 
the specific requirements or exceptions under each fund source. 

 
REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL TRANSIT CLAIMANTS 

Jurisdiction must either directly operate the transit system or contract with a private entity to operate the 
transit system to receive LTF and STA funds for transit. The following are six (6) requirements all TDA 
transit claimants in Madera County must comply with, regardless of the article filed under. 

  

60 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

15 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

1 
Farebox Ratio Requirement 

 
Farebox recovery ratio = total fare revenues divided by total expenses (minus certain 
exclusions). Used as an indicator of the financial health of the transit service. 

 
Minimum farebox requirement - An operator filing under Article 4 is required to 
meet a minimum farebox recovery ratio in order to retain eligibility for funding. The 
farebox recovery ratio for non-urban rural transit systems, in general, must meet a 
minimum standard of 10 percent. 

 
If an Operator Does Not Meet its Farebox Recovery Ratio 
a. If an operator fails to achieve its fare ratio requirement for two consecutive fiscal 

years, the operator’s eligibility for LTF and STA funds is reduced by the difference 
between the required fare revenues and the actual fare revenues for the second 
fiscal year that the required ratio was not maintained (PUC Sec. 99268.9 and CCR 
6633.9). For example, if a rural operator’s farebox recovery ratio is 9% in Fiscal 
Year 1 and 8% in Fiscal Year 2, then beginning in Fiscal Year 4, the operator will 
have to forfeit 2% of the LTF and STA it could have claimed. 

b. Exceptions apply specific to Article 4 and Article 8 claimants. Please refer to 
appropriate section below. 

2 
Triennial Performance Audit (PUC 99246) – Only for LTF claims 

 
The California Public Utilities Code requires that all transit operators and Regional 
Transportation Planning Agencies that receive TDA have a triennial performance audit 
conducted of their activities. 

 
Operators must participate and cooperate with the Triennial Performance Audit which 
helps monitor service trends and gives transit operators the opportunity for an outside 
auditor to make service improvement recommendations carried forward by MCTC. 

3 
Implementation of Productivity Improvements 

 
Claimants must make a reasonable effort to implement the productivity improvements 
recommended by the Triennial Performance Audit through MCTC (PUC Section 99244). 
Please refer to Chapter 9 which discusses the Productivity Improvement Program. 
 
 

61 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

16 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

SPECIFIC ARTICLE 4 REQUIREMENTS AND EXCEPTIONS 

In addition to the above listed requirements for TDA transit claims, Article 4 provides for some 
exceptions, as well as additional requirements. These include the following: 
 
1. Meets definition of transit operator 

To file under Article 4, a City or County must be considered a transit “operator”. To be considered 
an operator, a City or County must establish the service provided by setting the route structure, 
schedules, and fares to control the quality and basic operation of the system. A City or County can 
be considered an operator regardless of whether it leases or owns the transit vehicles and/or 
regardless of whether it employs or contracts drivers. 

 
2. Exceptions to farebox recovery requirement 

There are two financial standards applicable to Article 4 claimants, referred to as the “50 percent 
expenditure limitation” and the “farebox recovery ratio”. 

4 
CHP Inspection (PUC Section 99251) 

 
Certification from the Department of California Highway Patrol that has been 
completed within the last 13 months indicating that the operator is in compliance 
with Section 1808.1 of the Vehicle Code. The certification may be issued following a 
terminal inspection, or a terminal reinspection conducted within 60 days thereafter, by 
the Department of the California Highway Patrol. 

5 
180-Day Annual Certified Fiscal Audit 

 
MCTC is responsible to ensure that all claimants to whom it allocates funds shall 
submit to it an annual certified fiscal audit conducted by an independent auditor. This 
audit shall be submitted to MCTC and to the State Controller within 180 days after the end 
of the fiscal year. However, an extension of up to 90 days may be granted if deemed 
necessary. MCTC will not allocate a claimant’s full LTF apportionment until a TDA audit 
has been completed and received by MCTC.  The audit report shall include a certification 
of compliance with the Act. (Sections 99245, 6663, 6666, 6667). 

6 
Annual State Controller’s Reports 

 
Operators must submit annual State Controller’s Reports, documenting their agency 
operations, to MCTC and the State Controller within seven months of the end of the 
fiscal year (PUC Section 99243). 

62 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

17 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

50 Percent Expenditure Limitation (PUC Section 99268) 
Not applicable in Madera County for transit claims. Transit operators established after 1974 are 
exempt from this provision of the TDA. In general, this provision limits LTF funding for a transit 
system to 50 percent of the transit system’s budget. Funds received from the STA program, and 
certain capital expenditures for grade separated mass transit, are exempted for the calculation. 

 
Farebox Ratio Requirement 
Article 4 provides for exceptions to the general rules for farebox ratios for the following types of 
transit services: 

 
• Exclusive service for elderly and disabled persons (PUC Section 99268.5) 

Not currently applicable in Madera County. 
 

• Exemption for extension of services (PUC Section 99268.8) 
Required ratios of fare revenues to operating cost shall not apply to an extension of 
public transportation services until two years after the end of the fiscal year in which the 
extension of services was put into operation. 

 
This may include additions of geographical areas or route miles, or improvements in 
service frequency or hours of service greater than 25 percent of the route total, or the 
addition of new days of service, and for transit service claimants also includes the addition 
of a new type of service, such as van, taxi, or bus. 

 
• New urbanized areas (PUC Section 99270.2) 

Not currently applicable in Madera County. 
 

• Farebox revenues supplementation (PUC Section 99268.19) 
If fare revenues are insufficient to meet the applicable ratio of fare revenues to operating cost 
required, an operator may satisfy that requirement by supplementing its fare  
revenues with local funds. “Local funds” means any non-federal or non-state grant funds or 
other revenues generated by, earned by, or distributed by an operator.  
 

3. Additional requirements: 
• A transit operator cannot routinely staff a public transit vehicle designed to be operated by 

one person with two or more persons (PUC Sec. 99264). 
• A transit operator’s claim cannot include an operating budget that is more than 15% 

greater than its previous year budget. It also cannot include a substantial increase or 
decrease in scope of operations or capital for major new fixed facilities. However, it can 
include such increases if the claim is supported by documentation that substantiates such 
change (PUC Sec. 99266). 

• The current cost of the operator’s retirement system must be fully funded with respect to 
the officers and employees of its public transportation system, or the operator is 

63 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

18 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

implementing a plan approved by MCTC, which will fully fund the retirement system 
within 40 years (PUC Sec. 99271). 

• An operator that has a private pension plan shall be eligible for Article 4 funds only if it: 
o Conducts periodic actuarial studies of its employee pension plans to determine 

the annual cost of future pension benefits (PUC Sec. 99272); 
o Sets aside and invests funds sufficient to provide for the payment of future 

pension benefits (PUC Sec. 99272); 
o Includes the actuarially determined amount of pension liability in its 

annual financial statement (PUC Sec. 99273); 
o Includes in its annual financial statements the amount of cash funds set aside and 

invested to meet the pension liability (PUC Sec. 99273); 
o Includes in its annual financial statements the amount of any deficit in the pension 

fund (PUC Sec. 99273); and 
o Includes in its annual financial statements, the financial plan adopted to eliminate 

any deficit in the pension fund (PUC Sec. 99273). 
 

SPECIFIC ARTICLE 8 REQUIREMENTS AND EXCEPTIONS 

To file under Article 8 for operating and capital transit claims, a jurisdiction must meet the following 
additional requirements: 

 
1. Contract operations 

The claimant must be using these funds for payment to an entity which is under contract with a 
county or city for public transportation or for transportation services for any group, as determined 
by the transportation-planning agency, requiring special transportation assistance (PUC Section 
99400 (c)). 
 

2. Exceptions to farebox recovery ratio requirement 
Article 8 provides for an exception to the minimum farebox recovery ratio requirement. Article 8 
claimants must meet one of the following three rules: 

 
• Ensure that its Article 8 funds do not represent more than 50% of the amount required to 

meet the claimant's total proposed expenditures (PUC Sec. 99405 (a)); 
OR 

• Maintain the fare and local support recovery ratio requirements and be subject to the 
penalty if not maintained (CCR 6633.9); 

OR 
• Be subject to regional, countywide, or county subarea performance criteria, local match 

requirement, or fare recovery ratios adopted by MCTC resolution (PUC Sec. 99405 (c)). 
 

The last “or” above means that if the MCTC Board chooses, it could adopt by resolution a farebox 
recovery ratio to allow a jurisdiction to continue to receive LTF money for transit under Article 8, even 
if the jurisdiction could not meet its farebox recovery ratio required under Article 4. 

64 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

19 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

SPECIFIC STA FUND REQUIREMENTS AND EXCEPTIONS 

The following are additional eligibility requirements to receive STA operating and capital funds. 
 

1. Must be eligible to claim LTF Article 4 or Article 8 funding 
 

2. Population formula funds (PUC Section 99313) 
50 percent of STA funds available is based on each regions’ total population relative to the state. This 
is called “population formula funds”. To receive STA population formula funds, a jurisdiction must be 
eligible to file an LTF transit claim under either Article 4 or Article 8 (PUC Sec. 99314.5 (a) and (b)). 

 
3. Revenue formula funds (PUC Section 99314) 

50 percent of STA funds is distributed according to the ratio of the sum of the region’s prior year fare 
revenues and local contributions relative to those statewide. These are called “revenue formula 
funds”. Only transit operators eligible to claim LTF funding under Article 4 may also apply for STA 
revenue formula funds (PUC Sec. 99314.5 (b)). Currently, no STA revenue funds are appropriated to 
Madera County because there are no Article 4 claimants. 

 
4. Conform with Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 

The claimant’s proposed expenses must be in conformity with the RTP. 
 

5. Full use of federal funds 
Claimant is making full use of federal funds available under the Federal Transit Act (21 CCR 6754 (a)) 

 
6. Efficiency Standards – Only applicable to claims for operating costs (i.e., does not apply to STA 

capital claims)  
Either of the following two efficiency standards must be met in order to receive STA funding for 
operating purposes (PUC Sec. 99314.6): 

 
• Efficiency Standard 1:  An operator’s total operating cost per vehicle revenue hour for the 

most recent fiscal year must not exceed the prior year’s operating cost per revenue 
vehicle hour, by a percentage greater than the percentage change in the Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) for the same period. 

 
• Efficiency Standard 2: An operator’s total operating cost per vehicle revenue hour for the 

most recent fiscal year must not exceed the average total operating cost per vehicle 
revenue hour for the three prior years, increased by the average percentage change in the 
CPI for the same period. 

 
The operator can adjust the calculation for operating costs and revenue vehicle hours to account for 
the following factors: 

 
• Exclusion of cost increases beyond the change in the CPI for fuel, alternative fuel programs, 

insurance or state or federal mandates, and/or 

65 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

20 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

• Exclusion of start-up costs for new services for a period of not more than two years. 
 

If an operator fails to meet either efficiency standard, MCTC will withhold and retain the operator’s 
STA funding for reallocation to that operator for two years following the year of ineligibility. 

 
7. Employ part-time drivers – Only applicable to claims for operating costs 

Operators must be allowed to employ part-time drivers or contract with common carriers operating 
under a franchise or license (PUC Sec. 99314.5(b)). 

 
3.3 AMOUNT OF LTF AND STA FUNDS THAT CAN BE CLAIMED FOR TRANSIT 

 
 

 

There are some technicalities about the amount of LTF and STA an operator can claim for the transit 
system. The State wants to ensure that an agency does not claim more than the actual transit budget minus 
the amount received from other sources. Section 6634 of the California Code of Regulations (CCR) 
explains the total amount of LTF and STA funding that transit claimants are eligible to receive during the 
fiscal year. The transit claimant’s annual fiscal audit will test to ensure that the jurisdiction is not in 
violation of 21 CCR 6634. 

 
OPERATING COSTS 

21 CCR 6634 (a) stipulates that an operator or claimant cannot receive funding for operating costs in an 
amount that exceeds its fiscal year operating cost minus the sum of: 

• Fare revenues received during the Fiscal Year 
• The amount of local support required to meet the required farebox ratio 
• The amount of federal operating assistance received during the FY 
• The amount received during the Fiscal Year from a city or county to which the operator 

provides service beyond its boundaries 
• Any reduced funding eligibility resulting from the operator’s failure to meet the required 

farebox recovery ratio. 

CAPITAL AND DEBT SERVICE COSTS 

An operator or claimant cannot receive funding for capital costs and debt service purposes in an 
amount that exceeds the operator’s actual Fiscal Year capital requirements and actual Fiscal Year debt 
service requirements minus any revenues received from other sources for such purposes (21 CCR 
6634(b) and (c)). 

 
3.4  REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

 
 

 
When submitting a transit claim, claimants should submit one copy of the claim forms (Appendix A) and 
one set of the documentation requirements to the MCTC for approval: 

 
• A letter of transmittal to MCTC; 
• Application form (see Appendix A); 

66 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

21 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

• A copy of the operating and capital budgets for the coming fiscal year for the transit system the 
jurisdiction operates (21 CCR 6632) (Form D1, D2); 

• Description of capital projects, including time frame over which project will be funded and 
implemented; 

• A certification completed within the last 13 months from the California Highway Patrol indicating 
that the operator is following Section 1808.1 of the Vehicle Code (21 CCR 6632); 

• Statement identifying and substantiating the reason or need for an increase in operating 
budget in excess of 15% or more over the previous year, if applicable (21 CCR 6632); 

• Explanation why there is a substantial increase or decrease in operations or capital for fixed 
facilities, if applicable (21 CCR 6632); 

• A statement of projected or estimated revenues and expenditures from the prior fiscal year (21 
CCR 6632). If filing a claim from FY14, the prior year would be FY13. FY13 would not be 
complete at the time a jurisdiction files its FY14 claim, so this will have to be a projection or 
estimate. This allows MCTC to compare claims to actual revenues and expenditures; and 

• If claiming Article 8(c) transit funds, copy of signed contract with whom claimant is contracting 
for transit service. 

A step-by-step instruction for filing a claim can be found in Chapter 6. 
 

67 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

22 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

CHAPTER 4 - BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN CLAIMS 
 
The Transportation Development Act (TDA) provides limited funding for non-transit purposes, including 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities. MCTC allows Madera County jurisdictions to apply for funds for bicycle 
and pedestrian projects deemed appropriate by the jurisdiction.   

 
If the City or County wants to use TDA funds to pay for a bicycle and/or pedestrian project, it can file an 
application under Article 3 and Article 8 (with leftover LTF funds). As further explained in Chapter 2 and 
illustrated in Figure 2-3, two (2) percent of LTF funds (after administrative costs are taken off the top) 
are put into a pedestrian and bicycle account (PUC Section 99233.3). An application for these funds is 
filed under Article 3. If a jurisdiction wanted to utilize excess LTF money (after transit needs are met) for 
bicycle and pedestrian facilities, it may do so through filing a claim under Article 8. 

 
According to the TDA, MCTC is required to adopt rules and regulations delineating procedures for the 
submission of applications for bicycle and pedestrian projects, authorized under Article 3 (PUC Section 
992 34) and Article 8 (PUC Section 99400 (a)) of the Local Transportation Fund (LTF), and stating 
criteria for which they will be analyzed and evaluated.  

 
4.1 ELIGIBLE PROJECTS 

 
 

 
Eligible applications include facilities for the exclusive use of bicyclists and pedestrians. Projects must be 
derived from the latest Regional Transportation Plan for Madera County which is updated every four 
years. 

 
Projects eligible under Article 3 specifically include: 

 
• Bicycle safety education programs (limited to 5% of funds available for bicycle and pedestrian 

purposes); 
• Construction, including related engineering expenses, of those facilities; 
• Maintenance of bicycling trails, which are closed to motorized traffic; 
• Projects that serve the needs of commuting bicycles, including, but not limited to, new trails 

swerving major transportation corridors, secure bicycle parking at employment centers, park 
and ride lots, and transit terminals where other funds are unavailable; 

• Development of bicycle and pedestrian facilities plan (may not be more than once every five 
years); 

• Re-striping class II bicycle lanes (limited to 20% of annual amount available for bicycle and 
pedestrian purposes); and 

• There are no guidelines on the types of bicycle and pedestrian projects that might be 
eligible under Article 8. 

  

68 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

23 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

4.2 ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 
 

 

 
As with all other TDA claims, claimants are required to submit: 

• An annual certified fiscal audit to MCTC and to the State Controller within 180 days after the 
close of the fiscal year (PUC Sec. 99245). Upon written request with justification, MCTC may 
extend the deadline up to 90 days; and 

• A report to the State Controller within seven months after the close of the fiscal year regarding 
the expenditure of funds received for bicycle and pedestrian facilities (CCR 6665). 

 
MCTC requires that jurisdictions making bicycle and pedestrian applications certify that the requested 
amounts and purposes are in conformity with the Regional Transportation Plan (21 CCR 6651) and that 
are included in a jurisdiction’s adopted bicycle and pedestrian plans. 

 
In evaluating bicycle and pedestrian applications, MCTC shall use the general design criteria established 
pursuant to Section 156.4 of the Streets and Highways Code (PUC Sec. 99401). 

 
4.3 AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR USE 

 
 

 
ARTICLE 3 

For Article 3 claims, MCTC allocates two (2) percent of the LTF for bicycle and pedestrian facilities 
pursuant to PUC Section 99233.3 and CCR Section 6655.2. These moneys are annually reserved in the 
fund for allocation to claimants for pedestrian and bicycle facilities or bicycle safety education programs.   

 
ARTICLE 8 

For Article 8 claims, each jurisdiction may determine, if there are remaining LTF funds after transit 
needs are met, if they want to use these funds or a portion thereof for bicycle and pedestrian 
facilities. As described in Chapter 2 and illustrated in Figure 2-3, Article 8 claims are allocated by population 
only when there are remaining LTF funds after the needs under the higher priority claims (Articles 3, 4, 
and 4.5) are funded. 

 
   50% Funding Limitation 

LTF allocated for bicycle and pedestrian projects under Article 8 cannot represent more than 50% of the 
amount required to meet the City’s or County’s total proposed expenditures for the project in the year. 
Capital expenses, however, are exempt from this 50% limitation requirement. MCTC may allocate the 
total amount budgeted for the project’s capital expenses if the project is consistent with the Regional 
Transportation Plan (PUC Sec. 99405 (a) and (b)). 

  

69 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

24 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

4.4 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 

 

 
When submitting a bicycle/pedestrian project application, the claimant must submit the following to 
MCTC: 

• Application form (See Appendix A); 
• A letter of transmittal to MCTC; 
• Bicycle and pedestrian project description, including time frame for project completion, and 

financial plan (Form E); 
• Certification of compliance with eligibility requirements in Section 4.2 (i.e., fiscal audit, RTP, 

etc.); and 
 

The application form must be accompanied by a resolution from the claimant’s governing board approving 
the application and its submittal to MCTC and the Standard of Assurance.  Approval of the application 
by the MCTC Board then programs the funds for that jurisdiction’s bicycle and pedestrian facility projects. 

 
A step-by-step instruction for filing an application can be found in Chapter 6. 

70 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

25 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

CHAPTER 5 - OTHER CLAIMS AND THE UNMET TRANSIT NEEDS 
PROCESS 
 

Madera County jurisdictions may file for LTF under Article 8 for local streets and roads, and multimodal 
transportation terminals (PUC Sec. 99400 (a), 99400 (b) and 99400.5). The eligibility to file for streets 
and roads projects by a city or county is based upon the latest unmet transit needs finding. 

 
Before MCTC can approve an appl icat ion for funding of streets and roads projects under Article 8, 
an unmet transit needs process must be conducted. Given the purpose of the TDA is to provide funding 
for transportation services, use of TDA funds for streets and roads is given a lower priority; therefore, 
a condition for approval of applications for this purpose is the finding that there are no unmet transit 
needs that could be reasonably met. Please refer to Chapter 2, Figure 2-3 for a more detailed description 
of LTF funding priorities. 

 
5.1 ELIGIBLE PROJECTS 

 
 

 
Street and road projects eligible for LTF include those that are “necessary or convenient to the 
development, construction, and maintenance of the city or county’s streets or highway network, 
including planning, acquisition of real property, and construction of facilities and buildings” (PUC Sec. 
99402). 

 
The City or County may also file an LTF Article 8 claim for the construction and maintenance of 
multimodal transportation terminals (PUC Sec. 99400.5). Multimodal transportation facilities include park 
and ride lots, transit centers, or other locations where passengers can transfer between modes. 

 
5.2 ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS 

 
 

 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION PLAN 

TDA funds can only be allocated to projects that are in conformity with the Regional Transportation Plan 
(21 CCR 6651). MCTC prepares the Regional Transportation Plan every four years. 

 
5.3 AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR USE – UNMET TRANSIT NEEDS 

 
 

 
50%  FUNDING LIMITATION 

LTF allocated under Article 8 cannot represent more than 50% of the amount required to meet the 
City/Town or County’s total proposed expenditures for the project in the year. Capital expenses, 
however, are exempt from this 50% limitation requirement. MCTC may allocate the total amount 
budgeted for the project’s capital expenses if the project is consistent with the Regional 
Transportation Plan (PUC Sec. 99405 (a) and (b)). 

 

71 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

26 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

UNMET TRANSIT NEEDS PROCESS 

Before MCTC can allocate funds for purposes “not directly related to public transportation services, 
specialized transportation services, or facilities provided for the exclusive use of pedestrians and 
bicycles” (PUC Sec. 99401.5), MCTC must first implement the unmet transit needs process. Since the 
primary purpose of the TDA is to fund transit, the unmet transit needs process is used to prove that there 
are no “unmet transit needs” that are “reasonable to meet” prior to funding street and road projects. 

 
The Unmet Transit Needs process must be completed on an annual basis before MCTC, as the 
administrator of the TDA funds, can approve an application for funding of streets and roads projects 
under Article 8 of the Public Utilities Code. The Unmet Transit Needs process requires MCTC to perform 
specific tasks, which are: 

 
1. MCTC must establish and consult with the Social Services Transportation Advisory Council. 

 
2. MCTC must perform an annual assessment of transportation needs within Madera County, 
including an assessment of the size and location of potentially transit dependent groups, 
analysis of the adequacy of existing transportation systems in providing service for those groups, 
and analysis of the potential for transit service to provide service that would meet the demand 
of those groups. 

 
3. MCTC must adopt a definition of "unmet transit need" and "reasonable to meet." 

 
4. MCTC must hold an annual Unmet Transit Needs hearing to solicit comments on unmet 
transit needs that may exist. 

 
5. MCTC must consider all the available information obtained in the above actions and adopt an 
Unmet Transit Needs finding. This finding shall be one of the following: 

• There are no unmet transit needs 
• There are no unmet transit needs that are reasonable to meet 
• There are unmet transit needs including needs that are reasonable to meet 

 
Unless the Unmet Transit Needs process is completed, MCTC cannot approve an LTF application by any 
jurisdiction for streets and roads funding. Further, if the MCTC Board of Directors adopts a finding that 
there are unmet transit needs, including those which are reasonable to meet, then the unmet need 
must be funded before the jurisdiction can apply for funds for street and road projects. The funding to 
meet the unmet transit need must be reflected in the claimant's transit budget for any application for 
streets and roads funding to be approved. 
 

MCTC adopted the current definitions of “unmet transit needs” and “reasonable to meet” on 
December 2, 2009. The definitions are as follows: 

 

 
 

72 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook    VOLUME I 
  

27 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

Unmet Transit Need Definition 
 

The MCTC definition of the term “unmet transit needs” includes all essential trip requests by 
transit-dependent persons for which there is no other convenient means of transportation. 
The MCTC definition of the term “reasonable to meet” is applied to all related public or 
specialized transportation services that: 

 

• Are feasible 

• Have community acceptance 

• Serve a significant number of the population 

• Are economical 

• Can demonstrate cost effectiveness by having a ratio of fare revenues to operating 
cost at least equal to 10 percent 

 
 

5.4  REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 
 

 

 
DOCUMENTATION WHEN SUBMITTING AN APPLICATION 

When submitting applications for other projects, the claimant must submit the following to MCTC: 
 

• Application form (See Appendix A) 
• A letter of transmittal to MCTC 

 
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS 

All street & road, rail, and multimodal facility claimants are required to submit: 
 

• An annual certified fiscal audit to MCTC and to the State Controller within 180 days after the 
close of the fiscal year (PUC Sec. 99245). Upon written request with justification, MCTC may 
extend the deadline up to 90 days; and 

• A report to the State Controller within seven months days after the close of the fiscal year 
regarding the expenditure of funds received for projects (CCR 6665). 

 
Additional information about the annual fiscal audit requirement and the State Controller’s Report is 
included in Chapter 8. 

73 of 115



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT GUIDEBOOK 
 

VOLUME II 
 

MCTC TDA APPLICATION/CLAIM PROCESS

74 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

1 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

CHAPTER 6 - FILING A TDA APPLICATION 
 

 
In order to receive the annual allocation of Local Transportation Funds (LTF) and State Transit Assistance 
(STA) funds, jurisdictions must apply to MCTC for approval. The key parts of the application are the 
amount of funding requested and the purpose for which the funds will be used. MCTC requires this 
information to ensure claimants follow the requirements of the Transportation Development Act (TDA). 

 
6.1 TDA APPLICATION INSTRUCTIONS AND REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION 

 
 

 
Appendix A includes the forms which must be completed and submitted to MCTC to obtain TDA 
(both LTF and STA) funds. 

 
Claimants should submit one copy of the application and one set of the documentation requirements 
listed in this section to the MCTC for approval.  

 
All Applications 

• A letter of transmittal to MCTC addressed to the Executive Director that attests to the accuracy 
of the application and all its accompanying documentation. The application must be signed by 
the department head of the claimant (21 CCR 6632); 

• A resolution by Board/Council demonstrating the public process of allocating TDA funds; 

• A project description (Form E) of each project and its conformity to the RTP; 

• The Standard Assurances provides the applicant with a checklist of eligibility requirements and 
documentation. 

 
All Transit Applications 

• A copy of the operating and capital budgets for the coming fiscal year for the transit system the 
jurisdiction operates (21 CCR 6632); 

• Description of capital projects, including time frame over which project will be funded and 
implemented; and 

• Form C - Productivity Improvement Progress Report. 
 

Article 4 Transit Applications 
• A certification completed within the last 13 months from the California Highway Patrol indicating 

that the operator is in compliance with Section 1808.1 of the Vehicle Code (21 CCR 6632); 

• Statement identifying and substantiating the reason or need for an increase in operating 
budget in excess of 15% or more over the previous year, if applicable (21 CCR 6632); 

• Explanation why there is a substantial increase or decrease in operations or capital for fixed 
facilities, if applicable (21 CCR 6632); and 

• A statement of projected or estimated revenues and expenditures from the prior fiscal year (21 
CCR 6632). If filing an appl icat ion from FY14, the prior year would be FY13. FY13 would not 

75 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

2 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

be complete at the time a jurisdiction files its FY14 claim, so this will have to be a projection or 
estimate. This allows MCTC to compare claims to actual revenues and expenditures. 

 
Article 8 Transit Applications 

• If applying for Article 8(c) transit funds, copy of signed contract with whom claimant is contracting 
for transit service 

Non-Transit Claims - Bicycle/Pedestrian, Streets & Roads Applications 
• Application Form A  

o Project description (Form E) that includes the timeframe for project completion. 
 

Figure   6-1   summarizes   the   eligibility   requirements, document   submission   requirements, and 
reporting requirements for each type of application. Figure 7-1 summarizes the application process 
timeline. 

76 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

3 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

Figure 6-1 Eligibility and Claim Requirements 
 

 Transit Bike & Ped Street & 
Road LTF STA 

Article 4 Article 8 
Eligibility Requirements 

Operator X     
Contract Operations  X    
Farebox Recovery Ratio X¹ X¹ X²   
Vehicle Staffing (PUC Sec. 99264) X     
Fully fund operator’s retirement system X     
Private pension plan requirements X     
Part time employee requirements   X   
Reduced transit fares for elderly and disabled X¹ X¹ X¹   
Full use of Federal Funds   X   
Must be allowed to employ part-time 
drivers or contract 

  X   

Efficiency Standards   X¹   
Productivity Improvement Program X X X   
Conform with RTP   X X X 
Included in jurisdiction’s bike plan    X  
Use general design criteria of Streets 
& Highways code 

   X  

50% Limitation    X X 
Funded only after findings of Unmet 
Transit Needs process 

    X 

Use of fund balances and deferred revenues X X X X X 
 

Documentation to Submit with Application 
Application Forms X X X X X 
Letter of Transmittal X X X X X 
Capital & Operating Budget X X X   
CHP Inspection (PUC Sec. 99251) X X X   
Statement of Estimated Revenues 
& Expenditures for prior FY 

X     

Statement of operating budget growth 
>15% (PUC Sec. 99266) 

X     

 
Reporting Requirements 

Submit annual certified fiscal audit X X X X X 
Submit annual State Controller’s Reports X X X X X 
Triennial Performance Audits  X¹ X¹    
Service extension report (if applicable) X¹     
¹Operating funds only 
²For Article 8 claimants, MCTC may adopt performance criteria or a lower farebox recovery ratio on a temporary 
or permanent basis. If no separate ratio or criteria has been adopted by MCTC, the Article 8 transit claimant must 
meet the TDA minimum farebox recovery ratio. 

77 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

4 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

6.2 OTHER CLAIM POLICIES 
 

 

AMENDMENT OF APPLICATIONS 

For amendments to applications, the same materials for the submittal of the original application forms 
should be submitted with an explanation of specific amendments. The amendment requires approval 
by the MCTC Board prior to payment of reimbursement. 

 
PAYMENT OF CLAIMS 

TDA claims submitted by local agencies to MCTC are reviewed by MCTC staff. If all claim information is in 
order, MCTC staff prepares a reimbursement instruction and submits it to the County Auditor’s office. 
This reimbursement instruction directs the Auditor’s office to issue payment to the appropriate claimant 
for the requested purposes. Payment is made by the County Auditor to the claimant, commensurate 
with receipt of sales tax revenues by the County Auditor’s office. 

 
CARRYOVER 

TDA funds may be used to cover actual expenses during the fiscal year of the application only.  If not all the 
allocated funds are used, the funds should be moved to the following year by way of an amendment.  

 
AUDIT POLICY 

To help ensure that TDA audits are completed in a timely manner and the requirements of the TDA are 
met, MCTC will not reimburse a claimant’s LTF apportionment until a TDA audit has been completed 
and received by MCTC (as required by PUC Section 99245 and CCR Section 6664). No reimbursement 
will be paid until a TDA audit has been received by MCTC. 

 
BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN ACCOUNT 

MCTC allocates 2% “off the top” of the annual LTF allocation for bicycle and pedestrian facilities and 
projects pursuant to PUC Section 99233.3. 
 
PLANNING AND PROGRAMMING 

MCTC allocates 3% of the annual LTF allocation for transportation planning and programming purposes 
pursuant to PUC Section 99233.2. 

78 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

5 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

CHAPTER 7 - MCTC TDA CLAIM SCHEDULE 
 

 
The following Figure 7-1 summarizes the TDA claim steps in an annual timeline and identifies the 
agency responsible for each step. 

 
Figure 7-1 Responsibilities and Timeline for Apportionment, Allocation and Payment 

 

Who What When 
State Controller Provides an estimate of the amount of STA funds to be 

allocated to Madera County in the coming fiscal year 
(PUC sec. 99312.7) 

January 31 

County Auditor Prepares an estimate of the amount of LTF funds that 
will be available in the coming fiscal year 
(21 CCR Sec. 6620) 

February 1 

MCTC staff Advises claimants of their estimated apportionments (21 
CCR Sec. 6644) and (PUC Sec. 99230) 

March 1 

Cities and 
County 

Files LTF and STA applications (budget for funding) with 
MCTC (21 CCR Sec. 6630, 6732) 

April 1 

MCTC staff Submits to the State Controller the transit operators 
that are STA-eligible operators 

June 15 

MCTC staff Give allocation instructions to County Auditor and 
claimants 
(CCR Sec. 6659) and (PUC Sec. 99235) 

June 30* 

MCTC staff Submits fiscal audit to the State Controller 
(CCR Sec. 6662) 

June 30 

State Controller Provides revised STA estimates to be allocated to 
Madera County (PUC Sec. 99312.7) 

August 1  

MCTC staff Submits unmet transit needs finding documentation to 
Caltrans (PUC Sec. 99401.6) 

August 15 (this 
date is flexible) 

MCTC staff  Submits to Caltrans and the State Controller a schedule 
of performance audit reports to be submitted during 
the fiscal year (CCR Sec.6664.5) 

September 1 

MCTC staff Submits annual financial transaction reports to the 
State Controller (PUC Sec. 99406, 21 CCR Sec. 6660) 

January 31 

Cities and 
County 

Submit reports of operation to MCTC and the State 
Controller (PUC Sec. 99243, CCR Sec. 6637) 

January 31 

Cities and 
County 

Non-transit claimants submit expenditure reports to 
the State Controller (CCR Sec. 6665) 

January 31 

MCTC staff Submits fiscal and compliance audit of STA fund to the 
State Controller 

December 31, no 
later than March 
31 

79 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

6 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

Cities and 
County 

Submits fiscal and compliance audits to MCTC and 
State Controller (PUC Sec. 99245, PUC Sec. 99276, CCR 
Sec. 6663, CCR Sec. 6664 

December 31, no 
later than March 
31 

County Submits fiscal and compliance audits of LTF to MCTC 
and the State Controller (CCR Sec. 6661) 

December 31, no 
later than March 
31 

MCTC Staff Submits annual SGR Expenditure Reports to the 
Department of Transportation 

December 31 

Cities and 
County 

Submits annual SGR Audit Report to the Department of 
Transportation (PUC 99245) 

December 31 

Cities and 
County 

Submits revised applications As needed during 
fiscal year 

County Auditor Reports status of funds to MCTC (CCR 6622) Quarterly 

MCTC staff Submit Performance Audits to Caltrans (PUC Sec. 99246-
99249) 

Triennial 

 
*According to the TDA, MCTC shall convey at least one allocation instruction annually and prior to 
the beginning of the fiscal year for each transit service claimant, which has filed an annual application. 
MCTC may, however, delay an allocation instruction until after the beginning of the fiscal year with the 
consent of the operator or transit service claimant. 

80 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

7 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

CHAPTER 8 - MANAGEMENT OF THE TDA PROGRAM 
 

8.1 APPROPRIATING AND ALLOCATING FUNDS 
 

 

 
ROLE OF THE STATE CONTROLLER 

The State Controller notifies MCTC of the annual appropriation that is available to the County for State 
Transit Assistance (STA) funds. This process begins as an estimate of funds available in January, and then 
more accurate updates are transmitted to MCTC throughout the year. The State Controller has an 
adopted uniform system of accounts and records for use in reporting TDA funding activities. In this 
regard, the Controller requires certain annual fiscal reports of each TDA claimant from MCTC. 

 
ROLE OF THE COUNTY AUDITOR 

The County Auditor manages a local transportation fund within the County Treasury and pays claimants 
from this fund according to directions it receives from MCTC. Funds are dispersed to claimants by 
reimbursement.  

 
The County Auditor shall also maintain accounting records of the fund in accordance with the State 
Controller’s Manual of Accounting Standards and Procedures for Counties (CCR 6622). At quarterly 
intervals, the County Auditor shall report the status of the fund to MCTC. The report of the status of the 
fund shall include a statement that shows the beginning fund balance, the amount and source of revenues 
received, the amount and recipient of payments made identified by allocation instruction, and the 
ending fund balance. Portions of the fund balance held in reserve shall be identified by amount and 
purpose.  Interest earned on funds held shall be retained in reserve. 

 
ROLE OF MCTC 

MCTC is the regional transportation planning agency (RTPA) for the cities and unincorporated areas 
within the County of Madera. In this role it has the responsibility each year to apportion and allocate 
TDA funds that have been appropriated to its jurisdiction. 

 
Each year, a state appropriation of STA funds is earmarked to MCTC as the RTPA for Madera County. 
From the total sum appropriated, MCTC makes an apportionment to each of the eligible claimants in 
its jurisdiction, based on population. MCTC then notifies all the eligible claimants of their annual TDA 
apportionment. 

Through the application process, claimants indicate the programs and projects they would like to fund 
during the next fiscal year. After a review of the applications, MCTC allocates the funds according to the 
accepted applications, and notifies the County Auditor of these allocations. In notifying the County 
Auditor of the TDA allocations that have been made to each of the eligible claimants, MCTC is also 
required to convey allocation instructions regarding dispersal of the funds. 

 
In summary, MCTC as administrator of TDA funds has the following responsibilities: 
 

81 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

8 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

• Apportions LTF and STA funds to eligible claimants; 
• Ensures compliance and claimant eligibility of TDA funds prior to reimbursement; 
• Approves and reimburses LTF and STA funds to eligible claimants; 
• Manages claims process for LTF and STA funding; and 
• Monitors use of the funds to ensure fiscal responsibility 

 
8.2 SUMMARY OF IMPORTANT REPORT DATES 

 

  
Time Period Activity 
January to May County Auditor provides an annual revenue estimate of LTF funding to 

MCTC 
 MCTC advises claimants of their apportionments 
 MCTC conducts Unmet Transit Needs Public Hearings 
 Claimants submit applications 
 MCTC adopts definitions for Unmet Transit Needs and Reasonable to 

Meet criteria 
May to July MCTC adopts Unmet Transit Needs determination 
July to September MCTC issues allocation instructions to County Auditor 
October to December MCTC submits TDA Annual Report and Financial Transactions for RTPA’s to 

the State Controller 
 MCTC reviews and evaluates fiscal audits of claimants 

 Transit claimants submit report to State Controller and MCTC 

 

8.3 REQUIRED AUDITS AND REPORTS 
 

 

The following fiscal reports and audits are required of TDA claimants, and the regional transportation 
planning agency. 

 
State Controller’s Annual Report of Financial Transactions of Transit Operators 
 
The annual report to the State Controller includes basic financial information from TDA claimants 
including a list of all sources of revenues, purposes of expenses, and capital additions to equity for 
transit purposes. Transit services are required by the State Controller’s uniform accounting system to 
maintain records and to file reports on a full accrual enterprise basis of accounting. 

 
Annual Certified Fiscal Audit (180 Day Report) 
 
An annual certified fiscal and conformance audit conducted by an independent Certified Public 
Accountant of every TDA claimant must be submitted to MCTC and the State Controller within 180 
days of the fiscal year end. 
 
Triennial TDA Performance Audits 
 
A triennial TDA Performance Audit is a systematic process of evaluating an organization’s 
effectiveness, efficiency, and economy in the conduct of its operations. The objectives of the audit are 

82 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

9 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

to provide a means for evaluating an organization’s operating performance, and to seek ways to 
enhance that performance by making recommendations for improvements to its administrative processes 
and operational functions. 

 
Triennial performance audits are conducted of all California’s regional transportation planning agencies, 
such as MCTC. According to the Caltrans Performance Audit Guidebook, and state code, transit 
operators that receive TDA allocations under Article 8 are not mandated to commission triennial 
performance audits of their operations. However, the Guidebook encourages these audits because they 
are beneficial to improving transit operations. 

 
Report of Streets and Roads Expenditures 
 
Expenditures for streets and highway purposes must be reported annually to the State Controller. The 
Transit Operators and Non-Transit Claimants Annual Report includes a list of the jurisdictions for which 
funds have been allocated, the amount of the allocations, and the total funds available to each 
jurisdiction. 

 
MCTC Semi-Annual Transit Operators’ Report 
 
At least twice a year, MCTC will collect performance data from the transit operators. The information 
includes the following: 

• Revenue vehicle miles 
• Days of Service 
• Revenue vehicle hours 
• Ridership 
• Fare revenues 
• Operating costs 
• Subsidy 

 
The reports will show several performance measures. These include the following: 

• Passengers per hour 
• Passengers per mile 
• Passengers per day 
• Vehicle hours per employee 
• Operating cost per passenger 
• Operating cost per vehicle revenue hour 
• Subsidy per passenger 
• Operating cost per hour 
• Operating cost per mile 
• Farebox ratio 

Required TDA Reports 
• Triennial Performance Audit 
• Annual Fiscal Audit 
• Annual State Controller Report 

83 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

10 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

• Annual Unmet Transit Needs Findings Report 
• Annual Street/Road Report to State Controller 

 
8.4  GUIDELINES FOR AUDIT OF TDA COMPLIANCE 

 
 

 
GUIDELINES FOR AUDIT OF TDA COMPLIANCE 

This guide has been prepared to meet the requirements of the Transportation Development Act 
(TDA) with respect to conformance audits of claimants. The Public Utilities Code (PUC) sections, 
California Code of Regulations (CCR) sections, and MCTC Guidelines included herein are significant in 
auditing claimant’s compliance with TDA requirements. 

 
It is MCTC’s opinion that a conformance review of the sections referred to in this guide will meet the 
requirements of PUC Section 99245 and CCR Sections 6664, 6666, and 6667 for most claimants. In  
the event that certain claimants are subject to sections not stated herein, the provisions of the TDA and 
the California Code of Regulations for the audit year shall control the determination of conformance. 
The annual fiscal audit shall include a certification that funds allocated to the claimant were expended 
in conformance with applicable laws, rules, and regulations of the TDA and allocation instructions of 
MCTC. 
 

A report of a fiscal and compliance audit made by an independent auditor shall be submitted by each 
claimant within 180 days after the end of the fiscal year. MCTC may, under special circumstances, grant 
an extension of up to 90 days as it deems necessary (CCR 6664). No reimbursement shall be made to 
any claimant that is delinquent in its submission of a fiscal and compliance audit report. The audit shall 
be conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards of the claimant's financial 
statements for the fiscal year, which shall be prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. 
 
AUDITING FOR CONFORMANCE 

General Guidelines 

Application of the following procedures will provide a standard approach in auditing for conformance 
and should be applied during the preliminary stages of the fiscal audit: 

• Obtain and review relevant documents and statements; 
• Review tasks in CCR 6666 or 6667 (whichever is applicable); 
• Interview responsible personnel as to compliance with laws, rules and regulations;  
• Seek verification of above interviews; and 
• Document the conformance review. 

 
The procedures are described in detail in the following text. 

 
Obtain and Review Relevant Documents and Statements: 

• TDA claim(s) corresponding to fiscal year being audited and related allocation instructions. 

84 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

11 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

• Statement by claimant that an effort was made to obtain federal funds for any major capital-
intensive improvement. 

• Management statements designating exceptions, waivers and/or provisions of the TDA that 
claimant may be subject to that are not identified in CCR 6666 or 6667 (whichever is 
applicable). 

• Copy of Short-Range Transit Development Plan. 
• Copy of State Controller’s Uniform System of Accounts and Records for Transit Operators. 
• Current copy of Transportation Development Act Statutes and California Code of 

Regulations, and the MCTC Guide to the Transportation Development Act. 
• Books, records, financial reports, and other pertinent data of claimant. 

 
Review Tasks in CCR 6666 or 6667; whichever is appropriate 

Interview Personnel 
Interview responsible personnel as to compliance with laws, rules and regulations. Upon identification 
of the applicable laws, rules, and regulations relating to conformance tasks, responsible personnel 
representing claimant should be questioned as to claimant’s compliance. Comments and observations 
should be encouraged in addition to yes or no responses. If nonconformance is suggested or 
determined, further discussion should be held with senior personnel. 

 
Seek Verification 
Seek verification of above interviews. Two of the facts that generally determine the amount of evidence 
necessary to verify conformance are: 

• The procedures and systems of controls used by the claimant to ensure reliability of 
management information; and 

• The significance of the conformance area. (The auditor should obtain more evidence to verify 
compliance if procedures or controls are not adequate or the conformance area is significant.) 

 
The process of verifying conformance may involve: 

• Testing the records and procedures of the claimant; 
• Observing the operations and physical assets of the claimant; 
• Analyzing information and data; and 
• Interviewing additional personnel. 

 
The procedures selected to verify conformance answers are a matter of judgment on the part of the 
auditor. However, regardless of the method selected, the auditor should be satisfied that the answers 
given during the conformance interviews are accurate and correct in all material respects. 

 
Document the Review 
The determination of conformance with applicable laws and regulations should be documented. A 
simple and effective method of documenting the conformance review is to use a columnar work 
paper to record the responses and the comments of the claimant and the types of procedures used to 
verity the responses and comments. 

85 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

12 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

CHAPTER 9 - PRODUCTIVITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 
 

 

9.1 WHAT IS A PRODUCTIVITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM? 
 

 

 
A Productivity Improvement Program (PIP) allows MCTC to monitor a transit operator’s or transit 
claimant’s progress toward meeting recommended improvements that can lower transit operating costs. 
MCTC is required to identify, analyze, and recommend potential improvements on an annual basis for 
transit operators receiving TDA funds under Article 4 (PUC Sec. 99244). At its discretion, MCTC can also 
recommend and track productivity improvements for transit claimants receiving TDA funds under Article 
8. 

 
9.2 HOW ARE RECOMMENDATIONS DEVELOPED? 

 
 

 
The recommendations should include, but are not limited to, the productivity recommendations 
made in the operator’s most recent TDA triennial performance audit (PUC Sec. 99244). MCTC can 
make recommendations on its own or set up a productivity committee to provide advice on developing 
productivity improvement recommendations and tracking improvements. 

 
TYPES OF RECOMMENDATIONS 

Productivity improvement recommendations for transit operators or transit claimants are divided into 
two categories: performance audit recommendations, and specific operator or claimant-initiated efforts 
to improve productivity. 

 
PERFORMANCE AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS 

MCTC staff will meet with each transit operator or transit claimant upon completion of the triennial 
performance audit process to review the audit recommendations and solicit the operator’s and 
claimant’s responses to the recommendations. MCTC will notify the operator and transit claimant of their 
responsibilities to implement the recommendations. At the time of application submittal, each operator 
or transit claimant shall submit a Productivity Improvement Progress Report form. Information provided 
on the form shall include: 

1. A discussion of the work undertaken to implement each recommendation during the current fiscal 
year; 

2. A short discussion of any problems encountered in implementing individual recommendations, 
and the success or failure of implemented recommendations in improving transit productivity; 
and 

3. Next steps the operator or transit claimant will take in continuing to implement the 
recommendation. 

  

86 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook   VOLUME II 
 

13 | Madera County Transportation Commission  

EFFORTS TO IMPROVE PRODUCTIVITY 

In addition to implementing the performance audit recommendations, each operator and transit 
claimant shall indicate if any special efforts have been or will be made to help cover costs and/or 
increase ridership. These efforts shall be summarized for both fixed-route and demand responsive 
operations and be included on the annual Productivity Improvement Progress Report. 

 
9.3 WHAT HAPPENS IF AN OPERATOR DOES NOT FOLLOW UP ON 
RECOMMENDATIONS? 

 

 
Before MCTC reimburses TDA funds to an operator, MCTC must evaluate the operator’s efforts to 
implement any recommended improvements. 

 
If MCTC determines that the operator has not made a reasonable effort to implement the 
recommended improvements, MCTC shall not approve LTF transit reimbursements for the coming fiscal 
year that exceed the transit reimbursement for the current fiscal year (PUC Sec. 99244). 

 
9.4 HOW IS PROGRESS TOWARD MEETING THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
TRACKED? 

 

 
Each operator and, if applicable, each transit claimant are required to submit the Productivity 
Improvement Progress Report form on an annual basis with its annual TDA application form. Each 
operator or transit claimant is required to provide enough information to enable MCTC to determine 
if a reasonable effort was made to implement the recommendations. A sample form is included in 
Appendix A (Form C). 

 

87 of 115



 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT GUIDEBOOK 
 

APPENDICES 
 

88 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook APPENDICES 
 

1 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

APPENDIX A  
APPLICATION FORMS 

 
 

The attached forms must be completed and submitted to MCTC to obtain TDA (both LTF and STA) funds. 
Please review Chapter 6 for documentation needed to submit with a TDA application. 

 
The following TDA application forms used in Madera County, the City of Madera and the City of Chowchilla 
are: 

1. Transportation Development Act Application Summary Form (Form A) 
2. Applications (Form A.1, A.2) 
3.  Resolution (Form B) 
4. Productivity Improvement Progress Report (Form C) 
5. Proposed Transit Operating Budget (Form D1) 
6. Proposed Transit Capital Budget (Form D2) 
7. Project Description and RTP Conformity (Form E) 
8. Standard Assurances (Form F) 

  

89 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook APPENDICES 
 

2 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

APPENDIX B  
GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

 
 
Allocation 

This is the process by which a jurisdiction elects to split its TDA apportionment between transit, 
bicycle, pedestrian, and street and road projects. Also refers to the division of total annual TDA 
funding among eligible claimants in the MCTC region. 

 
Apportionment 

The share of Madera County’s TDA funds earmarked for each jurisdiction, generally according to 
population. For each fiscal year, it is the maximum amount for which claimants in any one area may 
apply. 

 
Assignment 

Monies which a city, county, or transit district authorizes to be claimed by an agency other than 
itself. Assignments are normally made to support the operation of a joint powers transit authority and 
to undertake cooperative projects. This action may also be referred to as a “transfer”. 

 
CEQA 

California Environmental Quality Act enacted in 1970 which requires environmental reporting on all 
“projects” which significantly affect the environment. 

 
Claimant 

A city, county, consolidated transportation service agency, or operator that is eligible to file a TDA claim. 
Other terms, such as applicant, mean the same. 

 
Consolidated Transportation Service Agency 

This type of agency is eligible for Article 4.5 funds under specific funding criteria as amended into the TDA 
by AB 120, and including an agency formed to consolidate social service transit operations in order to 
increase service and cost-effectiveness, to improve driver training, vehicle dispatching and maintenance, 
and to provide better administration of social service transit operations. 

 
Demand Responsive 

Transit service provided without a fixed-route and without a fixed schedule that operates in response 
to calls from passengers or their agents to the transit operator or dispatcher. Service is usually provided 
using cars, vans, or buses with fewer than 25 seats. 

 
Depreciation 

An expense that records the diminishing value of certain assets, does not represent an actual cash 
outlay. 

  

90 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook APPENDICES 
 

3 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

Elderly 
Refers to persons 65 years of age or older. 

 
Enterprise Fund 

A method of accounting which treats an activity like a commercial entity, and which encompasses a 
complete set of self-balancing accounts. This enables the preparation of financial statements which 
depict the financial position and results of operations by fiscal period. 

 
Fare Revenue 

This revenue includes all revenues in the following uniform system of accounts revenue classes: 
• 401.000 Passenger Fares for Transit Service 
• 402.000 Special Transit Fares 
• 403.000 School Bus Service Revenues 

 
Fare revenue also includes cash donations made by individuals in lieu of prescribed fares. Also, in the case 
of claimants allocated funds to pay contract transit costs to another entity, fare revenues include 
the amount of fares received by the entity providing the service and not transferred to the claimant. 

 
Farebox Recovery Ratio 

Transit systems funded by TDA claimants are required to maintain certain expense to revenue ratios. The 
formula for calculating the ratio is total fare revenue divided by the total cost of transit operations. 

 
Fiscal Year 

The state fiscal year begins July 1 and ends on June 30. 
 
General Public Transportation 

Transportation services which are provided using vehicles for use by the general population within a given 
service area. 

 
Person with Disabilities 

Any individual who by reason of illness, injury, age, congenital malfunction, or other permanent or 
temporary incapacity or disability, including, but not limited to, any individual confined to a wheelchair, 
is unable, without special facilities or special planning or design, to use public transportation facilities 
and services as effectively as a person who is not so affected. As used in law, a temporary incapacity or 
disability is a condition which lasts more than 90 days. (PUC Section 99206.5) 

Joint Powers Agreement 
A legally binding agreement between two or more units of government which establishes a multi- 
jurisdictional special district with specified powers and responsibilities, such as to provide public 
transportation. 

 
Local Transportation Fund (LTF) 

91 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook APPENDICES 
 

4 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

This is the fund established in each county pursuant to the Transportation Development Act (TDA). Into 
this fund is deposited ¼ of 1 cent of state general sales tax generated in each county and returned 
to the county of origin to be used for transportation purposes. 

 
Municipal Operator 

A city or county, including any nonprofit corporation or other legal entity wholly owned or controlled by 
the city or county, which operates a public transportation system, or which on July 1, 1972, financially 
supported, in whole or in part, a privately owned public transportation system, and which is not included, 
in whole or in part, within an existing transit district. It also refers to a county which is located in part 
within a transit district and which operates a public transportation system in the unincorporated area 
of the county not within the area of the district. (PUC Section 99209 and 99209.1) 

 
NEPA 

The National Environmental Policy Act, enacted in 1969, requires environmental reporting on all 
federally funded “projects” which significantly affect the environment. 

 
Nonprofit Corporation 

Any corporation organized for any lawful purposes which does not contemplate the distribution of gains, 
profits, or dividends to the members thereof, such as religious, social, and public transportation 
corporations. 

 
Nonurbanized Area 

An area having a population of less than 50,000 as defined by population figures from the latest 
Federal Census. An operator serves a “nonurbanized area” if 50 percent or more of the population of its 
service area is located within the boundaries of a nonurbanized area. 

 
Operating Cost 

All costs in the operating expense object classes exclusive of the costs in the depreciation and 
amortization expense object class of the uniform system of accounts and records adopted by the State 
Controller pursuant to PUC Section 99243 and exclusive of all subsidies for commuter rail services 
operated under the jurisdiction of the Interstate Commerce Commission and of all direct costs for 
providing charter services, and exclusive of all vehicle lease costs. (PUC Section 
99247) 

 
Operator 

Includes any transit district, included transit district, municipal operator, included municipal operator, or 
transit development board. For the purposes of filing an Article 4 Public Transportation Claim a transit 
district, included municipal operator, or municipal operator must own or lease the equipment, establish 
routes and service frequencies, regulate and collect fares, and otherwise control the efficiency and quality 
of the operation of the system. 

 
Passenger Miles 

92 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook APPENDICES 
 

5 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

The total number of miles traveled by transit passengers, so that a bus that carries 5 passengers for a 
distance of 3 miles incurs 15 passenger miles. 

 
Performance Audit 

Independent triennial performance audits are required to be conducted of transportation planning 
agencies, and operators receiving Article 4 funding. The purpose of these audits is to evaluate the 
efficiency, effectiveness, and economy of the operation of the entity being audited. The audits are 
completed in accordance with the Comptroller General’s Standards for Audit of Governmental 
Organizations, Programs, Activities, and Functions. (PUC Section 99246) 

 
Private Corporation or Entity 

A corporation, company, association, or joint stock association engaged in transacting business for 
compensation within the state. 

 
Productivity Improvement Program 

A program that allows MCTC to monitor a transit operator’s or transit claimant’s progress toward 
meeting recommended improvements that can lower transit operating costs. Recommendations are 
developed by the SSTAC whose membership consists of representatives from management of the 
operators, employee organizations, and users of transportation services. 

 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 

The plan adopted every four (4) years by the MCTC to establish transportation policies, and by the state 
to guide development of transportation services and facilities in California. The RTP relates 
transportation to land use, population, environmental and social policy issues, and is required by state 
and federal law. 

 
Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA) 

An RTPA is responsible for the preparation of all federal and state transportation plans and programs that 
secure transportation funding for highways, local streets and roads, transit, aviation, rail and 
bikeway/pedestrian facilities. The MCTC is the RTPA for Madera County. 

Reserve 
An allocation of TDA monies to be held in the fund by the County Auditor for a period not to exceed three 
years. 
 
State of Good Repair (SGR) 
A transportation funding program contained in the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (SB 1). This 
fund supplements existing funding sources for public transit services. SGR funds are generated from a 
portion of the Transportation Improvement Fee on vehicle registrations. These funds will be allocated 
under the State Transit Assistance Program formula. Half of the funds are allocated according to population 
and half according to transit operator revenues. (PUC 99312.1) 
 

Social Services Technical Advisory Council (SSTAC) 

93 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook APPENDICES 
 

6 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

A committee appointed by MCTC made up of representatives from social service providers, the 
elderly and the disabled. The SSTAC participates in the annual unmet transit needs process. This 
includes a finding by resolution that in its area (a) there are no unmet transit needs, (b) there are no 
unmet transit needs that are reasonable to meet, (c) there are unmet transit needs, including needs that 
are reasonable to meet. (PUC Section 99238) 
 

Specialized Transportation Services 
Transit that primarily serves older adults, people with disabilities, and others whose mobility needs are 
not addressed by traditional fixed-route service. Typical services include demand-response, feeder, 
community bus, and route and point deviation services. 

 
State Transit Assistance Fund (STA) 

One of the two transportation funding programs contained in the Transportation Development Act (TDA). 
This fund was created by the passage of SB 620 in 1979 to supplement existing funding sources for 
public transit services. STA funds are generated from the statewide sales tax on diesel fuel, state sales 
tax revenue from the excise tax, and Proposition 42. Each year during the budget process, the State 
Legislature designates the amount of money available for STA. 

 
Transit District 

A public district organized pursuant to state law and designated in the enabling legislation as a transit 
district or rapid transit district to provide public transportation service. (PUC Section 99213) 

 
Transit Service Claimant 

In Madera County, a jurisdiction may file a claim for contract transit payments pursuant to Article 8 (c). A 
claimant filing under Article 4 is considered an operator. 

 
Transportation Development Act (TDA) 

State law, SB 325, enacted in 1971, with subsequent amendments that created a Local Transportation 
Fund in each county in which ¼ of 1 cent of local sales taxes are deposited annually, to be used for 
transportation purposes. Also includes the State Transit Assistance Fund (STA) enacted in 1979 as SB 620. 

 
Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) 

A federal and state mandated document that lists a four-year program of transportation projects for 
federal, state, and local funding. 

Transportation Planning Agency (TPA) 
An agency that has responsibility for administering the transportation funds available for the area 
under its jurisdiction. MCTC was established as a planning agency under PUC Section 99214 (c). 

 
Uniform System of Accounts 

The chart of accounts and financial reporting format specified in the State Comptroller General’s 
Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Programs, Activities, and Functions. (PUC Section 
99246) This financial accounting system is required of all TDA funding recipients. 

94 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook APPENDICES 
 

7 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

 
Unmet Transit Needs Process 

TDA requires that before any Article 8 funds can be allocated for street and road purposes, MCTC must 
afford opportunities for citizen participation, called the “Unmet Needs” process. The SSTAC is to be 
involved in this process in order to hear the transit needs of transit dependent or disadvantaged 
persons. A least one public hearing must be held annually, and the findings must be forwarded to MCTC 
and Caltrans concerning whether there are any unmet transit needs that are judged reasonable to 
meet in the jurisdiction. (PUC Sections 99238, 99401) 

 
Urbanized Area 

An urbanized area has a population of 50,000 persons or more, according to the most recent federal 
census. An operator serves in an urbanized area if 50 percent or more of the population of its service area 
is located within the boundaries of an urbanized area, with exceptions as specified in PUC Section 
6645.

95 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook APPENDICES 
 

8 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

APPENDIX C  
SOCIAL SERVICE TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COUNCIL RULES 

 
The Social Services Transportation Advisory Council (SSTAC) was established under the requirements of the 
Transportation Development Act. The SSTAC serves as an advisory body to the Madera County 
Transportation Commission (MCTC) regarding the transit needs of residents of the Madera Region, 
including, but not limited to, transit dependent and transit disadvantaged persons such as the elderly, 
disabled, and persons of limited means. 
 
The SSTAC shall be governed by the following rules. 
 

A. RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

1. Advise MCTC on the following: 

a. Transit needs of the general public (e.g. hours of service, new bus routes, shorter headways, 
etc.) including, but not limited to, transit dependent and transit disadvantaged persons such 
as the elderly, disabled, and persons of limited means. 

b. Coordination between transit service providers in the region. 

c. Other issues the membership believes are relevant to transit in the Madera Region (i.e. 
potential review of transit grant applications, coordination/consolidation of specialized transit 
services, connections to interregional transit services, etc.) 

2. Annually participate in the identification of transit needs in the Madera Region, including unmet 
transit needs that may exist and that may be reasonable to meet by establishing or contracting 
for new public transportation or specialized transportation services. 

3. Annually review and recommend action by MCTC which finds, by resolution, that: 

a. there are no unmet transit needs; 

b. there are no unmet transit needs that are reasonable to meet; and/or 

c. there are unmet transit needs, including needs that are reasonable to meet. 
 

B. PARTICIPANTS 
 

1. SSTAC meeting participation shall include seven members per statutory guidelines (see Public 
Utilities Code Section 99238 below): 

(a) One representative of potential transit users who is 60 years of age or older. 

(b) One representative of potential transit users who is disabled. 

(c) Two representatives of local social service providers for seniors, including one representative 
of a social service transportation provider, if one exists. 

96 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook APPENDICES 
 

9 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

(d) Two representatives of local social service providers for the disabled, including one 
representative of a social service transportation provider, if one exists. 

(e) One representative of a local social service provider for persons of limited means. 

(f) Two representatives from the local consolidated transportation service agency, designated 
pursuant to subdivision (a) of Section 15975 of the Government Code, if one exists, including 
one representative from an operator, if one exists. 

(g) The MCTC Board of Commissioners may appoint additional members in accordance with the 
procedure in subdivision (b) of Section 99238 of the Government Code. 

2. In appointing council members, MCTC shall strive to attain geographic and minority 
representation among council members. 

 

C. TERM OF OFFICE 
 

1. The term of appointment shall be for three years and may be renewed. 
 

D. VACANCIES 
 

1. A vacancy shall be created when a member: resigns; completes their term of appointment and 
does not wish to be reappointed; misses three consecutive regular meetings without good cause; 
or when a member can no longer carry out their responsibilities as a council member. 

2. If a member resigns during his/her term, MCTC’s Executive Director may fill vacancies, in 
consultation with the SSTAC or SSTAC Chair, for the remainder of the original term. 

3. The MCTC Board of Commissioners approves three-year appointments. 

4. All SSTAC positions shall be advertised every three years to either extend the tenure of current 
positions or appoint new members. 

 

E. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 

1. During the first meeting of the calendar year, the council shall elect a Chair and Vice Chair to serve 
for one year. Upon resignation of an officer, a special election shall be held. 

 

F. DUTIES OF OFFICERS 
 

1. Chair: The Chair shall preside at all SSTAC meetings. The Chair may appoint committees, conduct 
elections to fill the positions of Chair and Vice Chair, prepare and sign correspondence reflecting 
SSTAC votes or input provided, and may delegate his/her responsibility to sign correspondence. 
The Chair or his/her designee should report to the MCTC Board of Commissioners on 
recommendations of the SSTAC. 

97 of 115



Transportation Development Act Guidebook APPENDICES 
 

10 | Madera County Transportation Commission 
 

2. Vice Chair: In the absence of the Chair, the Vice Chair shall perform the duties of the Chair. 
 

3. Secretary: The Secretary shall be a staff member of MCTC. The Secretary shall provide information 
and general assistance; take meeting notes for all SSTAC meetings; prepare agendas, SSTAC letters 
and other correspondence, as requested by the Chair; and prepare and distribute special notices, 
agenda announcements, staff reports and other materials. 

 

G. ORGANIZATION AND PROCEDURES 
 

1. Meetings:  The SSTAC shall meet at least twice per year, typically in April. Additional meetings may 
be held as needed. Alternate times and dates to those scheduled must be agreed upon by a 
majority of the members in order to carry out the responsibilities described above. The meetings 
shall be open to the public in compliance with the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Section 
54950 et seq.) and shall be held at the Madera County Transportation Commission office. If an 
alternate location is required, it must be an accessible location in order to facilitate the attendance 
of physically disabled members of the SSTAC and the community in general. In the event both the 
Chair and Vice Chair are absent, the majority of a quorum may appoint a presiding officer for that 
meeting. 

2. Quorum: A quorum shall constitute one-half (1/2) plus one (1) of the current membership. 

3. Voting: Actions are generally taken by consensus of all participants. If a vote is required, it shall 
be by a voice vote unless any member requests a roll call vote. Where a vote is taken, passage 
requires four votes. 

4. Limitation of Discussion: Discussion on any matter by council members or the general public may 
be limited to such length of time as the Chair may deem reasonable under the circumstances. 

5. Conduct of Meetings: Meetings are generally to be conducted in accordance with the principles 
of Robert’s Rules of Order. 

6. Meeting Notes: Meeting notes recording the members and visitors present, motions entertained, 
and actions taken at each meeting shall be prepared by MCTC staff and posted on the MCTC 
website. 

7. Rules: These rules may be amended by a majority vote of the SSTAC members and subsequent 
approval by the MCTC Board of Commissioners. 

8. Communications: Official communications shall be in writing and shall be approved by the SSTAC 
or SSTAC Chair. Official communications approved by the SSTAC Chair shall be shared with the 
SSTAC as soon as reasonably practical. The Chair, or his/her designee, should make presentations 
to the MCTC Board for unmet transit needs findings. 
 

 
 
Approved by MCTC Policy Board on March 18, 2020.  

98 of 115



 
 

 

 

   

  

 

    

  

  

 

  
  

 
 

  

    

  

  

  

  

    

    

   

   

  

 

   

  

    

 

  

 
   

                  
                                                       
                    
                
 

       
              
                                                                   

BEFORE 

THE COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

COUNTY OF MADERA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the matter of Resolution No.: 19-10 

ALLOCATION OF FY 2019-20 Amendment No. 2 

LOCAL TRANSPORTATON FUND 

WHEREAS, the California Transportation Development Act established the Local 

Transportation Fund (LTF) and a continuous appropriation of said Fund, and 

WHEREAS, the Madera County Transportation Commission (MCTC) is empowered to 

authorize apportionment and allocation of said Fund, and 

WHEREAS, $100,000 has been apportioned for Administration, $88,266 has been reserved 

for Pedestrian and Bicycle facilities, and 

WHEREAS, the Local Agencies have agreed to a MCTC expenditure of $132,400 for shared 

system planning costs, per Section 99233.2 of the Transportation Development Act; and 

WHEREAS, there is the sum of $4,413,322 to be allocated from LTF, 2019-20; 

WHEREAS, the Madera County Transportation Commission has made the finding in 

Resolution No. 19-03 that there are no substantial unmet transit needs that are reasonable to meet in 

FY 2019-20 within the jurisdictions of the County of Madera, the City of Madera, and the City of 

Chowchilla, and 

WHEREAS, the County of Madera has requested to carryover allocations from FY 2017-18 

and reallocate their allocations; 

NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED, that the following sums have been allocated 

under the California Administrative Code by the Madera County Transportation Commission to be 

expended by the City of Chowchilla, the City of Madera, and the County of Madera for the purposes set 

forth below: 

(A) City of Chowchilla
CATX $ 140,345 
Pedestrian & Bicycle Projects $ 7,051 
MCTC Planning Services $ 10,576 
Street & Road Projects $ 194,572 

(B) City of Madera
MAX, Intermodal $1,092,649 
Pedestrian & Bicycle Projects $ 136,948.86 

Return to Agenda

99 of 115

https://136,948.86


 
 

 

                   
           
 

   
                     
                   
                         
                
           

 
 
  

        
 
 
 

    
   
    
   
    
    

 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 

 
  

 

___________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________ 

Resolution 19-10 
Amendment No. 2 

MCTC Planning Services 
Street & Road Projects 

$ 55,122 
$ 4,266,069.07 

C) County of Madera 
Amtrak 
MCC 
Pedestrian & Bicycle Projects 
MCTC Planning Services 
Street & Road Projects 

$ 66,702 
$ 1,835,456.30 

$ 
$ 
$ 

22,387 
285,020 
673,118 

The foregoing resolution was adopted this 18th day of March 2020 by the following vote: 

Commissioner Andrew Medellin _____ 
Commissioner Max Rodriguez _____ 
Commissioner Waseem Ahmed _____ 
Commissioner Jose Rodriguez _____ 
Commissioner Tom Wheeler _____ 
Commissioner Brett Frazier _____ 

Chairman, Madera County Transportation Commission 

Executive Director, Madera County Transportation Commission 

100 of 115



 
 

 

 

   

  

 

    

  

    

 

  
  

 
  

   

   

   

  

 

       

   

   

  

  

 

 

   

 

   

  

      

   

 

 
       

  
        
   

  
      
  

 
        

BEFORE 

THE COMMISSIONERS OF THE 

MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

COUNTY OF MADERA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the matter of Resolution No.: 19-11 

ALLOCATION OF FY 2019-20 Amendment No. 2 

STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE FUND 

WHEREAS, State Transit Assistance funds have been made available to the Madera County 

Transportation Commission by the State Controller in the amount of $1,428,386, a decrease of $125,717 

from the original allocation; 

WHEREAS, the Madera County Transportation Commission has apportioned these funds to 

the City of Chowchilla, City of Madera, and the County of Madera for the provision of Transit Operations 

and Transit Planning, and has invited applications for proposed uses of these funds; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Chowchilla, the City of Madera, and the County of Madera submitted 

its applications recognizing the State Controller’s revised allocated amount; 

WHEREAS, the agencies have complied by submitting appropriate documents detailing 

those projects and have sought authority to proceed; and 

WHEREAS, priority consideration has been given to claims to enhance existing public 

transportation services, and to meet high priority regional, county-wide, or area-wide public 

transportation needs; and 

WHEREAS, the sum of each of the three entities allocations from the State Transit 

Assistance Fund does not exceed the amount that each claimant is eligible to receive; 

WHEREAS, the County of Madera has requested to carryover allocations from FY 2017-18 

and reallocate their allocations; 

NOW, THEREFORE, LET IT BE RESOLVED, that the County Auditor shall establish the 

following reserves and pay out of the State Transit Assistance Fund in the amount listed for the transit 

projects shown below: 

CLAIMANT 2019-20 STA 
City of Chowchilla 

CATX $ 125,247 

City of Madera 
MAX, DAR, Intermodal $ 619,063.53 

County of Madera 
MCC $ 713,693.81 

101 of 115



 
 

 

 
 

       
 
 

    
   
    
   
    
    

 
 
 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 

 
  

 

___________________________________________________ 

___________________________________________________ 

Resolution 19-11 
Amendment No. 2 

The foregoing resolution was adopted this 18th day of March 2020 by the following vote: 

Commissioner Andrew Medellin _____ 
Commissioner Max Rodriguez _____ 
Commissioner Waseem Ahmed _____ 
Commissioner Jose Rodriguez _____ 
Commissioner Tom Wheeler _____ 
Commissioner Brett Frazier _____ 

Chair, Madera County Transportation Commission 

Executive Director, Madera County Transportation Commission 

102 of 115



-----------

~~£1:E••. 
MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Application for Appointment as member of 
Solicitud de nombramiento como miembro de/ 

SOCIAL SERVICES TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COUNCIL 
Consejo Asesor de Transporte de Servicios Socia/es (SSTAC) 

DATE/ FECHA : 

NAMEINOMBRE: 

HOME ADDRESS!DTRECCION: 

Street/ Calle City/ Ciudad Zip Code/ C6digo Postal 

WORK ADDRESS/ l;, /VI pfu 'j l:::-0 (\ JJ- rfc_E;X.JT LY S~I( , ·~ c;vt.f(by,,J-· 
DJRECCJON DE EMPLEO: 

treet/ Calle 1¼'f - · · 

"/,\ 

l Zip Code/ C6digo Postal 

PHONE/ TEL: Home/ca Cell Work/Empleo: 

EMAIL/ Correo electr6nico: ___________:_1u_,C,1.,__,_..-'------------------

Request to Represent/ Solicitud para representar. 

){_ Potential Transit User 60 Years or Older/ Usuario potencial de transporte publico 

'JC. Local Social Service Provider for Seniors/ Proveedor local de servicios sociales para personas mayores 

j_ Potential Transit User Who Is Disabled/ Usuario potencia/ de fransporte publico que esta deshabilitado 

_ Representative of the Local Service Provider for Disabled/ Representante de/ proveedor de servicios 

locales para discapacitados 

L Representative of a Local Service Provider for Persons of Limited Means/ Representante de un 

proveedor de servicios locales para personas de recursos limitados 

_ Representative from the Local Consolidated Transportation Service Agency/ Representante de la 
Agencia de Transporte Conso/idado Local 

Describe why you wish to serve as a member on the Social Services Transportation Advisory Council. 
(Usf! additional spac;e if11eedf!d) /Desc,riba por que desea ser miembro de! Consejo Asesor de Transporle de Servicios 
Socia/es. (Use espacw extra s1 lo neces,ta) , ·

.I -1Jtv; .ve.P-'j EY-:c. i:e-1J -~&>J.J ,fie ,1c.,1lfoex.-l( Tr<-A-asrr: /r !__ -1t 
f>r::::,:Aur;r:OL -'-/JJ:>DJ7ilJu Tt? ~ fA- ·-,-TJ./41..1,t \ov.1-!-

ri°r<JT Movefi) t!J ///1-.//DeY<-~ _1 T./1~ 70 5 va <s~-P IVf YIJ c+f, Lbi.. , 4 ftf) 
rv?owO 14-t,W)y .. 1<..(d LC T fZ::ICC. A-VI) wr>JL:_9 {AJ\Qaf'-l <;t #cf>v'QC,/.1:/,n.
:S i-/l.V/Hq Tij I ~ Co1-4,ut)J..}1TY j=p{(_ Tr-I f::::-. {2_,t::, S,. T aF /{A'f ,-::u vs. 

Provide any additional information you believe will be helpful during the applicant review process. 
(Use additional space if needed). Proporcione cualquier informaci6n adicional que considere util durante el proceso 
de revision de su solicidud (Use espacio extra si lo necesita) 

Signature/ Firma: 

Return to Agenda

103 of 115

https://JJ-rfc_E;X.JT


WORK ADDRESS: 

Street City Zip Code 

(!iil{'fiiEH!.~S!L 

MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Application for Appointment as member of 

SOCIAL SERVICES TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COUNCIL 
(SSTAC) 

DATE: "J ... l- S° - /4' 
NAME: - - - --¥~;.i,:;kk.=l?:=.!N--=------L-k'\.!..::..O'(+-- - --------
HOME ADDRESS: ____________________ _ _ _ 

Street City Zip Code 

Home:_______Cell:~ork_______ _PHONE: 

EMAIL:--------= .___ ___ _ _ _ 

Request to Represent: 

_Potential Transit User 60 Years or Older 
_Potential Transit User Who Is Disabled 
_Local Social Service Provider for Seniors 
£Local Social Service Transportation Provider for Seniors 
_Local Social Service Provider for Disabled 
_Local Social Service Transportation Provider for Disabled 
_Local Service Provider for Persons of Limited Means 
_Other (Optional) - Transportation Planning Agency may appoint additional members in 
accordance with the procedure prescribed in subdivision (b). 

Describe why you wish to serve as a member on the Social Services Transportation Advisory Council. 
(Use additional space ifneeded) 

fo ~ ~.f.-r~ oF ~k~ ~J ~ ! ~-1 ~ 
o~ r~'"d~-h ~ k~ ~ ~~ .µ._,,_ • 

-M,.A..,f- ~ l l e.M--1--b t.e. ~ -h ,t, e., proit~ i>-~~ 
6'1-,-..,..f....~ ~Uvft!-.U -H-1..../,,.,-e.J. +o ~r- -#u..eJ...i -

~ -

Pro y dditional information you believe will be helpful during the applicant review process. 
(Use additional space ifneeded). 

Signature: 

104 of 115

https://r--#u..eJ


MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Application for A1>pointmcnt as member of 

SOCIAL SERVICES TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COUNCIL 
(SSTAC) 

DATE: /27////h d d?t?/9 
NAME: ,~/214 (!JMh' 
HOME 
ADDRESS: 

Street City Zip Code 

Street City Zip Code 

PHONE: Home: ____ _ Cell: 

WORK 
ADDRESS: 

Work: 

EMAIL: 
.-,' 

Request to Represent: 

Potential Transit User 60 Years or Older 
_ Local Social Service Provider for Seniors 
_ Potential Transit User Who Is Disabled 
_ Representative of the Local Service Provider for Disabled 
~ Representative of a Local Service Provider for Persons of Limited Means 
_ Representative from the Local Consolidated Transpmiation Service Agency 

Describe why you wish to serve as a member on the Social Services Transportation Advisory Council. 
(Use additional space ifneeded) 

·7JJ?,, n???c-lcx-z ttltJ1')rffe/cc A::;J:JJ/(//J(t:! (e/?~7 /5 .a /'t?/?o/?e/5/j/, 
tJ/ (,c)/J?/7?(//J//y cl~tt?'Jt'/df' S~t'Ylt'Z~7:/~ //J /l1~c"'71//?f1 cl J/t1J?.f-7/f/lJ/ 
(f/J/ l}mt:Y,. /?c"C~~/?t.'/1~,/?~ ;/W,/l?~?c?#Ld,,?. 77J!~ tJt,? ttJI~/£( //C" 
/l;1J (}/;t?l)///D?j/ /z) //.tJ/7/c-/v" //?/////- /JJ? //Jt'✓ i//?/7?/J/ /n:MJ//-/?cttr/ 
tY /Y//' /l/✓/tJ/J?LYJ:J'". 

Signature: 
105 of 115



MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Application for Appointment as member of 

SOCIAL SERVICES TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COUNCIL 
(SSTAC) 

DATE: /0 · 3- I q 

NAME: 

HOME ADDRESS: 

WORK ADDRESS: 

Street City Zip Code 

Street City Zip Code 

PHONE: Home.-________Cell:- ork---

EMAIL: 

Request to Represent: 

~otential Transit User 60 Years or Older 
__Potential Transit User Who Is Disabled 
__p.-Local Social Service Provider for Seniors 
_._Local Social Service Transportation Provider for Seniors 
__Local Social Service Provider for Disabled 

__Local Social Service Transportation Provider for Disabled 
_Local Service Provider for Persons of Limited Means 
__Other (Optional) -Transportation Planning Agency may appoint additional members in 
accordance with the procedure prescribed in subdivision (b). 

Describ · why you wish lo serve as a member on Lhe Social Services Transportation Advisory Council. 
(Useaddifionalsp11· 1 ij'11'Cded) I VD U . l,i ss-r AL a.i\Ll~ 0.... /Yle.1111.612.Y/ L w\si--i +o 

\ eu..-t (\ +~e. Cot1'\ IVW/l l:,:j es f\ee ti ) \ :, {1 how 4-0 resolue.s H.o.se ().e.ed5, cuid -lo 
fl 11w +o beA.:ter S:) 0 f, a!e Cow1,vlu,1 }-hes, 

Provide any additional information you believe will be helpful during the applicant review process. 
(Use addition al space ifneeded). :J!...J e.., 6e.evJ I f\ +-k e.. t.v ~ n(Po 11...f:. c.,__--\:-\ Dvt I h. ,Li; ( , ~ +or 

eves :?.Cl ~Q...i; , ..I w"--S ~wc..('d~J -i-ke. Bk.t:.-l:.uJ,• ll -
C~<~·:,Ciu...~,e oC N..-k)~vcm~wt. 11'1 WIO, Afld. .r aM a... 

~~+t'., ~r+1 ~,e.d 13vs J<~ve.r lfls+rvc.:fo.r-

106 of 115



- - ------------------------

MADERA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Application for Appointment as member of 

SOCIAL SERVICES TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COUNCIL 
(SSTAC) 

DATE: I1/07 l ;Joi 9: 

NAME.- G001 e SQ.\P - M.,J TOJ{)n:p?v::-l-i0-ho'""D ., ItlYQ.._ 

HOME ADDRESS: 
Street City Zip Code 

WORK ADDRESS: 

EMAIL. 

Request to Represent: 

_ Potential Transit User 60 Years or Older 
_Potential Transit User Who Is Disabled 
_Local Social Service Provider for Seniors 
_Local Social Service Transportation Provider for Seniors 
_)'.__Local Social Service Provider for Disabled 
_Local Social Service Transportation Provider for Disabled 
_Local Service Provider for Persons of Limited Means 
_Other (Optional) - Transpo1tation Planning Agency may appoint additional members in 
accordance with the procedure prescribed in subdivision (b). 

Describe why you wish to serve as a member on the Social Services Transportation Advisory Council. 
(Use additivnal space //'needed) 11 ( ,__.. . 
I Hf,l v11Jt:JQ 'j•lu Q,i-1--j m lf-AO,C ..ev-a\ I 11r.;1,nS, j 5'ybl-bn {MAJ( I /v(fJT::78 7/J J.,/&-,'1?0 Gwvl D1a l-A

JZ1de) 

Provide any additional information you believe will be helpful during the applicant review process. 
(Use additional space ifneeded). 

Signatur 

107 of 115



. 
 
 
Potential Transit User 60 Years or Older (minimum of 1) 
 

APPOINTMENT GEOGRAPHIC/AGENCY 
REPRESENTATION 

TERM EXPIRES 

Pamela Mashack City of Madera (Geographic) 6-23 
 
Representatives of the Local Social Service Providers for Seniors (minimum of 2) 
 

APPOINTMENT GEOGRAPHIC/AGENCY 
REPRESENTATION 

TERM EXPIRES 

Rosalind Esqueda Fresno EOC/Madera County 6-23 
Ellen Moy Madera County 6-23 
 
Potential Transit User Who Is Disabled (minimum of 1) 
 

APPOINTMENT GEOGRAPHIC/AGENCY 
REPRESENTATION 

TERM EXPIRES 

Loretta Castro City of Madera (Geographic) 6-23 
 
Representative of the Local Social Service Provider for Disabled (minimum of 2) 
 

APPOINTMENT GEOGRAPHIC/AGENCY 
REPRESENTATION 

TERM EXPIRES 

Annie Self MV Transit 6-23 
VACANT   
 
Representative of a Local Social Service Provider for Persons of Limited Means (minimum 
of 1) 
 

APPOINTMENT GEOGRAPHIC/AGENCY 
REPRESENTATION 

TERM EXPIRES 

Sophia Aguilar Madera County Workforce Corporation 6-23 
Chinayera Black First 5 Madera 6-23 
 
 
Representatives from the Local Consolidated Transportation Service Agency (minimum of 
2) *DOES NOT EXIST. PER TDA GUIDEBOOK WE DO NOT NEED 
Staff 
 

108 of 115



APPOINTMENT AGENCY REPRESENTATION TERM EXPIRES 
Amelia Davies Madera County Transportation Comm.  
Dylan Stone Madera County Transportation Comm.  
 
 
 
 
 

109 of 115



Gross Allocation 10,400,000.00 Jurisdiction Population1 Rate
Deductions 0.00 County 80,196 0.5027

Net Allocation 10,400,000.00 Madera 66,419 0.4163
Chowchilla 12,921 0.081

159,536

County Madera Chowchilla MCTA
Measure T Programs Percent Allocation Allocation Allocation Allocation

Commute Corridors/Farm to Market 51.00% 5,304,000.00$    
Regional Streets and Highways Program 26.00% 2,704,000.00$    2,704,000.00$   

Regional Rehab 25.00% 2,600,000.00$    1,307,020.00$   1,082,380.00$   210,600.00$     

Safe Routes to School & Jobs 44.00% 4,576,000.00$    
Street Maintenance 13.00% 1,352,000.00$    679,650.40$      562,837.60$      109,512.00$     

County Maintenance District, etc 8.75% 910,000.00$       457,457.00$      378,833.00$      73,710.00$       
Flexible2 21.75% 2,262,000.00$    1,137,107.40$   941,670.60$      183,222.00$     

ADA Compliance 0.50% 52,000.00$         26,140.40$        21,647.60$        4,212.00$         

Transit Enhancement Program 2.00% 208,000.00$       
Madera County 0.9199% 95,669.60$         95,669.60$        
City of Madera 0.7619% 79,237.60$         79,237.60$        

City of Chowchilla 0.1482% 15,412.80$         15,412.80$       
ADA/Seniors/Paratransit 0.17% 17,680.00$         8,887.74$          7,360.18$          1,432.08$         

Environmental Enhancement Program 2.00% 208,000.00$       104,561.60$      86,590.40$        16,848.00$       

Administration/Planning 1.00% 104,000.00$       104,000.00$      

TOTAL 3,816,494.14$   3,160,556.98$   614,948.88$     2,808,000.00$   

1-The Population figures are based on 05/01/19 DOF figures.  When the 05/01/20 figures are available, the estimates will be updated.
2-All flexible funds are currently frozen and are not available for programming.

March 2020

2020-21 Measure T Estimated Allocation

Return to Agenda

110 of 115



 

 

 
 

 
 

   
 
 

   

   
 

   

    

 
      

 

          

           

      

 

    
 

Return to Agenda 

STAFF REPORT AGENDA ITEM 9.A 

DATE: March 18, 2020 

TO: MCTC Policy Board sitting as the Madera County 2006 Transportation 
Authority 

FROM: Patricia Taylor, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Discussion of Measure T 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Information and discussion. Direction may be provided. 

SUMMARY: Staff will present a verbal report on the status of Measure T and will discuss 

potential next steps. Two flyers have been attached highlighting some of the projects that have 

been or will be completed soon. 

FISCAL IMPACT: There is no impact to MCTC’s 2019-20 Fiscal Year Budget. 

111 of 115



 MCTA 
MADERA COUNTY  

TRANSPORTATION  

AUTHORITY 

MEASURE T
IMPROVING OUR LOCAL  

TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM  
WITH LOCAL FUNDS 

Measure T Completed Projects – February 2020 

SAFER, QUICKER, BETTER ROADS Measure T ½ Cent Transportation 
Sales Tax Program 

Measure T Funds at Work 
Completed Projects Locations – Project Details Listed Within 

North Fork Roundabout  
Completed January 2020 

 

112 of 115



MCTA 
MADERA COUNTY  

TRANSPORTATION  

AUTHORITY 

Completed Regional Projects 
1 - Ellis Street Overcrossing 

Overall Costs - $16.4 Million $10.47 million Regional and Flexible Measure T Funds Completed – April 2013 

• Improved mobility and increased safety
• Relieved congestion at the State Route (SR) 99 | Cleveland Avenue interchange
• Connected North Madera and West Madera
• Designed to meet the needs of the traveling public
• Assists in accommodating the growing needs for better and safer streets
• Having Measure T allowed this project to be delivered a decade earlier

2 - 4th Street Widening 
Overall Costs - $11.38 Million $6.23 million Regional and Flexible Measure T Funds Completed – December 2015 

• Improved traffic operations for SR 99 on and off ramps and at signalized city street intersections
• Increased capacity and traffic flow on 4th Street and SR 99 overcrossing
• Having Measure T allowed this project to be delivered a decade earlier

3 - State Route 99 | Avenue 12 Interchange 
Overall Costs - $99.1 Million $11.57 million Regional and Flexible Measure T Funds Completed – September 2016 

• Improved mobility and increased safety
• Reduced congestion including reducing travel time and improving traffic flow
• Will meet future traffic demand from planned development
• Leveraging Measure T helped to secure State bond funds to accelerate delivery of the project

4 - State Route 41 Passing Lanes 
Overall Costs - $19.83 Million $8.78 million Regional and Flexible Measure T Funds Completed – December 2016 

• Reduced delay due to slow-moving vehicles on uphill grades
• Improved overall traffic operations by breaking up traffic platoons caused by inadequate passing opportunities
• Improved Level of Service from E to D
• Having Measure T allowed this project to be delivered a decade earlier

Recently Completed Local Projects 
5 – Madera County - North Fork Roundabout 
Overall Costs - $2.3 Million $1.0 million Environmental Enhancement Measure T 

Funds 
Completed – January 2020 

• Leveraged Federal Congestion Mitigation Air Quality funding of $1.3 million
• Improved mobility and increased safety

6 - City of Chowchilla – Fuller Neighborhood Project 
Overall Costs - $518,000 $217,900 Safe Routes to Schools and Street Maintenance 

Measure T Funds 
Completed – 2018 

• Leveraged Federal funding from Safe Routes to School and from State Senate Bill 1 Programs
• Improved mobility and increased pedestrian safety

7 - City of Chowchilla - Wilson School Area Pedestrian Improvements and Orange/6th Street Rehabilitation 
Overall Costs - $300,000 $158,000 Regional/Rehab Measure T Funds Completed – August 2019 

• Leveraged State Local Partnership Program funding

8 - City of Madera - Alley Paving at Various Locations 
Overall Costs - $794,245 $78,000 Environmental Enhancement Measure T Funds Completed – September 2019 

• Leveraged Federal Congestion Mitigation Air Quality funding

9 - City of Madera - City Street 3R and ADA Project 
Overall Costs - $556,675 $350,000 Regional/Rehab Measure T Funds Completed – September 2019 

• Leveraged State Senate Bill 1 and Local Partnership Program funding

Completed Projects Details – Locations on Back Cover 

City of Madera – City Street 3R and ADA Project City of Chowchilla – Fuller Neighborhood Project Ellis Street Overcrossing Project Madera Bus Shelter 113 of 115



MCTA 
MADERA COUNTY 

TRANSPORTATION 

AUTHORITY 

SAFER, QUICKER, BETTER ROADS 
  

  

 

 

 
   

  
    

     
   

   

    
   

  
 

 
  

 
 

    
  

 
 

  
 

 
  

  
  

   
    

 

  
 

   

 
   

 
  

   
  

   
 

   
 

   
  

   
 

    
   

   
   
    

  

 

 

  

  

 

   

  

 MEASURE T
Troy McNeil, Deputy Director | Fiscal Supervisor

troy@maderactc.org

Phone: (559) 675-0721, Ext. 12

IMPROVING OUR LOCAL 
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM

WITH LOCAL FUNDS
Measure T Progress Report - February 2020MADERACTC.ORG/MEASURET

Questions?  Feel free to reach out to us!

Measure T ½ Cent Transportation 
Sales Tax Program 

Defining Measure T and What it Means for Madera County 

What is Measure T? 

• Voter approved ½ cent retail transaction and 
use tax for the period April 1, 2007 through 
March 31, 2027 

• Program revenues fund local transportation 
programs and projects 

• Measure T financial projections estimate $197 
million for transportation improvements 
through 2027 

• Proceeds principally reserved for regional and 
local transportation projects, public 
transportation, and environmental 
enhancement 

• Program administered by the Madera County 
Transportation Authority and the Madera 
County Transportation Commission 

• Administered in accordance with plans and 
programs outlined in the Program’s Strategic 
(2017) and Investment Plans (2006) 

• Includes a Citizens’ Oversight Committee 
which plays a key role in shaping Madera 
County’s transportation future 

What Does Measure T Do for Madera 
County? 

• Madera County retail transaction and use tax 
funds, remain under local control, and fund 
local transportation related improvements 

• Addresses mobility needs of residents, 
businesses, and major industries over the 
course of the 20-year life of the Program 

• Leverages other federal, state and local funds 
($1 for $1) 

• Maintains and improves local streets and 
roadways 

• Enhances access to our local schools and 
hospitals 

• Enhances local transit programs for improved 
ridership options for all commuters 

• Allows for projects to be delivered sooner than 
originally planned 

• Maintains a strong economy (an increase in 
jobs = reinvestment in the local economy) 

• Enhances public safety and reduces congestion 
• Improves air quality for the region 
• Increases partnership opportunities with local 

agencies and Caltrans 

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION VISIT 

114 of 115



AUTHORITY 

     
  

 
    
    
    
     
    
     
      

 
    
      
    
    
      

     
    

 
     
    

 

County of Madera Projects 
2 Oakhurst Midtown Connector Regional 
3 Road 200 Phase 3 Bridge Replacement Regional 
4 Avenue 26 | Road 29 Rehabilitation Regional/Rehab 
5 Avenue 7 Rehabilitation Regional/Rehab 
6 Road 23 Bridge Replacement Regional/Rehab 
7 Pavement Management System Regional/Rehab 
8 Ongoing Road Maintenance Street Maintenance 

City of Madera Projects 
9 Olive Avenue Widening Regional/Rehab 

10 Fresno River Trail Undercrossing Project Environmental Enhancement 
11 Alley Paving Various Locations Environmental Enhancement 
12 Granada Drive/Howard Road Traffic Signal Regional/Rehab 
13 Sunset Avenue Sidewalk and Safety Improvements Environmental Enhancement 

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) Projects 
15 State Route 99 Widening from Avenue 12 to Avenue 17 Flexible 
16 State Route 99 | State Route 233 Interchange Improvement Flexible/Regional 

$7.5 Million* 
$3.85 Million 
$2.1 Million* 

$400,000 
$300,000 

$ TBD 
$ TBD 

$5.7 Million 
$400,000 
$77,812 

$165,000 
$11,723 

$4.8 Million 
$12.5 Million 

$950,460* Safe Routes to School and 
Street Maintenance 

1 Humboldt Storm Drainage and Road Rehabilitation Design 

Local and ADA Compliance $73,414 14 George Washington Elementary School Sidewalk 
Improvement Project 

*Estimated 

 

 

 
  

 

 
 

   
 

 
 

  

  

  
 

 
 

 

 

 

 Ellis St Ell is St 

.;; 

I 
> t:-...------l-=Ade""ns, +~--r---+--77 

Kenned Si 

I 
0 

3rd St 

Avenue 14 

CD 

"O 

"' 
O:'. 

Avenue 7 

~L----

~L------;;.=.::;===-

"O 

2l 

LEGEND: 

-6- State Route 

-- Local Streets & Roads 

• Cities 

■ Communities 

- County Boundary 

■ 

□ 

■ 

County Boundary Continues 
Beyond Map 

Chowchilla Projects 

Madera County Projects 

City of Madera Projects 

■ Caltrans Projects 

MCTA 
Measure T Projects Currently Under Way MADERA COUNTY 

TRANSPORTATION 

Measure T 
No. Project Name Measure T Program Program Funding 
City of Chowchilla Projects 

Countywide Ongoing Road Maintenance 
Locations To Be Determined 

Countywide Pavement Management System 
Locations To Be Determined 

7 

8 

16 

15 

115 of 115


	Agenda 0320
	TRANSPORTATION ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS

	Item 3.B Chowchilla UTN Flier (R)
	Item 3.B Madera UTN Flier (R)
	Item 3.B Oakhurst UTN Flier (R)
	Item 3.C 2019-20 CMAQ Board (R)
	Sheet1

	Item 3.D LCTOP Resolution (R)
	Item 3.E1 RSTP Exchange Agreement (R)
	Item 3.E2 RSTP Resolution (R)
	Item 4.A Valley Voice Sacramento Staff Report (R)
	Item 6.A February 19 2020 meeting minutes (R)
	Item 6.B TDA MCTC Guidebook, 2020 Update (R)
	CHAPTER 6 - FILING A TDA APPLICATION/CLAIM 1
	CHAPTER 7 - MCTC TDA CLAIM SCHEDULE 5
	CHAPTER 8 - MANAGEMENT OF THE TDA PROGRAM 6
	CHAPTER 9 - PRODUCTIVITY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 12
	1.1 GUIDEBOOK PURPOSE
	1.2   TDA OVERVIEW
	1.3   GOVERNING LEGISLATION AND SOURCE OF INFORMATION
	2.1  WHO CAN USE THE MONEY?
	2.2  LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND -- USES AND ALLOCATION PROCESS
	Figure 2-2 Applicable Claimant Categories
	Figure 2-3 LTF Allocation Purposes and Priorities for Madera County
	2. Allocation
	3. Payment

	2.3 STATE TRANSIT ASSISTANCE FUNDS - USES AND ALLOCATION PROCESS
	Figure 2-4 STA Funding Purposes Applicable in Madera County
	1. Apportionment
	2. Allocation
	3. Payment

	2.4 STATE OF GOOD REPAIR PROGRAM ALLOCATION PROCESS
	3.1 ELIGIBLE TRANSIT CLAIMS
	Figure 3-1a Eligible TDA Statutes to File Transit Claims for Operating and Planning
	Report of Streets and Roads Expenditures
	MCTC Semi-Annual Transit Operators’ Report
	Report of Streets and Roads Expenditures
	MCTC Semi-Annual Transit Operators’ Report

	3.2 CLAIMANT ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS
	1. Meets definition of transit operator
	2. Exceptions to farebox recovery requirement
	3. Additional requirements:
	1. Contract operations
	2. Exceptions to farebox recovery ratio requirement
	1. Must be eligible to claim LTF Article 4 or Article 8 funding
	2. Population formula funds (PUC Section 99313)
	3. Revenue formula funds (PUC Section 99314)
	4. Conform with Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)
	5. Full use of federal funds
	7. Employ part-time drivers – Only applicable to claims for operating costs

	3.3 AMOUNT OF LTF AND STA FUNDS THAT CAN BE CLAIMED FOR TRANSIT
	4.1 ELIGIBLE PROJECTS
	4.2 ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS
	4.3 AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR USE
	50% Funding Limitation

	4.4 REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
	5.1 ELIGIBLE PROJECTS
	5.2 ELIGIBILITY REQUIREMENTS
	5.3 AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR USE – UNMET TRANSIT NEEDS
	Unmet Transit Need Definition
	Figure 6-1 Eligibility and Claim Requirements
	Figure 7-1 Responsibilities and Timeline for Apportionment, Allocation and Payment
	Report of Streets and Roads Expenditures
	MCTC Semi-Annual Transit Operators’ Report
	Report of Streets and Roads Expenditures
	MCTC Semi-Annual Transit Operators’ Report
	General Guidelines
	Obtain and Review Relevant Documents and Statements:
	Review Tasks in CCR 6666 or 6667; whichever is appropriate
	Interview Personnel
	Seek Verification
	Document the Review

	Allocation
	Apportionment
	Assignment
	CEQA
	Claimant
	Consolidated Transportation Service Agency
	Demand Responsive
	Depreciation
	Elderly
	Enterprise Fund
	Fare Revenue
	Farebox Recovery Ratio
	Fiscal Year
	General Public Transportation
	Person with Disabilities
	Joint Powers Agreement
	Local Transportation Fund (LTF)
	Municipal Operator
	NEPA
	Nonprofit Corporation
	Nonurbanized Area
	Operating Cost
	Passenger Miles
	Performance Audit
	Private Corporation or Entity
	Productivity Improvement Program
	Regional Transportation Plan (RTP)
	Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA)
	Reserve
	Social Services Technical Advisory Council (SSTAC)
	Specialized Transportation Services
	State Transit Assistance Fund (STA)
	Transit District
	Transit Service Claimant
	Transportation Development Act (TDA)
	Transportation Improvement Program (TIP)
	Transportation Planning Agency (TPA)
	Uniform System of Accounts
	Unmet Transit Needs Process
	Urbanized Area


	Item 6.C1 RES_1910 LTF Allocation_Amd 2 (R)
	Item 6.C2 RES_1911 STA Allocation_Amd 2 (R)
	Item 6.D1 SSTAC Applications (R)
	Item 6.D2 SSTAC Member List (R)
	Item 8.A Measure T 20-21 Estimated (R)
	Allocation

	Item 9.A1 Discussion of Measure T Staff Report (R)
	Item 9.A2 Measure T Completed Projects (R)
	Item 9.A3 Measure T Progress Report (R)



